East Sussex
County Council

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment,
Councillor Claire Dowling

MONDAY, 18 NOVEMBER 2024 AT 10.00 AM

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES

AGENDA
1. Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 14 October 2024 (Pages 3 - 6)
2. Disclosure of Interests

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under
the terms of the Code of Conduct.

3. Urgent items
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take
at the appropriate part of the agenda.

4. Consultation outcome for revised Seaside and St Anthony's Avenue bus priority
proposals in Eastbourne (Pages 7 - 112)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

5. Petition: Implement a 40mph speed limit within the parish of Arlington (Pages 113 -
130)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

6. Eastbourne Town Centre Movement and Access Package - Phase 2a revised scope
(Pages 131 - 138)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

7. Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3

PHILIP BAKER

Deputy Chief Executive

County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent

LEWES BN7 1UE 8 November 2024

Contact Sophie Webb, Interim Senior Governance and Democracy Officer,
01273 337495
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.qgov.uk

eastsussex.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment, Councillor Claire
Dowling, on 14 October 2024 at Committee Room, County Hall, Lewes

Councillors Daniel, Geary and Hollidge spoke on item 5 (see minute 29)

24. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2024

24.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23
September 2024.

25. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

25.1 There were none.

26. URGENT ITEMS

26.1 There were none.

27. REPORTS

27.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.

Page 3



28. PETITION TO IMPROVE SAFETY FOR CYCLISTS AND PEDESTRIANS - KEYMER
ROAD, DITCHLING

28.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport together with written comments Councillor Sarah Osborne, the Local Member for the
petition.

28.2 Ms Demelza Hill, a representative of the petition calling on the County Council to
improve safety for cyclists and pedestrians on Keymer Road Ditchling spoke to highlight safety
concerns regarding the condition and maintenance of the footway along Keymer Road.

DECISIONS
28.3 The Lead Member RESOLVED to advise petitioners that:

(1) A potential scheme to improve the footway, provide an alternative cycle route and install
traffic calming on Keymer Road has been assessed through the approved High Level Sift
process and is not a priority for the County Council at the present time; and

(2) The section of Keymer Road between the Ditchling Parish Council Car Park and the County
Boundary does not meet the Council’s policy for a lower speed limit.

REASONS

28.4 The County Council has a limited amount of funding to develop local transport
improvements and needs to ensure that resources are targeted to those schemes which will be
of greatest benefit to local communities. To help prioritise the numerous requests received for
improvements, a process was developed to determine which schemes should be funded
through the Integrated Transport Programme. The requests for improvements to the footway, an
alternative cycle route and traffic calming measures have been assessed to determine if they
might be a priority for future consideration; however, they did not achieve the benchmark score
to be taken forward at this time.

28.5 The setting of appropriate and effective speed limits has been subject to a significant
level of research. It is important drivers are provided with a consistent message, so they know
what is expected of them as they enter different road environments. A predominant factor
considered when determining an effective speed limit is the number of properties that are visible
to drivers. There is little to no visible frontage development on the section of Keymer Road
between the car park and the county boundary. This section of road does not meet the Council’s
policy requirements for a lower speed limit therefore the national speed limit applies. Whilst this
section of road is subject to the national speed limit, the onus is on the individual driver to drive
in a safe and judicious manner, and to the conditions of the road and the surroundings through
which they pass.

20. REVIEW OF ON-STREET CAR PARKING CHARGES AND TARIFES IN ROTHER
DISTRICT

29.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

Page 4



DECISIONS
29.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

1) Note the proposals to increase parking pay and display charges and the proposed changes
to permit charges in Rother District; and

2) Agree to consult on the proposals outlined in the report.
REASONS

29.3 The consultation will seek to understand people’s views on the Council’s proposed
approach to the management of parking demand in Rother through the increase in on-street pay
and display parking tariffs and parking permit charges. The consultation will also look to better
understand whether these proposed changes will encourage drivers to use sustainable forms of
transport and/or to use vehicles that emit lower levels of pollutants.

29.4 The consultation will be available on the Council’s consultation hub website, which will
be promoted to stakeholders, residents and traders. The feedback received through the
consultation process will be presented alongside an Equalities Impact Assessment, to inform
the Lead Member’s final decisions about the proposals.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 18 November 2024

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Consultation outcome for revised Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue

bus priority proposals in Eastbourne.

Purpose: To consider the outcome of the second public consultation for the
revised bus priority proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue
as part of the East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) Note the outcomes of the second public consultation on revised bus priority proposals
for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue,;

(2) Advise petitioners that the issues raised by both petitions relating to bus priority
proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue have been reviewed and considered,;

(3) Approve the revised Seaside and St Anthony’s bus priority scheme to proceed to detailed
design and construction stage in 2025/26; and

(4) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to approve
the final content of the Project Adjustment Request submitted to the Department for
Transport.

1. Background Information

1.1 Following the publication of the previous Government’s Bus Back Better Strategy in March 2021,
East Sussex County Council submitted its Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) to the Department for
Transport (DfT) in October 2021. The East Sussex BSIP sets out ambitious and structured plans and
supporting policies to improve and increase the use of bus services and bus related infrastructure in
the county. The delivery of the BSIP requires the County Council to work in close co-operation with
neighbouring Local Transport Authorities and key stakeholders including local bus operators, statutory
consultees, community and business voices, bus passengers, and the voluntary and health transport
sectors.

1.2 In July 2022, the County Council were notified that East Sussex had been indicatively allocated
£41.4m towards the delivery of capital (£22.1m) and revenue (£19.3m) elements of its BSIP. Of the
£22.1m capital, £18.5m was indicatively allocated towards the delivery of bus priority measures in the
county. In September 2022, the DfT confirmed the County Council’s BSIP funding with a spend and
delivery deadline of 31 March 2025.

1.3 The BSIP bus priority public consultation, for 7 proposed schemes at feasibility stage, ran for 8
weeks between 31 July and 25 September 2023. The outcomes of the consultation were reported to
the Lead Member for Transport and Environment’s decision-making meeting on 15 January 2024. The
report outlined that the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue scheme had the largest proportion of
opposing responses, with 70.2% strongly opposing this scheme. The consultation responses
highlighted concerns about the loss of or changes to on-street parking provision and perceived negative
impact on general traffic flow because of redesigning road space to introduce bus lanes.

1.4 In response, the Lead Member for Transport and Environment resolved at the January 2024
decision-making meeting that officers should redefine the design and scope of the bus priority measures
along the Seaside corridor to ensure a refined proposal continues to support the aims of the East
Sussex BSIP while addressing concerns raised in the 2023 consultation.

Page 7



2. Supporting Information

Revised Design

2.1 Following the Lead Member’s decision in January 2024, the original proposals for bus priority
on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue were reviewed to develop a revised design which sought to
address the concerns raised during the summer 2023 consultation and balance the competing demands
for the use of the available road space. In developing the revised design, further engagement was
undertaken with the local community, councillors, business representatives and the local bus operator.
A summary of the revised scheme and the changes between the previous and revised proposals, is set
out in Appendix 1.

2.2 The majority of comments from the 2023 consultation highlighted that on-street parking
provision and the potential loss of these parking spaces was of great concern to residents and local
businesses. The retention of some of the existing on-street parking in the revised design has been
achieved by rationalising the extent of the previously proposed bus priority measures along Seaside
and St Anthony’s Avenue. Under the revised designs, it is proposed to retain 296m of parking on
Seaside (providing parking for approximately 50 vehicles); this is equivalent to 54% of current on-street
parking. On St Anthony's Avenue, the revised proposal retains 280m of parking (providing parking for
approximately 47 vehicles), which is equivalent to 57% of the current on-street parking.

2.3 To better understand the current use of parking spaces and the potential impact of reducing
on-street parking on the north side of Seaside to accommodate the bus lane, parking beat surveys were
carried out by enumerators on Thursday 9 May and Saturday 11 May 2024 between the hours of 7am
and 7pm. Beats were undertaken on an hourly basis, to understand the number of parked vehicles and
the duration of the parking. Any vehicles parked for a duration under one hour were not recorded. The
results of the survey showed that the demand for on-street parking relative to the kerbside space
available is relatively low on this section of Seaside, and therefore the potential level of displaced
parking to accommodate a bus lane would be relatively minor.

2.4 The introduction of the bus priority measures on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue would
improve journey times for buses and their overall reliability beyond the extent of the proposed scheme.
The estimated combined two-way journey time saving for buses travelling eastbound and westbound
on the scheme extent is up to 7 minutes in a congested period. For the proposed eastbound bus lane
from Windermere Crescent to Seaside Roundabout, the estimated journey time saving in a congested
period is up to 3.6 minutes per bus. For the westbound proposed bus lane between Langney
Roundabout and Seaside Roundabout, the estimated journey time saving in a congested period is up
to 3.4 minutes per bus. The full breakdown of bus journey saving times can be found in Appendix A of
the consultation report at Appendix 2.

Consultation approach

2.5 The BSIP Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue bus priority public consultation period ran for 5
weeks between 15 July and 18 August 2024. The consultation approach is outlined in detail in section
2 of the consultation report at Appendix 2. In summary this included:

¢ A consultation webpage — (East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures - Seaside & St Anthony's
Avenue, Eastbourne - East Sussex - Citizen Space),

e 3 in-person drop-in consultation events in the Seaside and St Anthony’s area with exhibition
boards showing the proposals and members of the project team available to answer questions.
The events were well attended by residents, interest groups, bus operator staff, locally elected
councillors and Eastbourne MP;

o Distribution of 1,100 consultation postcards to properties in the area surrounding the proposed
Seaside and St Anthony’s bus priority scheme. 500 consultation postcards were also delivered
to local bus operator Stagecoach who distributed them to bus passengers on the route; and

e Social media coverage and press release.

2.6 The existing 2023 consultation stakeholder list was also updated. Stakeholders who were
advised of the second consultation included County, District and Borough Councillors, local MP, local
bus operators, local businesses and organisations representing the business community, active travel
groups, accessibility action groups, transport users, education providers, emergency services, resident
associations, as well as voluntary and community sector organisations.

Page 8


https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/

2.7 Prior to the consultation, briefings were also held with elected Members from East Sussex
County Council, Eastbourne Borough Council and the local MP.

2.8 The Equality Impact Assessment was updated prior to the second public consultation. It will be
updated again to reflect the outcome of the 2024 public consultation and any subsequent stages of
design and delivery.

Consultation Outcomes and Analysis

2.9 A total of 2,788 surveys were completed during the consultation period. Of these, 2,756
responses were completed online, while 32 paper copies were received. In addition, 68 emails were
received during the consultation to the BSIP Consultation Mailbox on the proposals and 7 letters were
received.

2.10 The consultation outcomes are detailed in section 4 of the consultation report at Appendix 2.
As set out in the table below, the level of support for the proposal overall exceeds the level of opposition;
56% support (combined values) vs 37% oppose (combined values) with 7% neither supporting nor
opposing the proposals overall.

Strongly | Support | Neither Oppose | Strongly | Don’t
support support / oppose | know
oppose
Support for scheme overall 41% 15% 7% 6% 31% <1%

2.11 Further analysis of the consultation responses highlight:

e 88% (925) of respondents live in the Eastbourne Area.

e 32% of consultation respondents travel by bus along the proposed bus lane route more than 5
times a week. 22% of respondents drive along the proposed scheme extent more than 5 times
a week.

e 53% of those respondents that travel by bus along Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue are
supportive of the proposals overall with 38% opposing the proposals overall.

¢  Opposition to the proposals are significantly greater among those living nearby to the proposed
scheme (72% combined oppose), compared with those that do not (48% combined oppose).

e 33 respondents, (3% of total respondents) are owners of a business on Seaside or St Anthony’s
Avenue. 88% of these respondents strongly opposed the proposals, with a further 6% opposing
the proposals.

e Respondent views on the impact on congestion of the proposals are largely split. Whilst 30%
felt congestion would improve, 32% felt that congestion would be worse.

o 54% of respondents said that the bus priority proposals would improve bus services whilst 15%
said that bus services would be worse. 20% of respondents felt that bus services would remain
the same as they currently are.

2.12 When analysing the open question text responses, of those who supported the proposal,
respondents felt that the proposals were a good idea, that journey times would improve; buses would
be more reliable; traffic flow would improve for all vehicles and more people would use the bus with the
bus priority measures in place.

2.13 Of those respondents who opposed the proposal, the most common open text responses
showed that these respondents felt the proposal would lead to more traffic congestion, that the road is
not wide enough to accommodate a bus lane, and the scheme is too expensive. The most common
concerns were raised over the loss of parking and the impact that a lack of on-street parking might have
on local businesses.

Traffic Modelling

2.14 Inresponse to concerns raised about the perceived negative impact of the proposed bus priority
measures on congestion on the Seaside and St Anthonys Avenue corridor, additional micro-simulation

Page 9



modelling has been undertaken for two scenarios looking at both the morning (07:45 — 08:45) and
afternoon (17:00 — 18:00) peak times:

e The current road layout simulating existing traffic flows, congestion and driver behaviour based
on detailed traffic surveys undertaken in September 2024; and

e A future road layout with the proposed bus priority measures on Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue. This includes simulating the proposed removal of right turn lanes on Seaside, which
has also been raised as a concern, and the resulting effect on driver behaviour.

2.15 The micro-simulation modelling has demonstrated that the loss of on-street parking on Seaside
to enable the introduction of the proposed eastbound bus lane will, compared to the current layout have
no detrimental impact on general traffic journey times in the morning and afternoon peak times going
eastbound (towards Seaside roundabout).

2.16 The modelling identifies that with the Seaside proposals in situ there would be a small increase
to journey times for traffic going westbound in both the morning and afternoon peak times. This journey
time increase is attributed to the proposed relocation of the pedestrian crossing near Fort Road closer
to Seaside roundabout as well as the removal of the right turn pockets for Southbourne Road and
Northbourne Road.

2.17 However, the modelling has also indicated that if the following amendments were made to the
proposed scheme, then there would be no detriment, and a slight betterment, on vehicle journey times
in both the morning and afternoon peak times going westbound by:

¢ replacing the zebra crossing by Southbourne Road with a traffic signal-controlled crossing;

e retaining a right-hand turn pocket for one vehicle at Southbourne Road; and

¢ reducing the length of the bus lane on the approach to Northbourne Road to retain a right turn
pocket for one vehicle. This would necessitate the loss of on street parking (approximately 3 car
lengths).

2.18 It is recommended that subject to the Lead Member's decision these amendments are
considered as part of the scheme’s detailed design. A summary of the modelling outcome is available
at Appendix 3.

Policy Context

2.19 The East Sussex Local Transport Plan (LTP4) covering the period 2024 to 2050 was adopted
by the County Council on 8 October 2024. The LTP4 sets the strategy and policy framework for
transport in the county for the next 25 years. The adoption of LTP4 follows an extensive consultation
and engagement process over the last 2 years which generated over 1,000 consultation responses on
the draft strategy which have helped shape the final Plan.

2.20 The LTP’s vision is for an inclusive transport system that connects people and places, is
decarbonised, safer, resilient, and supports the natural environment, communities, and businesses to
be healthy, thrive and prosper. This will be achieved through an increased emphasis on ‘planning for
people and places’. This means that there will be a focus on enabling and encouraging integrated
journeys and reducing the need to travel through land-use and planning policies, focussed on
encouraging and enabling inclusive and sustainable travel modes (walking, wheeling, cycling and public
transport), adopting vehicles with cleaner fuels alongside the utilisation of emerging transport
technologies will help to achieve the Council's and the Council’'s partners’ net-zero ambitions.
Therefore, the Council will consider redesigning road space towards providing active travel and public
transport infrastructure, whilst also managing competing demands of different road users for this space,
rather than explicitly ‘planning for vehicles’.

2.21 Several policies in the LTP4 - Policy C1: Inclusive Access; Policy C3 — Bus & Coach; and Policy
C6; Public Transport — reference the introduction of bus priority measures as part of the toolkit to support
the delivery of the ‘Integrated and Accessible Transport for AlI’ LTP4 theme. These policies highlight
the benefits that bus priority measures have, as a tool, to improving journey punctuality and reliability
of buses and they are vital in enabling faster bus services and making the bus more attractive for more
trips to provide another choice to travelling by car. In the context of Seaside and St Anthonys Avenue,
the introduction of bus priority measures along this corridor would benefit 1,770 buses weekly across 9
existing bus services carrying at present around 14,000 passengers a week.

Page 10



2.22 The LTP4 Strategy is supported by an Investment Plan. This sets out the County Council’s and
the Council’s partners’ ambitions for delivering the policies and investment priorities to achieve the
vision and objectives of LTP4. This includes identified schemes and the types of schemes that the
County Council and key partners wish to deliver, subject to funding being secured. Eastbourne urban
bus priority and service enhancements, which would include the proposals on the Seaside and St
Anthony’s corridor, are identified in the Investment Plan for development and delivery in the short term
(up to 2030).

2.23 As aresult, introducing bus priority measures is integral to delivering the East Sussex LTP4, so
that residents can enjoy higher quality bus services that provide a frequent, integrated and
comprehensive choice and alternative to the car. In doing so, this will help to support connectivity to
key destinations, reduce congestion and strengthen the resilience of the transport network; make a
positive contribution towards improving air quality as well as decarbonising transport and travel to
support the achievement of the County Council’s target of net zero carbon emissions by 2050 at the
latest and the Borough Council’'s same ambition by 2030.

Petitions received by the County Council

2.24 At the County Council meeting on 8 October 2024, 2 petitions were presented to the Chairman
regarding the proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue. Councillor Wright presented a petition
in support of the bus priority proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue which had 494 signatures.
Councillor Tutt presented a petition which opposed the bus priority proposals which had 2,531
signatures.

2.25 Standing Orders provide that where the Chairman considers it appropriate, petitions are
considered by the relevant Committee or Lead Member and a spokesperson for the petitioners is invited
to address the Committee. The Chairman has referred these petitions to the Lead Member for Transport
and Environment, and these are being considered alongside the consultation outcomes as part of this
report. Details of the petitions can be found in Appendix 4. Copies of the petitions are available in the
Members’ Room.

Next steps

2.26 The County Council has received significant capital funding from Government to deliver bus
priority measures in the county. These will support the East Sussex BSIP objectives and are a key tool
to delivering the East Sussex LTP4 vision of an inclusive transport system that connects people and
places, which will be achieved through an increased emphasis on ‘planning for people and places’
rather than ‘planning for vehicles’.

2.27 Taking into consideration the policy context, the outcomes of the public consultation and
feedback, the transport modelling outcomes, the expected benefits for bus users in terms of journey
time savings and the indicative costs for continuing to develop and deliver the scheme, it is
recommended to proceed with the Seaside and St Anthony’s bus priority scheme to detailed design
and construction stage in 2025/26.

2.28 Across the package of BSIP bus priority measures the Council will continue to monitor the scope
and costs as the programme progresses to construction with a view to ensuring scheme costs stay
within the remaining available budget.

Project Adjustment Request

2.29 The outcome of the decision in relation to the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue bus priority
proposals will be subject to the submission of a further Project Adjustment Request (PAR) to the
Department for Transport (DfT). The PAR must outline any changes to scope, updated costs and
evidence of benefits to bus passengers (i.e. journey saving times).

2.30 If the proposals are agreed, the submitted PAR will also formally seek a spend and delivery
extension to March 2026 for all bus priority schemes. The submitted PAR will be considered via the
DfT’s panel process, and the County Council will be notified of the decision.

3. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 Following receipt of Government funding to deliver the County Council’s Bus Service
Improvement Plan, a package of 7 bus priority schemes were prioritised and put forward for public

Page 11



consultation between July and September 2023 on the basis that they generated the highest benefits
for bus users, could generate additional bus passengers and meet the Department for Transport’s
delivery timescales. The Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue scheme had the largest proportion of
opposing responses, with 70.2% strongly opposing the scheme.

3.2 Following the Lead Member’s decision in January 2024 for officers to review the Seaside and
St Anthony’s Avenue bus priority proposals, a revised design was subject to consultation between 15
July and 18 August 2024. The consultation outcomes, as set out in paragraphs 2.9 to 2.13, highlight
that 56% of respondents supported the revised proposals with 37% opposing the revised proposals.

3.3 The outcomes of the traffic modelling demonstrated no determent to general traffic journey times
going eastbound in the morning and afternoon peak times. The modelling also demonstrated that with
amendments to the proposed scheme, as set out in paragraph 2.17, there will be no detriment, and a
slight betterment, on vehicle journey times travelling westbound in the morning and afternoon peak
times. It is recommended that, subject to the Lead Member’s decision, these amendments would be
considered as part of the scheme’s detailed design. In response to the previous feedback on the original
proposals, 54% of the on-street parking will be retained on Seaside and 57% on St Anthony’s Avenue.
This provides a balanced approach to the competing needs for parking, buses and general traffic on
the corridor with the delivery of the bus lanes contributing towards achieving the objectives of East
Sussex’s LTP4 and BSIP.

3.4 Following the County Council meeting on 8 October 2024, the Chairman referred 2 petitions to
the Lead Member for Transport and Environment. The petition in support of the bus lane has 494
signatures and the petition opposing the bus lane has 2,531 signatures. The Lead Member for Transport
and Environment is recommended to advise petitioners that the issues raised by both petitions relating
to bus priority proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue have been reviewed and considered
alongside the consultation outcomes as part of this report.

3.5 The Lead Member for Transport and Environment is therefore recommended to note
consultation outcomes for the revised proposal for Seaside and St Anthony’s and approve the
recommendation to proceed with the Seaside and St Anthony’s bus priority scheme to detailed design
and construction stage in 2025/26.

3.6 It is also recommended to delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport in consultation with the Lead Member for Transport and Environment to approve the final
content of the Project Adjustment Request submitted to the Department for Transport.

RUPERT CLUBB

Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Indi Hicks
Tel. No: 07514 721385
Email: indi.hicks@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
Councillors di Cara, Holt, Tutt

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Bus Service Improvement Plan 2021 - eastsussex.gov.uk/media/znybvybw/east-sussex-county-
council-bus-service-improvement-plan-2021.pdf

Page 12


https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/znybvybw/east-sussex-county-council-bus-service-improvement-plan-2021.pdf
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/znybvybw/east-sussex-county-council-bus-service-improvement-plan-2021.pdf

Appendix 1

Appendix 1

The revised bus priority design for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, Eastbourne
proposes:

Eastbound bus lane between Windermere Crescent and Seaside

Roundabout to speed up journey times for buses, improve bus reliability and reduce
congestion for other road users

Westbound bus lane between Langney Roundabout and

Seaside Roundabout to speed up journey times for buses, improve bus reliability
and reduce congestion for other road users

Two new pedestrian crossings at Seaside Roundabout, and three new
pedestrian crossings near St Andrew’s Church, Co-op and Lidl respectively to
provide safe crossing points for pedestrians

Retaining existing parking spaces wherever possible in response to the 2023
consultation feedback and prioritising parking outside of homes and businesses
Introducing new parking spaces to offset the removal of some parking spaces that
allow the new bus lanes

The revised design has some key differences to the 2023 consultation proposals:

Revised 2024 Proposal Original 2023 Proposal
Starting at Windermere Crescent and ending Started at Leslie Street and ending at
at Langney Roundabout Langney Roundabout
No changes proposed to Langney Roundabout | Changes proposed to
or Seaside Roundabout Langney Roundabout or

Seaside Roundabout
Eastbound bus lane between Windermere Eastbound and westbound bus lanes
Crescent and Seaside Roundabout and proposed through the length of the
westbound bus lane between scheme (i.e. bus lanes on both side of
Langney Roundabout and Seaside the carriageway)
Roundabout

Full details of the revised proposals are available on the consultation webpage — (East Sussex
BSIP Bus Priority Measures - Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue, Eastbourne - East Sussex -

Citizen Space),

Page 13


https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

MORE BUS LESS FUSS Funded by EaSt SESS“-’-‘.
m w22 UK Government ounty Counci
° ° w”M'”

East Sussex Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) - Revised
Proposal for Seaside & St Anthony’s
Avenue, Eastbourne

Consultation Report

V2

October 2024
WSP/ East Sussex County Council




Contents

LIPS 1) o o T [Tt o o I OSSR 4
Purpose of the DOCUMENT...........ooi ittt st et sre et s reeaesreennens 4
BACKGIOUNG ...ttt sttt a e st e e ra e besreesaesbeean e tesseensestennnens 4
BSIP ViSion & ODJECHIVES. .....c.oiiiiieiiieiee ettt 4
Outcome of the 2023 BSIP CONSULLATION.........ceriiiiriiiiceeeeeee s 5
Overview of the 2024 revised PropoSsals........cccceeceiiieeiineeceseeeese e 5

2. CONSULLALION ...ttt 10
Details Of the CONSULLATION ........co.ciiiiiieie et 10
Consultation Materials & Channels for Promotion ... 10
Core Scheme INfOrmMatioN..........ccoo i 10
Engagement with Key StaKeNOLAErS ..........cooveiiiiiriiiricie e 11
RATSTNG AWAIENESS ...ttt sttt ettt a e bt bbb e e s et e eseeneebenaennes 11
CONSULEALION EVENES......c.iiiiiiiiicic ettt 13
Response Analysis & MethodOlOGY .........ccovivieieiiiieiceceeeee et 13
Technical issues during the consultation period ... 14

3. Consultation response Profile........ccciieciiiiiiiicceeee e s 16
RESPONSES ......viveceticteeee et ete sttt st e ettt e et e st e s te et e s tesra e besaeesaebeess e tesbeentesteessenbeeasenteabeensestaesaantesanenes 16
SUINVEY RESPONAENTS......c.ocuiiiieiiciicectecet ettt e s te s b et e s e b e s e e esseseeseesentens 16
CONSULLALION AWAIENESS .......vviiieieiiiietei ettt ettt senes 24

CUrrent Travel Patterns. ..ot 25
Feedback on the SCNEMES ... 26

4.  Feedback on the Proposals.........ccccciiiiiiiicicicieeeese et 27

5. Cross-tabULAtiONS. ....c..c.iiiiiiiciic e 32

6.  Free Text SUMVEY RESPONSES........ccccuiiieieiteeiecteeteeie sttt s te et st ae e tesbeeaesteeraenbesbeesseneereenns 37

7. Emails and WIitten RESPONSES .......ccuccveieieiieieiecteseste ettt 45
CorrespoNdENCE FECEIVEA. .........ciiuiiiitiieieceee ettt st b et a e b sa e sseseeresaesrens 45
Consultation MailboX (EMAil)........cociririieeieeeee e 48

8.  Key Themes & Design Considerations...........ccccoeiviiieiierieicieiceeese e 51

9. SUMMAIY & NEXE STEPS.....i ittt st e b e s beesseaeereenes 66
SUIMIMIAIY ...ttt ettt ettt et eete et e e te et e s beeatesbeebeeabesbeessanbeessenseebeessesbeesaanbestsensesesssentesseensestensnans 66

2



LSy A =] o3-S 67

Appendix A: Bus JOUrney Time SAVINGS........cccoririiiriririeirietreesie sttt 68
Appendix B: Frequently Asked QUESLIONS.........ccoouiuiriiiriiiricieee e 71
Appendix C: Details sheets for ‘Suggestions’ COAES.........coevvviiieieiiceeiececee e 78
Appendix D: Codes applied to email CorreSponNdence ...........cccoceeeveveeeevieeeeceseee e 83

3

Page 17



1. Introduction

Purpose of the Document

East Sussex County Council (ESCC), with support from WSP, conducted a public
consultation in summer 2023 on a series of bus priority measures across the county, which
form part of the East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP).

Following feedback received during the 2023 consultation, a report on the consultation
outcomes was considered by the County Council’s Lead Member for Transport and
Environment in January 2024. The Lead Member resolved that, in light of the feedback
received, the County Council would review and revise the proposals for bus priority
measures on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue in Eastbourne and then to re-consult on the
revised design.

A public consultation on the revised proposals was held between 15 July and 18 August
2024. This report documents these consultation activities and presents the analysis of the
responses received.

Background

Following the publication of the Government's Bus Back Better Strategy by the Department
for Transport (DfT) in March 2021, ESCC submitted its BSIP to Government in October 2021.

The East Sussex BSIP sets out the Council’s ambitious plans to improve the bus network
across East Sussex and provide a cleaner, reliable alternative to car travel. The BSIP
focusses on enhancing the bus network within East Sussex to complement and support
wider transport investment across the country, encouraging a sustainable mode shift
towards bus usage.

The BSIP actively addresses the Government’s Bus Back Better Strategy and sets the
Council’s plans to improve bus services, working in close cooperation with bus operators,
bus passengers, neighbouring Local Transport Authorities, community and business voices,
and the voluntary and health transport sector. Through the BSIP, ESCC will deliver bus
service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority measures.

The aims of the BSIP are to:

= |mprove the reliability and punctuality of bus services and explore methods to
make bus services more accessible.

= Encourage an increase in the proportion of people travelling by bus.

= Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and improving reliability and
punctuality of bus services.

= Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus network that meets
everyone's needs.

= Complement and support wider transport investment across the country.

BSIP Vision & Objectives

The overarching aim of the proposed schemes for the East Sussex BSIP is:

Page 18


https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan/bus-service-improvement-plan-for-east-sussex-county-council

“To ensure that East Sussex residents and visitors enjoy the highest possible quality bus
services that provide a frequent and comprehensive choice, reduce congestion and make a
positive contribution to better air quality and decarbonisation.’

To support this overarching aim, the specific objectives of the bus priority measures are:

= |mproved bus reliability

= Reduce congestion and improve traffic flow
= Encourage greater bus use

= Complement wider initiatives

= Create safer options.

Figure 1: Objectives of the proposed bus priority measures

Reduce Congestion

Improved Bus . Encourage Complement Wider Create Safer
P, and Improve Traffic T .
Reliability Flow Greater Bus Use Initiatives Options
P o
. = S
P [ ~a) I '% -
[ ] l I I

An overview of the revised proposals in the 2024 consultation, is provided below.

Outcome of the 2023 BSIP consultation

During the summer 2023 consultation, a total of 1,505 consultation responses were
received for the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue scheme in Eastbourne. The majority of
respondents opposed the proposal for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue (known as the
Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout in the 2023 consultation). In total 70% of
respondents were strongly opposed to the proposals, 8% were opposed, while 6% supported
and 11% strongly supported the 2023 proposal for the Seaside Corridor and Seaside
Roundabout. The issue respondents were most concerned about was the proposed loss of
on street parking due to the introduction of the bus lanes.

The 2023 consultation report was considered by the County Council’s Lead Member for
Transport and Environment on 15 January 2024. The Lead Member resolved to approve the
officer recommendation to revisit the design proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue in response to the consultation feedback.

As a result, the original proposed design for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue has been
reviewed and revised to develop a proposal which balances the competing demands for
the use of the available road space. The revised design, as presented in the summer 2024
consultation, was produced in response to the 2023 consultation feedback and further
engagement with local community, businesses, representatives and the local bus operator.

Overview of the 2024 revised proposals

The revised bus priority design for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, Eastbourne proposes:

Page 19



= Eastbound bus lane between Windermere Crescent and Seaside Roundabout to
speed up journey times for buses, improve bus reliability and reduce congestion for
other road users

= Westbound bus lane between Langney Roundabout and Seaside Roundabout to
speed up journey times for buses, improve bus reliability and reduce congestion for
other road users. This includes improved bus stop accessibility and potential
removal of bus stop boarders, where practicable.

= Two new pedestrian crossings at Seaside Roundabout, and three new pedestrian
crossings near St Andrew’s Church, Co-op and Lidl respectively to provide safe
crossing points for pedestrians (please note some of these crossings are
replacing/relocating existing crossings - for example replacing staggered crossings
with single crossings spanning the full roadway).

= Retaining existing parking spaces wherever possible in response to the 2023
consultation feedback and prioritising parking outside of homes and businesses

= Introducing new parking spaces to offset the removal of some parking spaces that
allow the new bus lanes

MAP 1: SEASIDE: WINDERMERE CRESCENT TO RYE STREET

Between Windermere Crescent and Rye Street, we are suggesting the following changes:

S

[eastbound b 4 }’Relainedi

}bus lane f,# |bus stop
| |and shelter|

H i N
4 [Retained | [Crossing simplified| £ [Right-hand turn | Retained
® jpusstop | 'and central island % |1ane removed and parking

{and shelter | |removed © |lane widened : parking |

[Retained |
Retained
parking

W Footway I Proposed bus lane [ Bus stop shelter I Proposed new parking M Retained parking 7. Traffic signal pedestrian crossing

Bus Lanes and Stops Road layout changes Crossings Parking

-Adding an eastbound bus lane from  -Removing the right-hand turn lane at the -Simplify the existing pedestrian  -Retaining 66m (approx 12 cars) of on
Windermere Crescent to Seasid j ion with Churchdale Road and crossing by the Co-op b street parking b Wartling Road
Roundabout Wartling Road to allow for the new bus Windermere Crescent and and Sandwich Street

-Keeping the bus stop and shelter near lane Churchdale Road by removing the -Retaining 6om (approx 10 cars) of on
Romney Street + We will widen the general traffic lane existing central island street parking between Sandwich Street
-Keeping the bus stop and shelter near to ensure traffic can still pass a and Rye Street

Churchdale Road and the Archery vehicle waiting to turn right

Playground

o
by

Funded
UK Government

Page 20



MAP 2: SEASIDE: RYE STREET TO SEASIDE ROUNDABOUT

Between Rye Street and Seaside Roundabout, we are suggesting the following changes:

Central |
island
rem

,f Right-hand turm ;
laneremovedand | £
lane widened |

Existing informal

parking retained

between driveways|

Netained
bus stop
and shelter

| Pedestrian crossing
[relocated closer to

|roundabout

Ichanges
to Seaside
Roundabout |

B Footway

B Proposed bus lane

I Bus stop shelter

I Proposed new parking

B Retained parking

/4 Traffic signal pedestrian crossing

Bus Lanes and Stops

-Adding an eastbound bus lane from

Windermere Crescent to Seaside
Roundabout

-Keeping the bus stops and bus shelters by

Winchelsea Road and Finmere Road

-Keeping the bus stop near the Alexandra

Arms, by Allfrey Road, but

Crossings

-Keeping the zebra crossing next
to Southbourne Road and Finmere
Road and removing the central

island

Road layout changes Parking

-Removing the nght hand turn lane
atthe j with

-Retaming 48m (approx 8 cars) of on street

Road and Finmere Road to allow Road

for the new bus lane

-Moving the p

R g the right-hand turn lane

P dahb,

built out kerb

-Moving the bus stop between Northbourne
Road and Fort Road 35m west of the current

location

i
Funded by
UK Government

also be upgraded for use by
pedestrians and cyclists

the Seaside Roundabout

near Fort Road to be closer to the
Crossing to

-Adding a pedestrian crossing on
the StAnthony’s Avenue side of

at the junction with Northbourne
Road and Myrtle Road to allow for
the new bus lane
« In both locations we willwiden
the general traffic lane to
ensure traffic can still pass a
vehicle waiting to turn right

Road

Fort Road

Rye Steet and Winchelsea

-Retaining 4om (approx 7 cars) of on street
parking between Vine Square and Allfrey

-Retaining 42m (approx 7 cars) of on street
parking between Finmere Road and
Northboumne Road

-Adding 4om (approx 7 cars) of new on
street parking between Myrtle Road and

MAP 3: ST ANTHONY’S AVENUE: SEASIDE ROUNDABOUT TO
QUEEN’S CRESCENT

Between Seaside Roundabout and Queen’s Crescent , we are suggesting the following changes:

Existing informal
parking retained
between driveways

[New

| parking

Central island
removed

Right-hand turn
lane removed and
lane widened

Pedestrian crossing
retained and central
island removed

Retained
bus stop
and shelter |

Right-hand turn
lane removed and
lane widened

W Footway

W Proposed bus lane

I Bus stop shelter

W Proposed new parking M Retained parking

7/, Traffic signal pedestrian crossing

Bus Lanes and Stops

-Adding a westbound bus
lane on StAnthony’s
Avenue from Langney to
Seaside Roundabout
Roundabout

-Cyclists also able to use
westbound bus lane
-Keeping the bus stops
outside Winston Crescent

Funded by
UK Government

Road layout changes

-Removing the central island near
Queen’s Crescent (west)

-Removing the right-hand turn lane at
the junction with Winston Crescent,
and the junction with Leeds Avenue
and Queen’s Crescent to allow for the

new bus lane

Crossings

-Keeping and simplifying the
pedestrian crossing by Winston
Crescent by removing the central
island

-Adding a pedestrian crossing by
Queen’s Crescent (east) and
removing the centralisland

« We willwiden the general traffic
lane in both locations to ensure

traffic can still pass a vehicle
wanting to turn right

Page 21

Parking

-Retaining 16om (approx
29 cars) of on street
parking between Seaside
Roundabout and Queen’s
Crescent (west)




MAP 4: QUEEN’S CRESCENT TO LANGNEY ROUNDABOUT

Between Queen’s Crescent and Langney Roundabout, we are suggesting the following changes:

Retained No proposed changes to
Bbus stop Langney Roundabout |
C ) Existing infarmal [

parking retained

|between driveways

[Westbaund|
bus lane

[Retained |
bus stop

W Footway W Propesed bus lane W Bus stop shelter B Proposed new parking [ Fietained parking 4 Traffic signal pedestrian eressing

Bus Lanes and Stops Road layout changes Crossings Parking

-Adding a westbound bus lane on St -Keeping the road layout around Langney -Keeping the pedestrian crossings -Retaining 1zom (approx 21
Anthony’s Avenue from Langney Roundabout the same around Langney Roundabout the cars) of uncontrolled parking
Roundabout to Seaside Roundabout same between Seaville Drive and
-Cyclists also able to use westbound bus Langney Roundabout

lane

-Keeping the bus stop opposite Wallis

Avenue

-Keeping the bus stops to the west of

Langney Roundabout

e L PR I

Dl 222

It is anticipated that bus journey times along Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue will
decrease by up to 7 minutes per bus trip at the most congested times. Across a whole
week this would mean an accumulated weekly total of 76 hours of journey time savings for
buses with over 14,000 passengers per week benefitting from these time savings. Please
note that a ‘bus trip’ is assumed to be a return trip - i.e. from ‘x’ to ‘y’ and back to ‘x’
again.

In terms of the Seaside & St Anthony’s Journey Time Savings for Buses, by comparing the
journey times at congested periods on Seaside & St Anthony’s Avenue over a two-month
period (August and September 2023) and the revised bus lane proposal, we can estimate
the following indicative journey time savings per bus:

» For the proposed eastbound bus lane from Windermere Crescent to Seaside
Roundabout, the estimated journey time saving in a congested period is up to 3.6
minutes per bus.

» For the westbound proposed bus lane between Langney Roundabout and Seaside
Roundabout, the estimated journey time saving in a congested period is up to 3.4
minutes per bus.

= The estimated combined journey time saving for buses travelling eastbound and
westbound is up to 7 minutes in a congested period.

For the total journey time savings from every bus journey (not just the bus journeys within
the 4 1- hour congested periods used in the calculations above) over a two-month period
(August and September 2023), the time savings were as follows:

Page 22



 For the proposed eastbound bus lane from Windermere Crescent to Seaside Roundabout,
the total estimated weekly journey time saving is 52.7 hours for all buses.

 For the westbound proposed bus lane between Langney Roundabout and Seaside
Roundabout, the total estimated weekly journey time saving is 23.9 hours for all buses.

» The estimated combined weekly journey time saving for all buses travelling eastbound
and westbound is a combined 76.6 hours

Further details of these time saving calculations can be seen in Appendix A of this report.

The key differences between the 2024 revised designs and the 2023 original proposals are
shown in the table below.

Table 1: Summary of key differences between the 2023 and 2024 proposals

Original 2023 proposal

Revised 2024 proposal

Previously started at Leslie Street and
ending at Langney Roundabout

Now starting at Windermere Crescent
and ending at Langney Roundabout

No longer any changes proposed to
Langney Roundabout and Seaside
Roundabout

Previously proposed changes to Langney
Roundabout and Seaside Roundabout

Now proposing an eastbound bus lane
between Windermere Crescent and
Seaside Roundabout and westbound bus
lane between Langney Roundabout and
Seaside Roundabout

Previously eastbound and westbound bus
lanes were proposed along the whole
length of the scheme (i.e. bus lanes on
both side of the carriageway)

Page 23



2. Consultation

Details of the Consultation

As was the case with the summer 2023 BSIP consultation, WSP supported ESCC with the
consultation exercise on the revised proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue,
including undertaking public events, producing consultation materials, and analysing and
reporting on the responses received.

Consultation Materials & Channels for Promotion

A range of materials were produced for the consultation to help respondents understand
the proposals and submit informed comments. These were subsequently promoted via
several communication channels to raise awareness and encourage participation.

These material and channels are detailed below.

Core Scheme Information

Online Webpage

Information relating to the 2024 consultation was hosted on the ESCC consultation pages:
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-
environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/

Details of the changes to the proposals from the 2023 BSIP consultation were presented,
alongside annotated scheme plans of the revised proposals. Information on the proposed
changes to car parking were also included, with details of the existing parking provision (in
terms of combined length of parking bays), what had been proposed for the 2023 BSIP
consultation, and the current revised 2024 proposal following the feedback received.

Consultation flyers and other printed materials

Printed materials were also prepared as part of the consultation, to improve access to
information for those with limited or no access to the online information. The flyer was
delivered to around 1,100 properties in the area surrounding the Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue area. Failed deliveries were re-attempted, which led to some success. However,
four addresses could not be reached due to inability to gain access to the properties.

The local bus operator (Stagecoach) distributed 500 consultation postcards to bus
passengers using their services. While 30 consultation posters were also passed to
Stagecoach, allowing them to help publicise the consultation further to bus passengers.

Frequently Asked Questions

A set of Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) were provided via a link from the online
consultation webpage. The full list of FAQs and Glossary of Terms can be seen in Appendix
B of this report.

10

Page 24


https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/bsipbusprioritymeasures-eastbourne/

Engagement with Key Stakeholders

Councillor Briefings
Several consultation briefings were held with local councillors prior to the launch of
consultation on 15 July 2024.

Table 2: Summary of consultation briefings held with Councillors

Pre-Consultation Briefing Date & Time Content

ESCC Lead Member for Tuesday 9th July, 14:00 - 14:30 Briefing on revised
Transport and Environment proposal for

ESCC County Councillors Thursday 11th July, 10:00 - 10:45 Seaside & St

Anthony’s Avenue
and details of
public
consultation

Eastbourne Borough Thursday 11th July, 14:00 - 14:45
Councillors

Raising Awareness

Press Release

The press release from East Sussex County Council was issued on 19th July 2024. This
included an online release at the following web-address:
https://news.eastsussex.gov.uk/2024/07/19/views-sought-on-updated-bus-lane-plans/

The content of the press release read as follows:
Views sought on updated bus lane plans

MEMBERS of the public are being invited to give their views on updated plans to make bus
services in Eastbourne more reliable, improve journey times and reduce congestion.

Proposals for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, have been revised following public
consultation in 2023, include new bus lanes, pedestrian crossings and revised parking
arrangements.

They are part of the county’s ambitious Bus Service Improvement Plan, aimed at ensuring
residents and visitors can enjoy the highest possible quality bus services, improving air
quality and helping the county to reduce its carbon footprint.

The Eastbourne proposals are just one part of the plan which is being progressed with the
help of £41.4 million funding from Government. An East Sussex County Council
spokesperson said: “We believe that these improvements can help provide a more reliable
bus service and significantly reduce journey times for as many as 14,000 passengers a
week.

“It’s important that any measures we put in place are successful and have the most
positive effect on the area. We have listened to feedback on our initial proposals and the
concerns about the loss of parking resulting from the new bus lanes and have amended
the plans to include space for more than 100 cars in Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue.

11

Page 25


https://news.eastsussex.gov.uk/2024/07/19/views-sought-on-updated-bus-lane-plans/

“I would encourage people to take the time to view the updated plans, attend one of the

consultation events to find out more and give their view.”

The dedicated bus lanes are now proposed to run eastbound between Windermere
Crescent and Seaside Roundabout and westbound from Langney Roundabout to Seaside
Roundabout. There will be no changes to Seaside Roundabout or Langney Roundabout.

The consultation runs until Sunday, August 18 and a series of events will give residents
the opportunity to view the latest designs and ask officers questions. Events include;

e Saturday, July 20 - 10am to 1pm - St Andrew’s Parish Hall, Seaside
e Monday, July 22 - 12noon to 3pm - St Anthony’s Centre, Seaside
e Tuesday, July 30 - 5pm to 8pm - St Andrew’s Parish Hall, Seaside

For more information about the updated proposals and to respond to the consultation,
visit the consultation page. Ends.

Social Media advertising

To maximise the reach of the consultation, social media content was produced to raise
awareness and promote the consultation with the wider community. The social media
advertising is shown below with two examples, one post from the first week of the

consultation period (left) and another post from the final week of the consultation period

(right).
East Sussex County Council East Sussex County Council
e

ago- @ W 13 August 3t 02:28- @

ur say on the revised bus lane proposals on Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue, It's the final w have yeur say on the revised bus lane proposals on Seaside & St

e R Anthony’s Avenue
Following the 2023 public consultation we listened to all the feedback and comments received Following th on we listened to the feedback and comments received and
and have reviewed the design to address the key concerns that were raised, have reviewed the design to address the concerns that were raised
Check out the new plans and share your views in our online consultation - §J link in the Check out the new plans and share your views in our online consultation - J

comments below!

HAVE HAVE

YOUR

YOUR
SAY

CONSULTATION. EASTSUSSEX GOV.UK
Have your say! Learn more
] Boost this post to reach up to 2080 more people daily if you spend £14 ed bus lane plans for Seaside and St. Anthony's Ave.
O = . 4] Boost this post to reach up to 2282 more people daily if you spend £10. Boost post
1 comment 2 shares
dY Like () Comment (© Send &) Share Qs 41 comments 9 shares

Page 26

12



Social media posts went out on 15th July 2024 marking the launch of the consultation, on
Facebook, ‘X’ and Nextdoor. Additionally, paid ads were scheduled for the first and final
week of the consultation, and organic posts were scheduled throughout the consultation
dates.

Events listings were created on Nextdoor for the three in-person consultation events on
Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, Eastbourne.

As of 8th August 2024, organic Facebook posts had been the most effective form of social
media engagement in terms of audience reach. The most engaged with post was a static
paid Facebook advert, which was sent in the final week of the consultation period. This
advert received a total of 261 link clicks.

Consultation Events

In Person Events

Table 3 sets out the in-person events which were held during the consultation period. The
venues chosen were in close proximity to the proposed scheme - this meant that the local
community, most-likely to be affected by the proposed scheme were given easily
accessible events at which to raise issues and to discuss the proposals with staff.

Table 3: List of Consultation Events

Date and time Location

Saturday, July 20 - 10am to 1pm St Andrew’s Parish Hall, Seaside

Monday, July 22 - 12noon to 3pm St Anthony’s Centre, St Anthony’s Avenue

Tuesday, July 30 - 5pm to 8pm St Andrew’s Parish Hall, Seaside

During the in-person events, feedback was provided by local people both in favour of and
in opposition to the scheme. At each event ESCC officers alongside technical experts from
the WSP design team and WSPs’ engagement team were present to listen to feedback and
answer any questions. At the event on Tuesday July 30, representatives from local bus
operator, Stagecoach also attended to respond to questions about bus services.

Response Analysis & Methodology

DATA ANALYSIS & CODING METHODOLOGY

The consultation exercise generated a large amount of data, including survey responses,
email responses, and other written responses (such as letters of objection, letters of
support, independent surveys, and formal responses from interest groups). A robust
process including the updating of response logs was put in place to manage the volume of
responses received.

Online survey responses were processed directly through the East Sussex Citizen Space
consultation portal, before the data was downloaded into a spreadsheet for analysis.
13

Page 27



Paper copies of the survey were transcribed and inputted into the same spreadsheet
database, before the analysis was undertaken. The results of the analysis are presented in
a series of charts and tables, which follow in subsequent sections of this report.

The survey was largely made up of closed questions, where respondents could select one
or more choices from the options provided. One open-ended question was included,
inviting free-text responses to ensure more qualitative data could be captured. These
responses required further analysis (coding), which is presented in Chapter 5.

Coding free-text responses

For the open-ended questionnaire response and the emails received, a ‘coding’ process
was undertaken to analyse the free-text comments. This involves the identification of
common high-level themes and issues, each of which is assighed a code. Comments were
then read through, with the codes being applied where the issues raised in the comment
were consistent with those in the codeframe. Codes can then be analysed quantitatively
to identify the most frequently recurring areas of comment.

Both the codeframe and the coding underwent a quality assurance check to ensure
consistency and accuracy throughout the process. A full summary of the coding
methodology and codeframe development is presented in Chapter 5.

Technical issues during the consultation period

The below issues were raised by members of the public during the consultation period,
which either resulted in a change being made to the online consultation pages and/or will
be included in the consultation and engagement lessons log for continuous improvement
purposes.

Issue 01 - Date raised: 17/07/2024

How was the issue raised: Comment on Nextdoor post

Issue Description: Message that there was a typo in question 4 on the first page of
questions: “You need to amend question 4, it has two "Somewhat interested”. The fourth
option should have read ‘Somewhat uninterested’.

Issue Resolution: Temporary retraction of the survey, correction of typo in the question,
and republish the consultation. This was completed within a few minutes, keeping
disruption to a minimum. Any user who may have been editing the survey would have been
given an error message, mentioning that the site was temporarily unavailable, and to try
again shortly.

The change was completed at 10:20am on 17/07/2024, meaning that the option
‘Somewhat uninterested’ was missing from the available options for approximately 48
hours. While the options ‘Somewhat interested’ was included twice, regardless of
whichever option was chosen, the responses were combined. (i.e. there was not a split of
responses for each version)

Issue 02 - Date raised: 19/07/2024

How was the issue raised: Comment alert from ‘Contact us online’ Red Light click
14

Page 28



Issue Description: The shortened URL provided on consultation postcards is case-sensitive.
When manually entering the shortened URL (bit.ly/EastbourneBSIP) on iPhone, not using
uppercase where required results in the page not being found. This is not experienced on
desktop browsers or on Android mobile devices.

Issue Resolution: Users were suggested to either use the QR code with their phone to
access the page, or match the case sensitivity when entering the shortened link. In future,
ESCC will plan to use their own URL shortener tool, which is not case-sensitive unlike links
provided by bit.ly.

Issue 03 -Date raised: 02/08/2024

How was the issue raised: Email/complaint form

Issue Description: Complaint details - The webpage keeps renewing and | therefore
cannot give feedback on the proposals for the East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures -
Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue, Eastbourne. I'm sure this is happening for other users too
who will then not be able to offer a response.

Action requested: Fix the website and extend the deadline to allow people to complete
the survey.

Issue Resolution: After looking into the issue and testing with iPhone devices, it appears
that certain iPhones would get caught in an endless loop trying to the load the page. The
cause of this loop was the page loading the embedded PDF document, which would crash
and force the page to reload.

The decision was made to replace the embedded pdf frame with individual png graphics.
This would remove the ability for users to drag and zoom into the graphics for greater
detail, however, improve the load speed of the site, and most importantly fix the issues
seen on iPhones. A link was still provided for those who wanted to open a PDF of the
drawings in another tab, which would allow them to view the scheme design in greater
detail. Again, the online survey was retracted briefly while the updates were made,
before reinstating.

The page was down for approximately 2 minutes while the changes were made, at 3:00pm
on 16/08/2024.

Issue 04 - Date raised: 16/08/2024

How was the issue raised: Email to BSIP Consultation inbox

Issue Description: Incorrect labelling of the westbound section of bus lane as simply ‘St
Anthony’s Avenue’. Seaside is also part of this stretch roughly up to Lidl. As per the email
message: “With reference to the above proposal, it would be helpful to name the roads
correctly. St Anthony's Avenue does not begin at the Seaside Roundabout. It starts by
Lidl. From Seaside Roundabout to Lidl is still Seaside.”

Issue Resolution: This was raised after the consultation had closed. While any breakdown
of the sections of bus lane was always referring to either the eastbound or westbound
sections, in some places the westbound stretch was referred to as ‘St Anthony’s Avenue’
which was inaccurate, as it covers both St Anthony’s Avenue and Seaside

15

Page 29



3. Consultation response profile

The effectiveness of the methods used to publicise the consultation are assessed in this
section, looking at the number of responses received, online reach and engagement with
the materials.

Responses

A total of 2,788 surveys were completed during the consultation period. Of these, a total
of 2,756 responses were completed online, while 32 paper copies were received.

As well as the consultation survey, a further 68 emails were received in the BSIP
Consultation Mailbox (and/or to a member of the project team). In addition, seven letters
were also received during the consultation period, these responses are summarised in
Chapter 7 of the report.

Table 44 below shows a breakdown of the responses received.

Table 4: Breakdown of responses

Method Number
Online survey responses 2,756
Hard copy (paper) survey responses 32
Comments via the Consultation Mailbox 68
Additional responses (letters) 7
TOTAL 2,863

Survey Respondents

The following section presents the demographic breakdown of respondents that submitted
online and hard copy responses to the questionnaire. Demographic data were not captured
for the emails or letter submissions.

Equality Monitoring

In line with ESCC’s Equality Monitoring Form, respondents were asked the following
optional questions.

Age of Respondents

In terms of respondent age, the results indicate that responses to the consultation were
received from across all age groups. The largest group was those between 65-74 years of
age, who comprised a fifth of all respondents. There is a skew towards middle to older age
categories in terms of the consultation response profile.

16

Page 30



Figure 2: Age profile of respondents (n=2787)

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

2%

Under 18

Gender

5%

18-24
years

9%

25-34
years

18%

13%
12%

35-44 45-54 55-64
years years years

20%

5%

65-74 75-84
years years

9%

6%
—

85 years Not Prefer not
and above Answered  to say

When asked about their gender, the majority of respondents were female (46%), with 40%
of the respondents being male and 1% identifying as non-binary. Meanwhile, of the 2,621
respondents that gave an answer to this question - 13% said that they ‘preferred not to
say’ any details about their gender.

Figure 3: Respondent gender (n=2621)

1%

W Female

H Male Non-binary Prefer not to say

As a follow-up question, respondents were asked whether their current gender identity
was the same as the sex they registered at birth. Out of the 2,576 respondents that

answered this question, 81% confirmed that their gender was the same as at birth, 17%
preferred not to say, and 2% said that their gender was not the same (47 respondents in

total).

It should be noted that when given the option to write in for this question, most responses
were to criticise the question being posed, while there were respondents identifying as
pansexual and trans.

Page 31

17



Ethnicity

The ethnic profile of respondents indicated that out of 2,587 respondents that provided an
answer, the dominant ethnic group was White English/Scottish/Welsh/Northern
Irish/British, with 73% of responses. The next largest group were those that preferred not
to give details (18%). The remaining ethnic groups were considerably smaller, with the
largest of these being White Irish, comprising of 3% of respondents. A total of 1% of the
respondents came from the Mixed White and Black Caribbean, Caribbean, Any other White
background and Mixed White and Asian backgrounds. All other remaining ethnic groups
comprised less than 1% of the responses received.

Sexual Orientation

When asked about their sexual orientation, over two-thirds of respondents identified as
‘heterosexual or straight’, while around a quarter of respondents preferred not to give
details of their gender. Gay or Lesbian comprised just under 5% of respondents, while
Bisexual comprised of just over 1% of respondents.

Figure 4: Sexual orientation of respondents (n=2576)

Prefer to self-describe (please write in below) | 0.2%
Prefernotto say || NN 25.2%
Irrelevant = 0.0%
GayorLesbian [l 4.6%
Bisexual || 1.1%

‘Straight’ / Heterosexual |, c5.c%

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0% 80.0%

Religion

A total of 2,572 respondents gave a response when asked about their religion. Of those
that responded to this question, the largest group were Christian (37%) while 35% of
respondents did not have a religious faith. A further 26% of respondents preferred not to
give details of their religious belief. The remaining ethnic groups individually comprised
less than 1% of the total number of responses.

18

Page 32



Table 5: Specified religion of respondents (n=2572)

Method %
Any other religion (please write in below) 0.3%
Buddhist 0.4%
Christian (including Church of England, Catholic, Protestant and all other 37%
Christian denominations)

Hindu 0.3%
Jewish 0.2%
Muslim 0.3%
No religion 35%
Philosophical belief (please write in below) 0.3%
Prefer not to say 26%
Sikh 0.2%

Physical and Mental Health

First respondents were asked whether they had any physical or mental health conditions
or illnesses lasting or expected to last 12 months or more. Those that answered ‘no’ or
‘prefer not to say’, were skipped forward to the next section. Those that answered ‘yes
were given some follow-up questions. As can be seen in the chart below, 10% of
respondents confirmed that they did have such a physical or mental health condition,
while 64% said they didn’t and 26% preferred not to give an answer.

Figure 5:Do you have any physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or expected to last 12 months or more?
(n=2578)

10% 64% 26%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

HYes HNo Prefer not to say

Next, respondents were asked whether any of their conditions or illnesses reduced their
ability to carry out day-to-day activities. Out of the 743 respondents that gave an answer
to this question, 42% said that their condition didn’t affect their day to day activities,
meanwhile 18% said their condition affected them a little, and 10% said their condition
affected them a lot. A total of 29% of the respondents preferred not to say.

19

Page 33



Of those that answered, ‘a little’ or ‘a lot’, a follow-up question asked whether details of
the condition could be given. The results of these responses are shown in the chart below.
Over a third of respondents preferred not to say, while a quarter identified their condition

as a physical impairment. A total of 13% of respondents said they had a long-standing

illness, while 8% reported having a mental health condition and 5% a sensory impairment.

Figure 6: Details of conditions lasting 12 months or more (n=495)

Prefernottosay I  37%
Other (please write in below) [ 4%
Other Developmental Condition W 1%
Neurodivergent condition | 4%
Mental Health condition I S%
Long-standingillness NN 13%
Learning Disability/Difficulty |HIE 2%
Sensory Impairment NN 5%
Physical Impairment I 26%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Carer responsibilities

As shown in the chart below, around two-thirds of respondents do not have carer
responsibilities. A total of 8% of respondents said that they do care for someone.

Figure 7: Do you look after, or give any help or support to, anyone because they have long-term physical or mental health
conditions or illnesses, or problems related to old age? (n=2564)

70% 65%
60%
50%
40%
30% 26%
20%
8%

10%

0%

Yes (please answer partB  No (go to question 9) Prefer not to say (go to NA
below) question 9)

Those respondents that said ‘Yes’ were asked how many hours per week on average they
had these carer responsibilities. As the chart below shows, the largest group of
respondents preferred not to say, while 15% had carer responsibilities for more than 50
hours per week.

Page 34

20



Figure 8: For those with carer responsibilities, how many hours per week does this involve? (n=389)

60%

50% 46%
40%
30%
20% 15% 14%
10% 10%
- l - l I
1% 0.3%
0% -
Daily 50 hours or 351049 hours20to 34 hours10to 19 hours 9hoursa  Prefernotto NA
more a week aweek aweek aweek week or less say

Of those with carer responsibilities that gave an answer (n=405), the largest proportion of
these look after a parent (20%), followed by those looking after a partner or spouse (14%)
and a child with special needs (8%). Six percent looked after another family member, as
did those looking after a friend. Four percent of respondents said something other than
those listed, and 46% preferred not to say. Some of the ‘other’ responses were those that
looked after someone in a professional carer capacity.

Respondents were asked whether they had responsibilities as a parent, carer or guardian
for children or young people under the age of 16. As can be seen in the chart below,
almost two-thirds of respondents said that they did not (63%), while 25% preferred not to
say, and 12% said that they do have this responsibility. One respondent said ‘Not
Applicable’ in response to this question.

Figure 9: Are you a parent/carer/guardian for one or more children or young people under the age of 16? (n=2569)

60%
50%
40%
30% 25%
20% 12%
10%
0.04%
0%
Yes No Prefer not to say NA

Armed Forces Service

Consultation questionnaire respondents were asked whether they were or had previously
served in the Armed Forces (including as a Reservist or part-time service). As shown in the
chart below, 71% of respondents said that they had not undertaken service in the armed
forces, while 5% said that they had, and 24% of respondents preferred not to say.

21

Page 35



Figure 10: Are you currently serving, or have you previously served in the UK Armed Forces (this includes Reservists or part-
time service)? (n=2547)

80%
71%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30% 24%

20%

10% 5%
0.04%
0% N
Yes No Prefer not to say NA

A further question asked whether there was anyone else in the household or family that
had served or was currently serving in the UK Armed Forces. Of the 2,195 responses to this
question, 69% said that they did not, while 8% said that they did and 25% preferred not to
say. As such, the vast majority of respondents did not have a serving or formerly serving
member of the Armed Forces in their household. However, this still accounts for 1 in 12 of
the total respondents to this question.

Respondent Classification

Type of Respondent

Respondents were asked in what capacity they were responding to the questionnaire (total
respondents = 2,788). This question allowed all respondents to select more than one
option. The largest groups of respondents travel by bus along the route (1,729 - or 62% of
all questionnaire respondents) while driving along the route (1,123, 40%) and residents
living close to the proposed changes were also frequently selected option. As mentioned,
it should be noted that a respondent could have potentially selected all three options.

22

Page 36



Figure 11: Type of respondent

Others

Someone who is not local to Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue
but has an interest in the proposed changes

An elected councillor

On behalf of a charity, voluntary or community sector
organisation (VCS)
On behalf of an educational establishment along Seaside &
St Anthony's Avenue
A representative of a local community group or residents’
association along Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue

Owner of a business on Seaside or St Anthony's Avenue

Someone who travels by bus along Seaside & St Anthony's
Avenue

Someone who drives along Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue

Aresident living close to the proposed changes

Breakdown of Respondents by Postcode

| N
332

| 8

| 23

| 6

| 12

| PR

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800

Respondents were asked to provide their postcode, of which 1,051 respondents did so. The
first half of the postcode was used to identify the postcode area that the respondent was
from. Useable postcodes (i.e. complete postcodes) are shown in the table below with the
postcode area included alongside the frequency count. Some typos were encountered
(e.g. BM23 and BM22 - which do not exist and have therefore been added to the BN23 and

BN22 postcodes respectively).

Table 6: Respondents from each postcode area

Postcode Area description Number
BN22 Eastbourne: Roselands and Hampden Park 423
BN23 Eastbourne: Sovereign Harbour and Langney 361
BN21 Eastbourne: Centre and Willingdon Road 141
BN20 Eastbourne: Meads, East Dean and Birling Gap 61
BN27 Hailsham, Herstmonceux 14
BN26 Polegate 13
BN24 Pevensey, Stone Cross, Westham 12
TN39 Bexhill-on-Sea (west) 3
BN2 Brighton: Kemptown, Woodingdean 2
BN3 Hove 2

23

Page 37



Postcode Area description Number

TN33 Battle 2
TN40 Bexhill-on-Sea (east) 2
B21 Birmingham (Handsworth) 1
BN1 Brighton: Central and Falmer 1
BN25 Seaford 1
BN43 Shoreham-by-Sea 1
TN11 Tonbridge (outer) 1
TN21 Heathfield 1
TN23 Ashford 1
TN34 Hastings (Central and North) 1
TN35 Hastings (east) 1

The results shown in the table indicate that the largest number of respondents were from
the Eastbourne area (925 out of 1,051 postcodes) with 88% of respondents from this area.

Consultation Awareness

Respondents were asked how they had heard about the consultation. Respondents could
select more than one option, so the results are shown below as a count.

As shown in the chart, the main form of raising awareness was through word-of-mouth,
with 1,668 respondents stating that this was one of the ways that they had heard about
the consultation taking place. Social media accounted for the method by which 942
respondents heard about the consultation, 472 were made aware via the poster and 395
via a postcard. The press release also informed 318 respondents. Of those that selected
‘other’, sources of information included the BBC website and Stagecoach.

Page 38

24



Figure 12: How did respondents find out about this consultation?

Others . 104

In person consultation event  kKX]
Word of mouth 1668
Press release 318
Email 228
East Sussex County Council website 294

Social media 942

Poster 472

Postcard 395

o

200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800

Current Travel Patterns

Prior to giving feedback on the proposed bus priority schemes, respondents were asked
about their current travel patterns in terms of the modes used and the frequency of use.
Respondents were asked to think about their usual travel habits, and on average, how
often they use certain modes of transport when travelling along and around Seaside & St
Anthony’s Avenue? A total of 15 respondents said that they do not travel along or around
the Seaside & St Anthony’s Avenue area.

Of the respondents that did provide a response to this question, the most frequently used
mode was bus, with 32% of respondents using the bus service five or more times a week,
while 22% used their car (as a driver) at the same level of frequency. Taxi and mobility aids
(e.g. wheelchair or mobility scooter) were the least frequently used modes, with 98% and
96% of respondents saying that they did not use these modes respectively (never use
them).

25

Page 39



100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Figure 13: Frequency of trips by certain modes around Seaside and St Anthony's Avenue

13%
0
14% - 41% 43%
62%
16%
80%
91% 86%
92% ()
6% ° 96% 98%
19%
22%
15%
17%
19% 28%
32%
10%
1%
22% - - - 0- ’
0,
13% 2% m 8% | 4% 12% 1% % 1%
~ B
Bus (n=2529) Private car - as Walking Private car-asa Vanorlorry  Bicycle (incl. e- Taxi-asa Motorbike/  Train (n=2216) Using a mobility Taxi- as driver
driver (n=2506) (n=2401) passenger (n=2181) bike) (n=2247) passenger scooter aid* (n=2194) (n=2154)
(n=2261) (n=2213) (n=2208)

M Five or more times aweek M Three to four times a week One to two times a week Less frequently Never use

*e.g. wheelchair or mobility scooter

Feedback on the schemes

Respondents were asked to give their view on how important improving public transport
infrastructure and availability on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue was to them. In total,
2,776 respondents provided an answer to this question - with a very large proportion
agreeing that this was very important (46%) or somewhat important (17%). The combined
total considering such improvements important (63%) vastly exceeds those considering it
unimportant (23%), indicating that those responding to the consultation recognise the
importance of the improvements to public transport in the area.

26

Page 40



Figure 14: Importance of improving public transport infrastructure and availability on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

| Very important Somewhat important Neutral Somewhat unimportant ~ m Notimportant

4. Feedback on the Proposals

Support for elements of proposals

Respondents were firstly asked to give their level of support for the elements proposed as
part of the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue proposals. These elements were as follows:

= Eastbound bus lane between Windermere Crescent and Seaside Roundabout
= Westbound bus lane between Langney Roundabout and Seaside Roundabout
= New signal controlled crossings

= Retaining existing parking spaces where possible

= Introducing new parking spaces

The chart below shows the level of support among respondents to the consultation
questionnaire in terms of the five elements listed above. As can be seen from the results
in the chart - the proposed elements overall had a greater proportion of support than
opposition (42-60% support compared with 19-38% opposed).

In the case of the eastbound bus lane (56%), westbound bus lane (55%) and new signal
controlled crossings (60%) - the level of support and strongly support responses represents
over half of the respondents - considerably more than the opposing attitudes to those
elements.

For the remaining two elements (new parking spaces and retaining existing parking spaces)
the level of support does not exceed 50% - though the proportions are considerably greater
than the opposing respondents. It is also noteworthy that there is a significantly larger
proportion of neutral ‘neither agree nor disagree’ responses compared with the other
three elements. ‘Don’t know’ responses also feature, to a far greater extent than for the
other elements.

Overall, the proportion of respondents supporting the elements of the proposals for
Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue is greater than the proportion opposing - signifying public
support among consultation respondents.

27

Page 41



Figure 15: Level of support for elements of the Seaside and St Anthony's Avenue proposals

Retaining existing parking spaces where

0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
Sossible (1-2786) SV 1% 31% 9% FLI) 9%

Introducing new parking spaces (n=2785) 30% 14% 32% 7%%

New signal controlled crossings (n=2784) 39% 21% 16% 4 1%

Westbound bus lane between Langney 0 5 e 0 0
Roundabout and Seaside Roundabout (n=2787) £ B 7% 7% E) 0-3%
Eastbound bus lane between Windermere

0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
Crescent and Seaside Roundabout (n=2787) RO R 7% 7% el 0.3%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
| Strongly Support m Support = Neither support nor oppose = Oppose B Strongly Oppose & Don't Know

Support for proposals overall

The next consultation question asked respondents to what extent they support the
proposals overall - understanding that the aim is to “improve journey times, reduce bus
delays, reduce congestion for all vehicles and improve crossing points on Seaside and St
Anthony’s Avenue.”

As can be seen in the figure below, the level of support for the proposal exceeds the level
of opposition 56% support (combined values) vs 37% oppose (combined values) with 7%
neither supporting nor opposing the proposals.

Therefore it is clear that there are a greater proportion of supporting respondents - the
attitudes are somewhat polarised, with a not-insignificant level of opposition.
Understanding what the elements that respondents are opposed to will be valuable, and
the open-ended response analysis presented in Chapter 6 will give more detailed insights
into the elements that respondents are in favour of.

Figure 16: Level of support for proposals overall (n=2,788)

41% 15% 7% 6% 31% 0.4%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
W Strongly support Support Neither support not oppose Oppose | Strongly oppose Don't know

Impact of proposals on bus services and congestion

The final feedback questions on the proposals asked respondents whether they felt that
the proposals would be beneficial in terms of bus service operation and road congestion,

28

Page 42



on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue respectively. Respondents could select whether they
felt it would improve this (better) or make this worse.

The results in Figure 17 indicate that the views on the impact on congestion of the
proposals on Seaside are largely split. While 30% felt they would be better, 32% felt they
would be worse. Overall the perception of an improvement (better and slightly better)
exceeded the proportion perceiving that congestion would be worse overall (worse and
slightly worse) was marginally greater (41% vs 36% respectively). However, this is not
clear-cut in terms of conclusion - indicating that respondents hold a varied range of views.
Just over a fifth of respondents consider that there will be no impact and congestion
levels will remain about the same (22%).

In terms of the impact of the proposals on bus services on Seaside, the view was far more
clear cut with over half of respondents considering the impact would be that bus services
would be better (54%) or slightly better (8%) with the proposed bus priority measures- a
combined improvement being perceived by 62% of respondents - while only 17% of
respondents felt the impact on bus services would lead to them being worse (overall
combined score). Twenty percent of respondents feel that bus services would remain the
same as they are currently, with no improvement or worsening of services.

Figure 17: Perceived impact on congestion and bus services on Seaside

Seaside-Road congestion (n=2788) 11% 22% 4% 32%

Seaside-Bus services (n=2786) 54% 8% 20% 29 15%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 9S0% 100%

M Better Slightly Better Same Slightly Worse m Worse

The same question was posed for St Anthony’s Avenue, and the results have a significant
similarity in terms of the proportions. As for Seaside, respondents were less certain about
the impact of the proposals on road congestion - with a broad split of those considering
that congestion would be better (41% overall) versus those that consider congestion will be
worse (37% combined). As for Seaside, 22% of respondents felt there would be no impact
and the congestion would remain about the same.

As for the impact on bus services operating on St Anthony’s Avenue, the same effect is
clear with there being no significant differences in the perceived likelihood of
improvement or worsening. Overall, the prevailing attitude was that bus services would be
improved as a result of the proposals (62% overall) with a far smaller proportion feeling
that bus services would be worse (16%), and 21% of respondents considering that they
would be about the same.

29

Page 43



Figure 18: Perceived impact on congestion and bus services on St Anthony's Avenue

St. Anthony's Avenue-Road congestion (n=2788) 11% 22% 5%
St. Anthony's Avenue-Bus services (n=2786) 8% 21% v 14%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

M Better Slightly Better Same Slightly Worse  m Worse

Overall, for both Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, similar proportions of respondents felt
that congestion would be made better or worse - suggesting the perceived impact was
unclear. Meanwhile, for bus service improvements, a far larger proportion of respondents
felt that bus services would be made better on St Anthony’s Avenue and Seaside, giving
clear indication that consultation respondents feel there would be an improvement.

In response to the perceptions that the bus priority measures might have a detrimental
impact on congestion on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, additional micro-simulation
modelling has been carried out.

Table 7 below provides a tabulated summary of the attitudes to the proposals for Seaside
and St Anthony’s Avenue. As shown by the Net Support Score, all the elements of the
proposals and the proposals overall received a greater proportion of supporting responses
compared to opposing responses.

Table 7: Key figures of support / opposition to the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue proposals

Strongly Support Neither Oppose Strongly Don’t Net

support support oppose  know support
nor oppose score*
Retaining 31% 11% 31% 9% 10% 9% +23%
existing parking
spaces where
possible
(n=2786)
Introducing new  30% 14% 32% 7% 14% 4% +23%
parking spaces
(n=2785)
New signal 39% 21% 16% 4% 18% 1% +38%
controlled
crossings
(n=2784)
30

Page 44



Strongly Support
support

Westbound bus 39% 16%
lane between

Langney

Roundabout and

Seaside

Roundabout

(n=2787)

Eastbound bus 39% 17%
lane between

Windermere

Crescent and

Seaside

Roundabout

(n=2787)

Level of support  41% 15%
for proposals
overall (n=2788)

*Net support score: (Strongly support + support) -

Neither
support
nor oppose

7%

7%

7%

Page 45

Oppose Strongly

7%

7%

6%

(Strongly oppose + oppose)

oppose

31%

31%

31%

Don’t
know

<1%

<1%

<1%

Net
support
score*

+17%

+18%

+19%

31



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

5. Cross-tabulations

As part of the analysis, a selection of cross-tabulations were performed to identify
whether there were any impacts on attitudes towards the proposed scheme, based on
respondent characteristics.

In this section, the following cross-tabulations are presented - which consider variations in
the level of support for the proposals overall, by the following variables:

= Residents living close to the proposed changes vs other respondents

= Respondents using bus along Seaside & St Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

= Respondents cycling along Seaside & St Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

= Owners of businesses on Seaside or St Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

= Local community representatives vs other respondents

= Older respondents (65 years and above) vs other respondents (aged 18-64 years)
= Carers vs non-carers

= Parents vs non-parents

Overall level of support for proposals: residents living close to the proposed changes vs
other respondents

The results in the chart below show that the level of opposition to the proposals are
significantly greater among those living nearby, compared with those that do not (72%
combined oppose vs 48% combined oppose respectively).

Support is also greater among those respondents that do not live close to the proposed
changes. This is evidence of a proximity effect on attitudes which affects the level of
support.

Figure 19: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs residents living close to proposals

6%
10%

11% | Strongly support
8% Support
10% Neither support not oppose

Oppose
m Strongly oppose

0.2% 1% Don't know

Aresident living close to the proposed Other responses (n=590)
changes (n=569)

Residents

Overall level of support for proposals: respondents that travel by bus along Seaside & St
Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

Those respondents that travel by bus along Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue are
significantly more supportive of the proposals overall (38% strongly support vs 15%) while

Page 46



those that are not bus users were more strongly opposed to the proposals (65% strongly
oppose vs 30%).

Bus users are therefore most likely to be in favour of the proposals compared to other
respondents, which is perhaps unsurprising as they are beneficiaries of the proposals for
improved bus infrastructure.

Figure 20: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs bus use

;i/o

5%
11%

B Strongly support
et Support
10% Neither support not oppose
8% Oppose
m Strongly oppose
S0 Don't know
0.2% 0.5%
Someone who travels by bus along Other responses (n=666)
Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue (n=493)
Bus User

Overall level of support for proposals: respondents that cycle along Seaside & St
Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

There does not appear to be a significant influence on attitudes to proposals depending on
whether the respondent cycles on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue. This indicates that
cycle behaviour does not have a significant effect on level of overall support for the

scheme.

Figure 21: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs cycling

o
13:;/’ 15: H Strongly support
10% 8% Support
Neither support not oppose
Oppose
0% W Strongly oppose
0 N 0.2% Don't know
Cyclists (n=226) Non-cyclists (n=618)

Cyclists

33

Page 47



Overall level of support for proposals: Owners of businesses on Seaside or St Anthony’s
Ave vs other respondents

Business owners are less favourable in terms of attitudes towards the proposals. There was

a very large proportion of business owners who responded that strongly opposed the
proposals (88%) which is significantly greater than the proportion among non-business
owners (49% strongly oppose). It should also be noted that no business owners that
responded are supportive of the proposals.

This is very clear indication that business owners have less favourable attitudes to the
proposals, compared with other respondents. Please note the relatively small number of

respondents that own businesses in the sample (33 respondents, 3% of total respondents).

Figure 22: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs business ownership

3%

6%
25%

9%

7% W Strongly support
0,

10% Support

Neither support not oppose

Oppose
m Strongly oppose
3% 0.3%
Don't know
Owner of a business on Seaside or St Other responses (n=1126)

Anthony's Avenue (n=33)

Business Owners

Overall level of support for proposals: Local community representatives vs other
respondents

There does not appear to be a significant effect on the level of support for proposals

depending on whether the respondent has a community representative role. There is a
slightly lower proportion of supportive responses, but this appears to be a weak effect.
Please note the small sample size of local community representatives (8 respondents).

Figure 23: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs community groups

13%
13% 10%

B Strongly support
Support
Neither support not oppose

0.3% Oppose

W Strongly oppose
A representative of a local community Other responses (n=1151)

group or residents’ association along
Seaside & St Anthony's Avenue (n=8)

Don't know

Community Groups

Page 48

34



Overall level of support for proposals: Older respondents (65 years and above) vs other
respondents (aged 18-64 vears)

When cross-tabulating the overall level of support for proposals, there appears to be
stronger views among those in the 18-64 years age category, compared to those in the 65
years and above category. The level of strongly support and strongly oppose responses
appears to be greater in the 18 - 64 group. Overall, the level of opposing views towards
the proposals appears to be marginally greater in the 65 and above category (64%
combined oppose, compared to 60% in the 18-64 years age group). However, it should be
noted that the effect is weak.

Figure 24: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs respondent age

18%

25%

8%

9% 10% | Strongly support

6% gly supp

8% 17% Support
Neither support not oppose
Oppose

52% 9

T m Strongly oppose
0.4% 0.3% Don't know
18-64 years (n=719) 65 years and above (n=313)
Elderly

Overall level of support for proposals: Carers vs non-carers

Respondents that confirmed they have carer responsibilities are more likely to oppose the

proposals, with 65% strongly opposing, compared to 50% among other respondents that

answered ‘no’ to the question of whether they have carer responsibilities. Overall, carers

appear to be less supportive of the proposals when compared to non-carer respondents.

Figure 25: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs carer responsibilities

3% —

6%
13% 9%
7%
11% Support

B Strongly support

Neither support not oppose
Oppose
m Strongly oppose

Don't know
0.1%

Yes (n=147) No (n=752)

Carer

Page 49

35



Overall level of support for proposals: Parents vs non-parents

Among respondents that are parents, there is some evidence of a greater amount of
opposition to the proposals. Among those that said they have parental responsibilities the
proportion strongly opposing the proposals is 64%, compared to 48% among those that
responded that they do not. Meanwhile, those that responded ‘no’ also have a larger
proportion of strong support (24% vs 16%). There is therefore some indication that among
consultation respondents, parents are more likely to oppose and less likely to support the
proposed improvements on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue.

Figure 26: Cross tabulation - Overall support for proposals vs parents

16%
24%
5%

9%

7%
8% W Strongly support

7%
12% Support

Neither support not oppose
Oppose
m Strongly oppose

Don't know

0.5% 0.1%

Yes (n=204) No (n=724)
Parents

In summary, there is some evidence of a difference in attitudes towards the proposals
among the following respondent groups:

= Residents living close to the proposed changes vs other respondents

= Respondents using bus along Seaside & St Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

= Owners of businesses on Seaside or St Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents

= Older respondents (65 years and above) vs other respondents (aged 18-64 years)
= Carers vs non-carers

= Parents vs non-parents

Meanwhile, among the following groups, there is little or no indication that their
characteristics (respondent type) have an influence on their attitudes to the proposals:

= Respondents cycling along Seaside & St Anthony’s Ave vs other respondents
= Local community representatives vs other respondents

36

Page 50



6. Free Text Survey Responses

Summary of free text survey responses

In the consultation questionnaire, a single question asked respondents to provide a
comment in an open-ended format. This question related to giving an explanation as to
why the respondents supported or opposed the elements of the proposal for Seaside and St
Anthony’s Avenue. As this was an open-ended response with free-text answers, it was
necessary to convert this qualitative data into quantified data to determine the relative
importance of issues in the responses (denoted by frequency - i.e. the number of
respondents that raised the issue in their response).

Approach to coding

In order to convert the free text responses into a numeric (quantitative) format from
which it would be possible to make meaningful conclusions, a coding approach was
followed.

A codeframe was developed to capture the issues expressed in the free text responses to
the open-ended question. Each thematic issue raised was assigned to a structure within
the codeframe based on sentiment - support, oppose, suggest, and concern. The
sentiments expressed in each comment were assigned numeric codes. These numeric
codes were then assigned to the comment, reflecting the issues raised in the free text
response.

As a code could only be assigned to a comment once, in combination, the analysis gives a
frequency count of the most prevalent issues raised by number of respondents.

Once the coding of the responses was completed, a frequency count was undertaken on
the data to determine what issues had been raised most frequently in the free text
responses.

Results of the coding

Upon completion of the coding process, which included quality checking on the responses -
such as whether the correct codes were being applied to the free text and checking for
any mistyped codes that would not register properly in the analysis, the attention turned
to building a frequency table.

This table counts the number of times a specific code appeared within the 1,042
comments - remembering that a code could only be applied once to a comment. As such,
the number of times a code appears is the number of respondents that raised the specific
issue captured in that code. The results presented in the section which follows are
separated by sentiment and the topic area of the codes.

It should be noted that the 1,042 open-ended comments were received to both the online
and hard copy (paper) versions of the questionnaire. Both types of comments have been
subject to the same coding approach.

37

Page 51



Supportive comments

The first batch of codes related to responses where a comment had been made which was
supportive of the proposals. The table below shows the frequency (i.e. number of
respondents, remembering that a code can only be used once per response) at which these
issues were raised in the comments. As such, it gives an insight into the thoughts behind
the attitudes towards the proposals.

The results shown in the table indicate that the most frequently occurring comment was
to support the proposals (97 respondents), followed by a belief that the changes could
make bus journey times quicker (41 respondents). Improved reliability (38) and improved
traffic flow (32) were also mentioned, with 28 respondents believing that the proposed
changes will encourage greater use of bus services. Support for the parking proposals
features, but at a lower level (five respondents).

Table 8: Frequency table of coded free text responses - Supportive comments

Support the proposals / good idea / no concerns 97
Support, plans will make bus journey times quicker 41
Support, plans will make bus journey times more reliable (i.e. on time / fewer delays) 38
Support, proposals will improve traffic flow for all vehicles 32
Support, plans will increase bus use / more people will use the bus 28
Support, will be better for the environment / better air quality 21
Support, proposals will enhance safety for pedestrians and road users 13
Support, proposals will benefit the economy 8
Support the proposals, but they don’t go far enough (to prioritise busses) 8
Support, parking proposals make sense / plenty of parking available 5

Unsupportive comments

The next set of codes were those where the respondents did not support the proposals or
made comments that felt there would either be no impact at best, and a negative impact
at worst.

The table below indicates that the main issue for not being in support of the proposals is a
belief that the proposals will lead to more traffic congestion and in some cases, will make
existing issues worse (273 respondents). These existing issues were identified as slow
traffic along Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, with the reasons for this including large
amounts of traffic using the route, traffic being slowed down by buses stopping, and
traffic queues forming when waiting to enter Seaside Roundabout. The presence of large
retail in this area was also seen as a key driver of traffic, together with school-related
traffic.

38

Page 52



This can be seen in the context of the proposals to introduce bus priority infrastructure as
part of the roadspace reallocation.

The next most frequently mentioned issue in respondent comments was to oppose the loss
of car parking spaces, which included that there already isn't enough on-street parking
provision in the area (195 respondents mentioning this).

Comments from 108 respondents also believed that the money being spent on the scheme
is too much and/or that it will not deliver on the scheme aims.

Suggestions to spend money on other transport are covered in the ‘Suggestions’ section of
the codeframe (where 47 respondents mentioned spending the money on road
maintenance instead) which was often linked with this code. Over one hundred
respondents (101) felt that the proposals would make no difference and weren’t needed,
while an issue relating to the physical width of the road was mentioned by 100
respondents, with this constraining road capacity. This code also included concerns about
the loss of right turn lanes due the effective ‘narrowing’ of the available roadspace.

Table 9: Frequency table of coded free text responses - Unsupportive comments

Proposals will lead to more traffic congestion / make it worse 273
Oppose loss of parking spaces / not enough spaces / loss of space for loading 195
Proposals will cost too much / be too expensive / waste of money 108
Proposals won’t make any difference / aren’t needed etc. 101
The road isn’t wide enough / turning vehicles will cause delays (incl. removal of right turns) 100
Do not support the proposals (nothing else said) 68
Proposals will be worse for the environment / worse air quality 47
No benefit to me / don’t use bus services 20
Active travel proposals (cycle routes) don’t link up / disconnected / lack of access points 9

Proposals aren’t as good as before / previous proposals were better 4

Oppose removal of shared walking and cycling provision from previous proposal 4

Suggestions / Suggested changes to layout

Some respondents made suggestions to amend the proposals, and these were captured in
the next set of codes. These suggestions made in the comments were for other matters to
be considered, generally to improve the proposal or to increase the resulting benefits.

One suggestion stood out in comments in comparison to the others, this being the
suggestion to modify bus stops to reduce queues, which was mentioned by 129
respondents. This element related to the use of bus stops where the bus will stop in the
main carriageway while picking up / dropping off passengers. In doing so, the bus causes a
39

Page 53



bottleneck to other traffic, as vehicles behind need to negotiate an overtake of the bus. It
was therefore suggested that recessed bus stops (or layby bus stops) would be a better
design as this would allow buses to stop, without interrupting the flow of traffic.

A further key design suggestion was that the crossing islands used by pedestrians to cross
the road, should be retained and should not be removed. This was mentioned by 53
respondents. A linked details sheet allows for further examination of the specific details of
this request, such as the location. One respondent said that they were concerned about
the removal of the safety island in the middle of the zebra crossing located by Finmere
Road and therefore did not want to see its removal.

Next, 47 respondents suggested that the priority should be improvements to road
infrastructure, for example using money to maintain and repair roads in the area.
Meanwhile, 27 respondents suggested that the money used for the scheme should be spent
‘elsewhere’ but did not give details as to where or what this should be spent on.

A further 17 respondents suggested prioritisation of repairs and maintenance of cycle
infrastructure, while 17 also suggested providing improved / additional crossings for
pedestrians and cyclists - which included some comments asking for reinstatement of
crossings from the 2023 proposal (i.e. Lottbridge Drove). As this code included a details
sheet, it is possible to see where these locations are, as summarised below:

= Suggest a crossing of Leslie Street

= Suggest a cycle route crossing the St Anthony’s Avenue arm of Seaside roundabout,
so cyclists have a route along Lottbridge Drove using a toucan crossing (2
mentions).

= Reinstate the cycle crossing on the roundabout (on Lottbridge Drove as per
previous proposal)

= The St Andrews Church crossing needs to be updated as the existing zebra crossing
is not maintained.

= Suggest an extra pedestrian crossing to the south of seaside roundabout

Table 10: Frequency table of coded free text responses - Suggestions comments
Suggestions comment codes Count

Suggest modifying bus stops to reduce queues (i.e. need layby bus stops / get rid of 'stand

out' bus stops) 129
Suggest that crossing islands shouldn’t be removed (See Details Sheet) 53
Suggest improvements to road infrastructure (maintenance, repairs etc.) 47
Money should be spent elsewhere (no details) 27
Suggest improvements to cycle routes (maintenance, provision etc.) 17

Suggest providing improved / additional crossings for pedestrians and cyclists (See Details

Sheet) 17
Suggest making changes to Tesco / Seaside roundabout (See Details Sheet) 17
Suggest implementing parking controls / restricted parking (See Details Sheet) 16

40

Page 54



Suggest improvements to walking routes (maintenance, provision etc.) 14

Suggest more parking space is needed 14
Suggest traffic signals need to be added to proposal (See Details Sheet) 13
Bus improvement proposals should be in another area (See Details Sheet) 8
Suggest that cyclists should be able to use bus lanes 4
Suggest bus lane should be eastbound, not westbound. 3
Suggest providing allocated parking for residents (See Details Sheet) 1

The remaining ‘Details Sheet’ summaries for the suggestion codes can be seen in Appendix
C of this report. These give additional location-specific detail from respondents above the
code which identifies the issue thematically.

Suggested bus improvements

This small sub-category captured comments where respondents had made suggestions to
make changes to the bus services specifically. While this is somewhat out of scope in
relation to the proposals, this is a related issue and has therefore been considered.

In terms of the most mentioned issues in the comments, 30 respondents asked to see more
reliable bus services (i.e. fewer cancellations). While 25 respondents requested
improvements to bus services (no details given) and 15 respondents suggested more
frequent bus services are needed. Cheaper bus fares were mentioned by 10 respondents,
while only two respondents mentioned changes to the operating hours of buses - one
asking for buses that start earlier in the morning and one that asked for bus services that
run later into the evening. Four respondents suggested that low emission buses should be
purchased, which included new electric buses.

Table 11: Frequency table of coded free text responses - Suggestions for bus services comments

Suggest more reliable buses (i.e. fewer cancelled services) 30
Suggest improvements to bus services (no details) 25
Suggest more frequent bus services 15
Suggest cheaper bus fares 10
Suggest investment in low emission buses 4
Suggest buses that start earlier 1
Suggest buses that finish later 1
Concerns
41

Page 55



The concern codes differ from the unsupportive comments, as it is possible that
respondents may be worried about the impact of the scheme, without necessarily being
opposed to it. Within this section of the codeframe were codes which related to concerns
about potential negative impacts on certain groups, such as the elderly, those with
mobility impairments, as well as children and young people.

A considerable number of respondents mentioned that they were concerned about the
impact of the changes to parking on their livelihood and local business. This was
mentioned by 227 respondents, despite the changes to the proposed design retaining more
car parking spaces than the initial design as proposed for the 2023 BSIP consultation. The
impact of changes to parking provision was considered by 60 respondents to potentially
lead to more parking on side streets as vehicles sought alternative parking locations. Many
of these respondents were concerned about increased pressure on the on-street parking in
these locations, as well as the effect of the increased parking on the roadway. These
locations mostly referred to increased parking on ‘side roads and side streets’, especially
those located near to the proposals, where it was felt parked vehicles might be displaced.
Some specific street names were mentioned by several respondents in their comments,
including Wartling Road, Myrtle Road and Latimer Road.

Among ‘special characteristic’ groups, the most prevalent concern was that the scheme
would have an adverse impact on wheeled users, which included those in mobility
scooters, wheelchairs as well as parents pushing prams or buggies. In the comments
received, this mostly related to loss of car parking and greater difficulty in finding spaces
for those that need it nearby to access homes or services. Meanwhile, some respondents
also commented in relation to the adverse effect of the loss of the island crossings, which
were considered useful for those with mobility problems. This was mentioned in
comments by 42 respondents. Meanwhile, 40 respondents were more generally concerned
about the impact of the scheme on all users and felt that this may cause a safety risk - for
example to people trying to cross the road.

The impact of the scheme on children was mentioned by 37 respondents, with some
concerns about the impact of the new design on the safety of children and young people in
the area. While some of the comments were general, the concerns related to access to
facilities (i.e. drop offs) for those with buggies or toddlers, that have more difficulty with
greater walking distances. A further issue raised related to the loss of the crossing islands
and fears that the road will become harder for children to cross. Similarly, 37 respondents
were concerned about an adverse impact of the scheme on older people. In the case of
older people, the concerns expressed in the comments related to access becoming more
difficult and inconvenient, due to loss of parking (i.e. needing to travel further from
parking spaces). Removal of the crossing islands were also mentioned in some comments,
with concerns expressed that this would make it more difficult for elderly people to cross
roads in the local area. Some further comments were received relating to concerns about
impacts on access - for example making school pick up and drop off difficult (28
respondents), while 24 respondents were concerned about the impact of the scheme on
emergency vehicles when they are on call outs or for ambulances picking up and dropping
off people from the area.

42

Page 56



Table 12: Frequency table of coded free text responses - Concerned comments

Concerned that lack of parking may impact on livelihood / local businesses 227

Concerned that lack of parking may cause more parking on side streets 60

Concerned about potential impact on wheeled users (wheelchairs / buggies / mobility

scooters) 42
Concerned that the proposals may reduce safety (i.e. dangerous for people crossing etc.) 40
Concerned about potential impact on young people / children 37
Concerned about potential impact on elderly users / older people 34
Concerned that lack of parking may make school pick-up/drop-off difficult 28
Concerned about impact of scheme on emergency services (police, ambulance, fire etc.) 24

Concerned that proposed changes to road layout will lead to rat-running (i.e. diverting to

alternative routes) 23
Concerned that construction will be disruptive (noise, dust etc.) 22
Concerned about impact on cyclists (e.g. lack of space / proximity of vehicles etc.) 20

Concerned that lack of parking may cause inconsiderate parking (e.g. blocking footways,

driveways etc.) 10
Concern that proposals will devalue property 4
Concerned about impact on access to medical facilities (hospital / GP / doctors) 2

Other codes

The remaining codes were those that did not fit neatly into the other categories, and
some that were elements outside of the proposals specifically - for example consultation
events and issues such as driver behaviour. One code is also included to capture non-
relevant comments, for instance where a respondent has raised an issue which is not part
of the consultation or has given an ambiguous answer which cannot be interpreted in a
useful way.

A total of 22 respondents felt that the proposals being consulted on were penalising
motorists and making it more difficult for those using cars in the area. Meanwhile, 21
respondents made comments which were critical of East Sussex County Council (ESCC). A
further 13 respondents were sceptical of the consultation exercise taking place, feeling
that it was a pointless box-ticking exercise, which would have no influence on the
decision-making process (i.e. the decision has already been made).

A further 11 comments were considered ‘non-relevant’ which included issues outside the
scope of the consultation. Two comments were also categorised with the ‘non-relevant’

43

Page 57



code as it could not be determined whether their comments were supportive of the
proposals or unsupportive, and there was little detail as to their view. Issues with driver
behaviour (e.g. speeding and aggressive driving) were mentioned by eight respondents.
Meanwhile six respondents criticised elements of the consultation, which included being
unaware that this was taking place (i.e. poorly advertised), plus issues with timings of
events and the consultation itself.

Table 13: Frequency table of coded free text responses - Other comments

Other comment codes Count
Proposals are penalising car drivers / war on the motorist 22
Criticism of East Sussex County Council 21
Consider consultation is pointless (will go ahead regardless / box ticking exercise) 13
Non-relevant comment 11
Issues with driver behaviour (speeding / aggressive driving etc.) 8
Criticism of consultation (events, timings, venues, lack of advertising etc.) 6
Criticism of consultation materials (maps, website, questionnaire) 3

[EEN

Issues with pedestrian behaviour (not using crossings, not waiting for crossing signals etc.)

Amongst the comments received, the frequency of ‘unsupportive comments’ exceeded the
number of comments that were supportive of the proposal. This contrasts with the level of
support for the proposal overall, in which the level of support exceeds the level of
opposition (56% support - combined values) vs 37% oppose (combined values).

It is therefore likely that those respondents that chose to leave a comment are those that
were unsupportive of the proposals, while those that support the proposals for Seaside and
St Anthony’s Avenue felt that they needed to add no further detail beyond their support.
The results of the coding of the open-ended response question should note this fact when
making conclusions.

44

Page 58



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

/. Emails and Written Responses

This section of the report summarises the responses that were received outside of the
consultation questionnaire. Written responses have been summarised thematically, while
emails received have also been coded to provide a summary of the main points raised in
email correspondence.

Correspondence received

A total of seven letters were received during the consultation period. These have been
summarised below for reporting purposes, but are being considered in full by the County
Council as part of the consultation engagement. Where letters have been received from
individuals, the report does not identify these in compliance with GDPR guidance on data
protection.

St Anthony’s Centre submission - 17th August 2024

= Oppose revised bus priority measures for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue

= Object on the grounds of the impact on access to the centre

= Object to the reduction in car parking spaces along St Anthony’s Avenue

= Currently no accessible on-site parking, but on-street parking next to centre allows
access for those with mobility issues. Proposed bus lane will remove this parking.

= Risk that worsening access will mean some users will cease to use the centre.

= Loss of parking will also affect access to the centre for tradespeople, for
maintenance and upkeep etc.

= Users of the Community Centre will struggle to park anywhere nearby given the
significant reduction in available parking spaces as proposed.

= Suggest bus lane is moved to opposite side of road or alternatively a vehicle
crossover and remodelling to the front of the premises to permit access.

= Removal of the crossing islands creates a safety issue for bus users trying to cross
the road - with potential increase in accidents.

= Suggest moving the existing bus stop westward towards St Anthony’s Avenue, closer
to the existing pedestrian crossing.

Bespoke Cycle Group 5th August 2024

= Support the eastbound bus lane on Seaside and westbound bus lane on St Anthony’s
Avenue.

= Concerns around width of eastbound bus lane (3 metres) which is not LTN1/20
compliant for cyclists - this needs to be considered in detailed design.

= Risks identified with eastbound bus lane - as buses would not be able to overtake
cyclists using the bus lane (leading to delays). Cyclists using the lane for general
traffic will be at safety risk due to being sandwiched between vehicles. Cyclists
may also be unsure if they can use the bus lane and attempt to use the footway
instead.

=  Westbound bus lane (St Anthony’s Avenue) appears compliant with LTN1/20
standards.

= Bespoke welcomes the revised proposal removing the shared-use paths on Seaside
Road (previous concerns on conflicts between pedestrians and cyclists).

Page 59



Changes to design of Seaside Roundabout now represents a significant gap in the
infrastructure of NCN21. Support crossing elements of 2023 proposal.

The proposed toucan crossing on Seaside Road does not connect to any designated
shared use paths, requiring dismount. Bespoke recommends converting the
proposed crossing over the St Anthony’s Avenue arm to a toucan crossing,
reintroducing the shared-use paths on the approach to this junction as in the 2023
BSIP proposals.

Langney Roundabout previously included cycle provision in the 2023 proposal - this
has been removed in the revised proposal, which Bespoke does not support. At a
minimum, a shared use cycling connection should be provided between Horsey
Sewer cycle route, and the proposed bus lane.

Bespoke requests reinstatement of the bus priority infrastructure originally
proposed for the Seaside Road / Whitley Road junction - the removal of this lost an
opportunity for an Early Release Bus Light for cyclists.

Unclear on use of Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) cameras where
informal parking is located between footway and bus lane (e.g. Alexandra Arms).

Councillor, Eastbourne Borough Council

Appreciate efforts made to find compromise in the design of the scheme and
understand the need to improve infrastructure, without which people will not use
the bus service.

Due to the controversial nature of the proposals, a Road Safety Assessment (as has
been conducted in other areas) would have been advantageous and gone some way
to ease the concern of businesses, residents, and stakeholders.

Suggest that East Sussex County Council should undertake a Road Safety Assessment
as a condition of implementing the bus lane.

RSA would mean residents and businesses can be reassured of its viability, and
ensure that the goal to ease congestion in Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, whilst
improving bus times, is achievable.

Resident of Seaside

Oppose proposals due to loss of safe crossing places (islands)

Increase to three lanes between roundabouts, will make it more difficult for
pedestrians to cross, and will increase air and noise pollution.

Westbound bus lane will make it more difficult to access driveways.

Proposed 24 hour bus lane will mean vehicles will not be able to stop on the
westbound side between Langney and Seaside roundabouts - including food and
shopping deliveries, building and scaffolding lorries, emergency gas repair.
Removal of parking bays on westbound carriageway will mean bus lane is right up
to pavement edge - causing danger to pedestrians and children walking to nearby
schools on narrow pavements on Seaside.

Loss of parking on westbound side means residents/visitors will need to park on
eastbound side and cross the road (dangerous if unloading vehicles). Residents
already compete for parking spaces with commuters and businesses.

Negative safety impact of loss of parking for pick-up and drop-off at care homes
(Queen Alexandra and New Derby House).

Local geology on Seaside / St Anthony’s means that heavy passing vehicles cause
houses to shake - made worse by the bus lane.

46

Page 60



Seaside roundabout is a poor design, with no changes proposed:

o Difficulty turning right from Lottbridge Drove

o Difficulty turning right from Seaside / St Anthony’s Ave.
Bus stop build out between Fort Road and Myrtle Road causes delays - removing this
would help decrease congestion.
Low levels of bus use mean the scheme is not good value for money to taxpayers.
Bus lane is 24 hour, but no buses after 23:30 - seems unnecessary and bus lane
should only be used at peak times (suspect this is to boost income through fines).
Bus journey time savings do not appear accurate (lower than in BSIP overview)
Alternative of fitting selective vehicle detection technology (traffic light priority)
to current fleet of buses would speed up journeys, meaning bus lane isn’t needed.
Construction work will be disruptive to residents (especially at nighttime).
Need to decarbonise contrasts with 100% diesel bus fleet (some 20 years old and
without emissions reduction technologies) increasing risk to respiratory health due
to the buses being closer to homes, schools and the pavement. Bus fleet should be
replaced with zero-emission vehicles.
Query whether any assessment undertaken of pollution/environmental impact of
bus lanes.
Concerned removal of right turn lanes will cause congestion.
Consider the bus lane will have a negative impact on property prices in the area.

Informal us lane survey undertaken (8" and 12" August 2024)

A respondent submitted a report of 50 informal surveys that they had carried out
themself. Within this sample:

70% of those asked had heard of the bus proposals, while 10% knew about the
consultation.

50% estimated time that would be saved by the bus lanes as ‘none’ or ‘not a lot’.
88% were concerned about the loss of parking in Seaside.

Other comments included fears about loss of businesses and parking, while one
respondent suggested prioritising improvements to public transport (over bus lanes)
and another while in favour, felt that cycle lanes should be prioritised.

Public letter issued - Freedom of Information Request

ESCC must abide with all duties and obligations for transparency, integrity and
accountability - it was suggested that actions relating to the bus lane breach these.
ESCC accused of ignoring protests from residents and businesses (breach of trust).
Violation of ‘Nolan Principles’.

Imposition of bus lane contradicts duty to promote wellbeing of community as
proposal is not in best interests of the economy and community wellbeing.
Adverse impact on business should be acknowledged and actions disregard clear
mandate from constituents.

ESCC is not compliant with its own code of conduct.

Actions of ESCC violate due process and civil rights

Complaint regarding ESCC contractor appointment - claim no evidence of
substantial benefits from fees paid, with road infrastructure in poor condition.

47

Page 61



Request to view contents of contract to determine whether budget includes the
bus lane.

= |gnoring economic welfare and will of the people is dereliction of duty - urge that
corrective action is taken.

= Request for clarity on project team, duties and salaries - as this is public money.

Transport Futures East Sussex

Proposals make a start in measures to shift away from car dependency with the following
improvements being delivered:

= Reduced congestion and vehicle trips, with greater bus reliability are important for
urban rural links.

= Larger number of bus users will draw investment for ‘state of the art’ buses

= Improved conditions in the ‘street surrounds’

= Better conditions for retail/catering/other businesses at Winston Crescent,
Archery, Pevensey Road junction through creating a ‘sense of place’

= Abetter environment for Tollgate and St Andrews (primary school) students leading
to choice to use the bus or walk/cycle as an option for children.

= Improved conditions for pedestrians and cyclists.

= Better bus access to/from the town centre, amenities, and cross town destinations

= Reductions in traffic bringing opportunity for alternative use of space (e.g.
enhanced biodiversity).

= Giving residents, visitors and holidaymakers public transport access to attractions
while reducing the impact of traffic.

= |mproved physical and mental health - buses and stops are social environments,
contributing to ‘social cohesion’ as well as benefits of walking to bus stop.

= Support proposals as an important step in the development of sustainable travel
options and reduced carbon emissions.

= Look forward to benefits of synergy with better spatial planning practice, bus
priority measures elsewhere in the area, and LCWIP delivery.

= Hope that councillors will support the proposals.

Consultation Mailbox (Email)

A Consultation Mailbox was open throughout the duration of the consultation. Email
correspondence received here were read and interpreted by ESCC staff members, with
responses being prepared and issued to deal with the matters raised in the
correspondence. For reporting purposes, this section contains a high-level summary of the
email content, noting that responses have already been issued by ESCC.

The table below shows the results of the coding of responses - which involved taking the
responses and applying broad thematic codes to summarise the issues raised. The full
results of the thematic coding of the emails can be seen in Appendix D - the table below
presents to the most commonly occurring issues in the emails.

As can be seen, out of the 68 emails - 28 (41%) of these mentioned opposition to the loss
of on street parking, which includes the proposals leaving insufficient space for parking /
loading. Next, 26 of the emails made clear that they did not support the proposals for

48

Page 62



Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue. A major concern mentioned in 25 emails was the impact
of changes to parking (and loss of spaces) on businesses, while 23 respondents felt the
proposals would make congestion worse.

The cost of the proposals was highlighted in 18 respondent’s emails - with the issue of
whether the proposals represented good value for money being challenged. Linked to this
were comments that the proposals would make no difference (15 respondents).

Next came issues relating to the layout of the proposals, with 15 respondents commenting
around the presence of the bus boarder stops (mostly at The Alexandra Arms) and whether
it was a cause of congestion which could alleviate congestion if they were removed.
Meanwhile, 12 respondents felt that the current road was not wide enough, and that the
removal of the right turn pocket lanes would cause traffic to queue while vehicles make
the manoeuvre. Also related to road layout was the suggestion that crossing islands
shouldn’t be removed - which often featured around the fact that the current layout has
two separate sets of traffic lights, while removing the island would mean one set of traffic
lights, which would therefore stop traffic in both directions.

Another key concern was that the proposals will devalue property in the area (through loss
of parking) as mentioned by 12 respondents. Meanwhile 11 respondents each mentioned
concerns about emergency vehicle access, requested information in their email from
ESCC, or questioned the levels of bus journey time savings being presented. Nine
respondents also criticised the consultation in their emails, mostly about a lack of
awareness of this and therefore the lack of publicity.

Table 14: Most frequently occurring codes applied to email responses

Oppose loss of parking spaces / not enough spaces / loss of space for loading 28
Do not support the proposals (nothing else said) 26
Concerned that lack of parking may impact on livelihood / local businesses 25
Proposals will lead to more traffic congestion / make it worse 23
Proposals will cost too much / be too expensive / waste of money 18
Proposals won’t make any difference / aren’t needed etc. 15

Suggest modifying bus stops to reduce queues (i.e. need layby bus stops / get rid of 'stand

out' bus stops) 15
The road isnt wide enough / turning vehicles will cause delays (incl. removal of right turns) 12
Suggest that crossing islands shouldn’t be removed 12
Concern that proposals will devalue property 12
Concerned about impact of scheme on emergency services (police, ambulance, fire etc.) 11
Request for information / query 11

49

Page 63



Question about predicted bus journey time savings 11
Criticism of consultation (events, timings, venues, lack of advertising etc.) 9
50

Page 64




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

8. Key Themes & Design Considerations

The table below contains some of the key themes and design considerations that emerged
from the consultation. These were the issues that appeared most often in the coding, and
for ESCC in terms of further changes to the design if the scheme is approved to proceed to
the next design stage.

Please note that generic themes such as ‘support the proposals /good idea’ do not feature
in this table, as these are not themes or design considerations that can influence the
detailed design of the proposed improvements to Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue.
Instead, the table lists the main issues raised, under a broader theme heading.

In the table, the technical team have responded to the issue raised and have presented a
justification for an approach, an explanation of an aspect of the proposals, or a potential
review of the design in light of the comments received.

Page 65



99 abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Table 15: Key Themes, Design Considerations and ESCC Response

Support: general

Response

General support for the scheme was

The scheme would make a significant contribution to

users, or improve traffic flow in general

issues/using mobility aids etc thereby allowing them
enough time to cross the road, but at the same time
improve traffic flow by holding vehicles at red no longer
thanis necessary.

noted achieving BSIP aims and objectives by improving bus 110 11%
journey times and reliability.
Support:.lnterventlons willimprove Response
bus services
Supportis welcomed. The proposed bus lanes,
Respondents felt that the proposals will comp.lemented by smart traffic signals (at signalised
. . . - crossings on the corridor), would represent a
improve bus journey times, reliability of s . . . 107 10%
o ) significant step in improving the attractiveness of bus
bus timings or increase bus use . . . ;
services, enabling buses to bypass queuing traffic
without reducing overall road capacity.
Support: interventions willimprove
conditions for other modes of Response
transport
Support is welcomed. The proposals would simplify
existing pedestrian crossings, enabling people to cross
enhance safety for pedestrians and road yby gp y 45 4%

Support: interventions are beneficial

but don't go far enough

Response




19 abed

Respondents felt that the proposals

The proposals seek to balance the competing needs of
all road users - bus users, pedestrians, wheelers

cyclists and motor vehicles - as well as maintaining as
much on-street parking as possible outside homes and

would be beneficial but do not go far businesses along the Seaside/St Anthony’s Avenue 8 1%
enough to prioritise bus use corridor. The proposals would deliver significant bus
priority on the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue
approaches to Seaside Roundabout, reducing bus
journey times and improving reliability.
Support: interventions will benefit the
. . . . Response
environment / improve air quality
Supportis welcomed. The proposed bus lanes,
Respondents felt that interventions will | complemented by smart traffic signals, are intended to
benefit the environment and/or improve | improve traffic flow, encourage modal shift, reduce 21 20
air quality by encouraging bus use and congestion and improve air quality
reducing congestion
Oppose: Proposals will lead to more
traffic congestion / make it worse / Response
proposals will worsen air quality
Respondents felt that the proposals will | The bus priority proposals represent modest changes
increase congestion and/or worsen the to the layout of the existing roadspace on Seaside and
current traffic situation. Some St Anthony’s Avenue which balances the competing 273 26% 23 34%

respondents felt that proposals will
worsen air quality by increasing traffic
congestion

needs on this space. The designs accommodate bus
lanes by reallocating some road space currently used
for vehicle parking, as well as amending lane widths

53



89 abed

(whilst continuing to exceed minimum design
standards).

The most recent Air Quality Annual Status Report from
Eastbourne Borough Council* published on 30" June
2023 indicates that levels of both nitrogen dioxide NO,
and particulate matter <10pg (PM10) and <2.5pg
(PM2.5), the pollutants most associated with vehicle
traffic, fall well within UK National Air Quality Objective
levels. As the proposals do not alter the volume of
traffic in the area, and as general traffic capacity would
largely be unaffected, the minor infrastructure
changes are unlikely to significantly increase pollutant
levels.

Oppose: Oppose loss of parking
spaces / not enough spaces / loss of
space for loading

Response

Respondents opposed the loss of
parking spaces, or noted that the
proposals do not include enough
parking or loading space for businesses

In response to the 2023 consultation feedback and
subsequent meetings held with businesses on
Seaside, the revised proposals have been developed in
response to the previous comments raised about the
impact of the loss of on-street parking. These retain
existing on-street parking spaces wherever possible
and prioritise parking outside of homes and
businesses. Between Myrtle Road and Fort Road and

195

19%

53

78%

1 Sussex-air :: Promoting better Air Quality in Sussex :: sussexair.extrawebsites.co.uk :: airAlert



https://sussex-air.net/air-quality-near-me/air-quality-reports/eastbourne/

69 abed

around Crumbles Sewer, the proposals introduce new
parking spaces to offset the removal of some parking
spaces that allow the new bus lanes.

Overall, the revised proposals retain more than half of
current on-street parking on Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue. Itisrecognised that residents and businesses
have essential loading/unloading needs and specific
arrangements for these will be defined should the
proposals be taken to detailed design stage. These will
be subject to formal public consultation as part of the
Traffic Regulation Order advertisement process.

Oppose: Proposals will cost too much /
be too expensive / waste of money

Response

Respondents opposed the cost of the
proposals and/or felt that the money
could be spent better on other matters

The money has been given to ESCC by the Department
for Transport specifically for the introduction of bus
priority measures as part of the East Sussex Bus
Service Improvement Plan. If the money cannot be
spent on bus improvements, the money will have to be
returned to the Department for Transport and
potentially used to improve bus priority measures
outside East Sussex.

The bus priority proposals represent modest changes
to the infrastructure making use of the existing
roadspace, delivering improvements to bus journey
times and reliability on what is one of Stagecoach’s

108

10%

18

26%

55



0/ abed

busiest bus corridors in East Sussex. Based on the
number of bus trips on the corridor (2,000 passengers
per day) the proposals are therefore considered to
offer value for money.

Oppose: Proposals won’t make any
difference / aren’t needed etc.

Response

Respondents felt that the proposals
aren't necessary or will not make an
appreciable difference to bus services
or traffic congestion

The proposed bus lanes would enable buses to bypass
general traffic on the westbound and eastbound
approaches to Seaside roundabout without reducing
overall road capacity. The actual journey time savings
for buses would vary depending on the level of traffic
congestion, but during peak congestion periods would
likely be several minutes in either direction.

The proposals cover the sections ranked by
Stagecoach as the highest priorities for intervention
along all the A259 corridor in Eastbourne. The
provision on these sections of dedicated road space
for buses would promote consistent bus journey times
throughout the day and so significantly improve service
reliability.

101

10%

15

22%

Oppose: The road isn’t wide enough /
turning vehicles will cause delays
(incl. removal of right turns)

Response

56



T/ abed

Respondents felt that the road is not
wide enough to support the proposals,
and/or that vehicles waiting to turn to
right will cause more congestion. These
responses included concerns about the
proposed removal of right turn boxes

Spot measurements have been taken along the
corridor to check that the proposals are feasible.

The minimum bus lane width would be 3.3m (on
Seaside) and the minimum general traffic lane width
would be 3.1m to accommodate minimum 2.0m on-
street parking widths.

The westbound bus lane on Seaside/St Anthony’s
Avenue will be a minimum of 4m wide with similar
widths for general traffic and on-street parking.

All these measurements exceed current minimum
design standards as set out in the Government’s
guidance on bus infrastructure, Local Transport Note
(LTN) 1/24).

Should the proposals be taken to detailed design
stage, topographical surveys accurate to within +/-
25mm throughout would be undertaken and the
proposed lane and footway widths reviewed.

Afullindependent Road Safety Audit will be
undertaken to consider the safety of the design for all
road users.

100

10%

12

18%

57



2/ abed

Microsimulation modelling has been undertaken for

two scenarios:

e the current situation, simulating existing traffic
flows, congestion and driver behaviour based on
detailed traffic surveys undertaken in September
2024; and

e the bus priority proposals. This has simulated the
proposed removal of right turn lanes and the
resulting effect on driver behaviour.

The results of the micro-simulation modelling indicate

that the bus priority proposals could reasonably be

expected to have nil detriment to general traffic journey
times in both the AM and PM peak periods, whilst
delivering tangible benefits to bus reliability and
journey times.

Oppose: Do not support the proposals
(nothing else said) / will not benefit
from the proposals

Response

Respondents opposed or registered
their lack of support for the proposals
and/or noted that they would not
personally benefit from the proposals

Every weekday, 269 buses spread over nine different
bus services carry over 2,000 passengers along
Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue.

Stagecoach advise that current congestion on Seaside
and St Anthony’s Avenue affects their ability to operate
buses to timetable, which makes it more difficult for
people to rely on buses for their day to day journeys.
By making it easier for buses to move along the A259

88

8%

26

38%

58



¢/ abed

Seaside corridor, the bus lane proposals would make a
significant contribution to improving the quality of bus
services, encouraging investment in the bus fleet and
even better frequencies. This would benefit the wider
community (not just existing bus users) by making
buses a more attractive option for many journeys that
otherwise are/would be taken by car.

Oppose: Active travel proposals (cycle
routes) don’t link up / disconnected /
lack of access points

Response

Respondents felt that the active travel
proposals did not satisfy the needs of
cyclists or users

As the bus priority proposals are funded by the Bus
Service Improvement Plan, they are necessarily
focused on bus infrastructure improvements,
complemented by pedestrian/wheeling crossing
improvements and smart traffic signals. However,
proportionate improvements to cycle connectivity will
be explored should the proposals be taken to detailed
design stage. For example, at Seaside Roundabout the
potential to amend the proposed puffin crossing on the
Seaside/St Anthony’s Avenue arm east of Seaside
roundabout to a toucan crossing for pedestrians and
cyclists will be considered, to address the existing
cycle infrastructure gap on National Cycle Route 21.

The minimum bus lane width would be 4m on St
Anthony’s Avenue, but 3.3m on Seaside due to the
limited road width available. It is acknowledged that

1%

59



v/ abed

the latter does not align with LTN1/20 guidance in that
where cyclists are using bus lanes, the lane should be
at least 4m wide to enable buses to pass cyclists with
sufficient room without crossing into the general traffic
lane. Conversely, LTN 1/24 identifies that pedal
cyclists are allowed to use with-flow bus lanes by
default.

Should the proposals progress to detailed design
stage, the existing width of the road and footway will be
reviewed further once topographical survey data is
available.

Afullindependent Road Safety Audit will be
undertaken to consider the safety of the design for all
road users.

Oppose: Preferred previous proposals

Response

Respondents preferred the original
round of proposals prior to the
alterations consulted on. These
responses included opposition to
removal of shared space from previous
proposals

The previous proposals included a mixture of shared-
use pedestrian/cycle paths and footways along
Seaside Road, and shared-use paths on both sides of
the road along St Anthony’s Avenue.

We have reviewed the shared use proposalsin an
endeavour to minimise the loss of on-street car
parking, to reduce the risk of conflicts between cyclists
and pedestrians in areas with high flows and/or
vulnerable pedestrians. Furthermore, there is

1%

60



G/ abed

insufficient highway width (i.e. road plus footway
width) to accommodate continuous shared-use paths
on Seaside Road which align with Local Transport Note
(LTN) 1/20 guidance on cycle infrastructure.

Should the proposals progress to detailed design
stage, the existing width of the road and footway, and
recommended arrangements for cyclists, will be
reviewed further once topographical survey data is
available.

Suggestion: Alternative suggestions

Response

Respondents gave a wide range of
alternative suggestions or possible
alterations. These covered a wide range
of options, noted in the full report

Whilst these many suggestions related to
improvements at Seaside Roundabout and the
Lottbridge Drove approaches are noted, they are
beyond the scope of the funding available from the Bus
Service Improvement Plan which is specifically for bus
priority measures. Such suggestions are nevertheless
noted and will be considered in the medium to long
term should other funding opportunities arise.

Only one bus stop “build out” - outside DB Domestics
—-would remain under the proposals. By minimising
the loss of existing on-street car parking, however, itis
acknowledged that several bus stops on Seaside
would require vehicles to cross into the oncoming
traffic lane to overtake stationary buses. Even if bus
stop laybys could be accommodated, these would not

380

36%

61



9/ abed

be favoured as they would require buses to rejoin the
traffic stream, increasing bus journey times and
reducing the overall benefits to buses of the proposals.

Should the proposals be taken to detailed design
stage, the location of bus stops (such as the Tesco
northeast bound and Alexandra Arms southwest
bound stops) and on-street parking bays will be
reviewed.

Concern: impact of parking on
business

Response

Respondents were worried about the

On-street parking would be retained on the northeast
side between Wartling Road and Winchelsea Road
(Seaside section) and new parking provided around
Crumbles Sewer (Seaside/St Anthony’s Avenue

potential for loss of revenue for section), both sections in proximity to businesses. 227 22%
businesses due to the reduced parking Should the proposals be taken to detailed design
stage, limited waiting restrictions could be considered
for parking outside businesses to increase the turnover
of parking spaces and increase customer accessibility.
Concern: impact of parking on lifestyle
(more parking on side streets, Response
inconsiderate parking, school pick up
and drop off)
Respondents were concerned about The revised proposals retain existing parking spaces
negative impact of reduced parking on wherever possible and prioritises parking outside of 100 10%

lifestyle: this included concerns about

homes and businesses. Between Myrtle Road and Fort

62



1/ abed

more side street parking and
inconsiderate parking, and challenges
for school pick up and drop off times

Road (Seaside section) and around Crumbles Sewer
(Seaside/St Anthony’s Avenue section), the proposals
introduce new parking spaces to offset the removal of
some parking spaces that allow the new bus lanes.
The proposals retain more than half of current on-
street parking spaces on Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue.

Based on our observations from on-street parking
occupancy surveys undertaken at various times
throughout the day (weekday and weekend), specific
loading/unloading arrangements could be considered
at detailed design stage should the proposals be taken
forward, but we anticipate that sufficient facilities will
be available for parking and pick up/drop off needs on
both Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue.

Concern: safety (crossing, young
people/older people, emergency
services, cyclists, wheelchair users)

Response

Respondents were concerned about
impacts of the proposals on safety for
more vulnerable street users, including
younger and older people, disabled
people and cyclists. These responses
also included concerns about access for
emergency services being reduced or
delayed

The removal of centralislands is proposed to
accommodate the proposed introduction of bus lanes.
However, we have compensated for this by upgrading
the crossings (for example by proposing smart traffic
signal-controlled Puffin crossings, allowing people the
time they need to cross the road) or providing
alternative crossing points nearby. Proportionate
improvements to cycle connectivity will be explored

197

19%

63



g/ abed

should the proposals be taken to detailed design
stage.

Emergency vehicles would be able to use the bus lane
when responding to an emergency. By default, bus
lanes would also allow loading/unloading which would
enable non-emergency ambulances and taxis to pick
up and drop off vulnerable pedestrians. This would be
subject to the specific Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
developed should the bus priority proposals be taken
to detailed design stage.

Localised loading/unloading restrictions could be
considered but would be subject to formal

consultation on the TRO.

However, parking in bus lanes would not be allowed.

Concern: construction disruption

Response

Respondents were concerned about the
potential disruption that could be
caused by the construction of the
proposals

Should the proposals be taken to detailed design and
construction, a Construction Traffic Management Plan
would be putin place to mitigate the short-term
impacts of construction activities on residents,
businesses, road users and the environment. Some
disruption may still occur, but this would be temporary
and significantly outweighed by the long-term
beneficial impacts of the proposals.

22

2%

Concern: devaluing of property

Response

64



6/ obed

Respondents felt that properties could
be devalued if the proposals are putin
place

There is no published evidence for property
devaluation because of introducing bus priority
measures. Frequentand reliable bus services are a
positive selling point for properties, and by
encouraging modal shift from car to bus could remove
vehicle trips from the A259 Seaside/St Anthony’s
Avenue corridor.

Access to existing off-street parking would be
unaffected by the proposals.

0%

65



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Revised Bus Priority Measures for
Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, Eastbourne

9. Summary & Next Steps

Summary

In this report, we have considered the responses received to the consultation on the
revised bus priority measures for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue in Eastbourne
undertaken between 15 July and 18 August 2024.

In total, we received 2,863 consultation responses including 2,788 online, 32 in paper
format, 68 emails and 7 letter.

For the proposals overall, the proportion of supportive responses exceeded the
proportion of opposing responses (56% overall support vs 37% overall oppose).

For both Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, questionnaire respondents felt that the
proposals would have a positive impact on bus services (making them better), with
over half of the respondents believing this to be the case compared to 14-15% who felt
they would be worse.

For both Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, the questionnaire respondents were not sure
whether traffic congestion would be improved because of the proposals, with broadly
similar proportions considering that the proposals would make this worse, or better.

Cross tabulated responses found that:

= Residents living closer to the proposed changes were more likely to oppose the
proposals overall, with those further away more likely to support them.

= Bus users were more supportive of the proposals compared to non-users

= Business owners were strongly opposed to the proposal to a considerable extent
(88%)

= Respondents aged over 65 were less likely to have strong views on the proposals,
compared to the 18-64 age group. However, overall, nearly half of over 65s were
strongly opposed to the proposals.

= Carers are more likely to support the proposals than non-carers
= Parents are more likely to oppose the proposals, than non-parents

= Propensity to cycle and community representation did not appear to have a
significant impact on attitudes towards the proposals overall.

Free-text responses were considerably more likely to be unsupportive of the proposals,
this was especially noted when the closed question revealed a majority in support of the
proposals overall.

Most concerns in open-ended comments appeared to be around the loss of parking spaces -
with 195 respondents mentioning this (19% of the 1,042 respondents that provided
comments).

Other concerns mentioned by many respondents included value for money and whether
the proposals will make any difference when implemented.

A total of 129 respondents suggested modifying bus build outs (removal or stand out bus
stops) as a way of achieving the planned reduction in congestion (129 respondents - 12%).
Suggestions were also made that the crossing islands which are currently in place (and

Page 80



proposed for removal as part of the roadspace reallocation) should be retained for
pedestrian safety and ease of access.

The biggest concern to respondents remained around the impact of the lack of parking on
local businesses - including that this may put many of these out of business (227
respondents - 22%)

Letters received pointed to concerns around parking as well as the proposed bus lane
design not being wide enough for cyclists (plus some uncertainty about whether cyclists
could use it). This also linked to concerns about where cyclists would need to position
themselves in the new arrangement, which was felt to put them at additional risk due to
proximity of vehicles.

Questions over the bus lane timings were also raised, with it being noted that the plan is
for the bus lane to run 24 hours a day, but that bus services do not run throughout the
night.

There were also complaints in correspondence that ESCC are not listening to concerns, and
a request for clarity via a Freedom of Information request.

Among emails received, there were questions about the estimated impact on bus journey
times, the parking provision and the impact on property values due to loss of parking.

Many of the themes in the letters mirrored those in the questionnaire coding, and
opposition to, and concerns about loss of parking featured strongly. Similar comments on
layout (removal of ‘stand out’ bus stops), removal of right turn lanes, and crossing islands,
were also expressed.

In conclusion, the open-text responses raise concerns about the proposals as well as
making design suggestions and raising questions about loading and parking provision.
However, the overall perspective from the questionnaire responses which form the bulk of
replies to this consultation, are that there is support overall for the scheme and the
elements included - though notably to a lesser extent regarding parking. It is therefore
clear that to some extent, respondents still have questions and concerns about parking
provision in the event that the Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue scheme progresses.

Next Steps

The outcomes of the consultation on the revised Seaside & St Anthony’s Avenue bus
priority measures will be reported to the Lead Member for Transport and Environment in
November 2024 for a decision on whether to proceed.

67

Page 81



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Revised Bus Priority Measures for
Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue, Eastbourne

Appendix A:
Bus Journey Time Savings




Seaside & St Anthony’s Journey Time Savings for Buses

By comparing the journey times at congested periods on Seaside & 5t Anthony’s Avenue
over a two-month period (August and September 2023) and the revised bus lane proposal,
we can estimate the following indicative journey time savings per bus:

+ For the proposed eastbound bus lane from Windermere Crescent to Seaside
Roundabout, the estimated journey time saving in a congested period is up to 3.6
minutes per bus.

+ For the westbound proposed bus lane between Langney Roundabout and Seaside
Roundabout, the estimated journey time saving in a congested period is up to 3.4
minutes per bus.

+ The estimated combined journey time saving for buses travelling eastbound and
westbound is up to 7 minutes in a congested period.

Estimated Journey Time Saving Per Bus (minutes)

Eastbound Bus Westbound Bus

lane
lane (Langney Total Benefit
bt Roundabout to (Eastbound +
Crescent to
. Seaside Westbound)
S Roundabout)
Roundabout)
Estimated Journey Time . Up to 3.4 Upto7
Saving Per Bus* Up to 3.6 minutes minutes minutes

*! Congested periods of 9am to 10am, Zpm to 3pm, 6pm to 7pm and 8pm to 9pm.

It should be noted that there are other time periods that would bring about a larger
journey time saving for buses and other time periods that would bring about a smaller
journey time saving for buses.

Table above has been updated on 1/8/24 - Please note that the earlier version of this
document had incorrectly listed the Eastbound saving as 3.4 minutes and the Westbound
saving as 3.6 minutes.

Page 83

69



The table below shows a weekly average of journey time savings from analysing the total
journey time savings from every bus journey (not just the bus journeys within the 4 1-
hour congested periods used in the calculations above) over a two-month period (August
and September 2023):

+ For the proposed eastbound bus lane from Windermere Crescent to Seaside
Roundabout, the total estimated weekly journey time saving is 52.7 hours for all
buses.

s+ For the westbound proposed bus lane between Langney Roundabout and Seaside
Roundabout, the total estimated weekly journey time saving is 23.9 hours for all
buses.

+ The estimated combined weekly journey time saving for all buses travelling
eastbound and westbound is a combined 76.6 hours.

Total Estimated Journey Time Saving Per Week (hours)

Summary Eastbound Bus Westbound Bus Total Benefit
lane lane (Langney (Eastbound +
{(Windermere Roundabout to  Westbound)
Crescent to Seaside
Seaside Roundabout)
Roundabout)

Total Cumulated Weekly Bus
Journey Time Savings**

*? Cumulative total bus journey times savings (all bus services) for all bus journeys over a
one-week period. One week average over a 2-month period (August and September 2023).

70

Page 84



Appendix B:
Frequently Asked Questions




East Sussex
County Council

Funded by A
% UK Government WMM

East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP) - Bus Priority Measures - Seaside & St
Anthony’s Avenue, Eastbourne

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

This document aims to answer questions on the proposal and public consultation, to help
you to understand and comment on the proposals to help shape the next design phase.

If you don't find the answers you're looking for in this document, you can contact the team
via BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk.

We are hosting three in-person drop-in events during the consultation period. During the
events, members of the project team will be available to answer your questions and
provide you with more information about the proposals.

For more information about the East Sussex BSIP, please visit
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan.

Why are these changes happening?

Since 2014, the number of journeys people make in our region has been dropping, and we
want to help people use the bus more. The Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) is
designed to improve local bus services in East Sussex by making buses more reliable and
easier to use.

We want to make it easier and more pleasant for people to use the bus in East Sussex. We
are working to provide better quality bus services that offer:

. a frequent choice
. reduce congestion
. make a positive contribution to better air quality and decarbonisation

As part of that commitment, we have been working to design changes to our roads to
make it easier for buses to move through Eastbourne.

What are the benefits?

Every day, 269 buses spread across 9 different bus services carry over 2,000 passengers
along Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue. Current congestion along Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue makes it difficult to guarantee that these buses can arrive on time and for the
people using them to rely on buses for their day to day journeys.

With the revised proposal, we expect the bus journey time along Seaside and St Anthony’s
Avenue to decrease by up to 7 minutes per bus trip at the most congested times. Across
the whole week there would be an accumulated weekly total of 76 hours of journey time

w East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 1

72

Page 86



East Sussex
County Council

13
i

m Funded by
22> UK Government

savings for buses with over 14,000 passengers per week benefitting from these time
savings.

We’ve divided the 76 hours of savings by 14,000 passengers and get a total of 20
seconds of time savings per passenger. Where does the figure of 7 minutes come
from?

To see a full breakdown of how our bus journey time savings for buses were reached,
please click here to view a more detailed breakdown of the figures.

Please note that the estimated journey time savings are calculated per bus and are not
linked to the number of passengers onboard.

What bus services will be impacted?

Eastbound bus lane - Seaside
Services 1, 1A, 1X, 5, 5A, 51, 54, 501 and LOOP
Operating from 6.20am to 11:53pm (Mon to Fri)

Period Number of Buses
Mon to Fri 172
Sat 166
Sun 110
Weekly 1,136

Westbound bus lane - St Anthonys Avenue
Services 1, 1A, 1X, 5
Operating from 5.50am to 11:30pm (Mon to Fri)

Period Number of Buses
Mon to Fri 97
Sat 94
Sun 55
Weekly 634

Where is the money coming from for these changes?

East Sussex County Council received £41.4m of funding from the Department for Transport
for the East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP), which aims to improve bus
services in our area.

Couldn’t we spend the money on urgent local issues?

This money has been given to us by the Department for Transport specifically to improve
bus services. We can’t use it for any other purpose. Funding for other issues comes from
other budgets.

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 2

Page 87

73



East Sussex
County Council

13
i

& Funded by
=~ UK Government
When will the proposals be built?

The feedback received during this consultation exercise will be taken into consideration and
used to inform the detailed design stage, which is planned to start in late 2024. Following
this, we’ll develop a construction programme.

Why are you adding a bus lane?

Adding a bus lane on Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue will ease the current congestion that
holds up cars and buses.

Cars will be able to move along the road without stopping when buses stop for passengers,
and buses will be able to move without getting caught in traffic jams. This will improve
traffic for everybody on the road, including cyclists.

Why are you taking away parking spaces?

To fit in a bus lane we need more space on the road, which means adjusting the number of
car parking spaces offered along the route.

We have kept as many spaces as possible and added a small nhumber where we can. We
have also performed studies to check how many people are using the parking through the
day to make sure we won’t be making life harder for local people.

Who can use the bus lane?

The bus lane will be in operation 24 hours a day. The eastbound bus lane on Seaside will
be marked for buses only and the westbound bus lane on St Anthony’s Avenue will be
marked as a shared bus and cycle lane. This is because the westbound bus lane on St
Anthony’s is wider. Taxis will not be permitted to use the bus lanes.

Emergency vehicles can use a bus lane when on an emergency call and an ambulance/fire
tender/police car can park in the bus lane to attend an emergency outside a property or
business.

The proposed bus lane is across my drive, will | be penalised for crossing a bus
lane?

Drivers will be permitted to cross over the bus lane to access their driveways. No parking
will be permitted in the bus lanes.

Why are you removing central islands?

We’re removing central islands to allow the bus lane to flow freely. Where we have taken
out a central reservation, we’ve upgraded crossings or made sure there are other crossings
nearby.

What about the ‘build-outs’?

There are only two current build-outs within the proposed scheme area. One is outside DB
Domestics and the other outside the Alexandra Arms. The one outside the Alexandra Arms
is proposed to be removed to enable provision of the bus lane and retain existing parking

spaces. The build-out outside DB Domestics is to remain exactly as it is at present.

[ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 3

Page 88

74



East Sussex
County Council

% Funded by b

UK Government WY

The purpose of these type of build-outs is to provide extra footway space for bus shelters
and pedestrians to wait for buses whilst also easing the departure from the stop for buses.
It is found where these buildouts don’t exist, buses can be delayed by general traffic who
do not allow them to safely depart by continuing to make overtaking manoeuvres.

Build-outs can also act to protect the availability of parking spaces. Removing build-outs
mean that some parking spaces would need to be removed to allow more space for the bus
to pull into the bus stop and then back out again into the general traffic lane. For build-
outs near a junction on existing double yellow lines, this can serve to improve visibility for
cars existing junctions and reduce crossing times for pedestrians and provide protection
for cars parking in adjacent parking bays.

Won’t removing right hand turn lanes make traffic worse?

We’re removing right hand turn lanes to make more space for the bus lane. We have been
able to widen the lane where there were right hand turn lanes, so traffic will still be able
to pass vehicles waiting to turn. You can see where this is happening on the maps of the
proposals.

Does the scheme require any land take / is my property at risk?

At this stage it is anticipated that the construction works can take place within the existing
highway boundary maintained by East Sussex County Council as the Local Highway Authority.

What standards are the proposals being designed to?

The westbound bus lane on St Anthony’s Avenue will be wide enough to accommodate buses
and cyclists as it meets the minimum widths as set out in the Government Local Transport
Note 1/20: Cycle Infrastructure Design.

We have considered the impact of the scheme on all road users to make sure everyone’s
needs are met, balancing car users’ needs with quicker and more reliable bus journeys, as
well as safer journeys for cyclists, walkers and wheelchair users.

We have conducted a Road Safety Assessment and we will be conducting a full Road Safety
Audit to make sure that the design is safe for all road users.

Will any trees be impacted?

We have worked during the design process to minimise tree removals. A single tree on the
corner of Seaside/Whitley Road is likely to need to be removed.

How will you minimise disruption while the scheme is being constructed?
A scheme construction plan will be developed once the outcome of the consultation is
known. Prior to any construction works taking place, the impact of the works on local

people, businesses, road users and the environment will be assessed, and mitigation
measures designed.

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 4

Page 89

75



East Sussex
County Council

% Funded by
7= UK Government

The consultation

13
i

Why are you doing a second round of consultation?

In 2023 we held consultations with local people about a package of bus priority schemes.
Feedback on the design for Seaside and St Anthony’s Avenue raised concerns about this
specific proposal. We listened to that feedback and revised the design, and now we want
to hear your views on the new proposal.

How have you been promoting the consultation?

We’re keen to make sure as many people as possible hear about the consultation, so we
have:

* Sent a flyer to 1,500 properties and businesses around the area where the bus
priority proposals would be implemented
¢ Featured the consultation on social media
¢ Arranged three in-person consultation events:
o Saturday 20" July: 10 am - 1pm at St Andrew’s Parish Hall, BN22 7RY
o Monday 22™ July: 12 pm - 3pm at St Anthony’s Centre, BN23 6NH
o Tuesday 30™ July: 5pm - 8pm at 5t Andrew’s Parish Hall, BN22 7RY

How do | tell you what | think?

You can fill in the survey here: https://bit.ly/EastbourneBSIP

What are the next steps?
We will carefully consider all comments received during the consultation. Your views are

important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide feedback and
comments on the current proposed schemes to help inform the detailed design stage.

We will document the process and publish the results in a consultation report.

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 5

Page 90

76



Funded by
UK Government

Glossary of Terms

s mos 15

East Sussex
County Council

13
it

Bus Lane

Abus lane is a traffic lane that is restricted to buses
and is generally to speed up journey times that
would otherwise be held up by traffic congestion.

Bus lanes are shown by road markings and signs that
indicate the periods of operation and if any other
vehicles are permitted to use the bus lane.

Zebra Crossing

A Zebra Crossing is a type of pedestrians crossing
that has flashing amber lights on the pavement,
black and white stripes on the road.

It indicates that pedestrians have priority over
vehicular traffic and traffic is expected to stop
once a pedestrian has started crossing.

As there are no traffic lights, a zebra crossing is
considered an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing.

Toucan Crossing

A Toucan Crossing is a type of crossing that helps
both pedestrians and cyclists cross the road safely.
It's named "Toucan” because "two can" use it
together - pedestrians and cyclists.

At these crossings, there are traffic lights that stop
the vehicular traffic so that pedestrians and
cyclists can cross the road at the same time. This
crossing is made to encourage walking and cycling
and to keep people who are not driving safe while
crossing the road.

Page 91

77



Appendix C:
Details sheets for ‘Suggestions’ codes




204: Suggest providing improved / additional crossings for pedestrians and cyclists
Don't think the road is big enough for a bus lane but would like a crossing Lesley street

1) Reconsider the decision on the Seaside eastbound bus lane not to allow cycles.
Moving cycles away from the kerb to the far lane will result in undertaking by buses and
overtaking by cars.

2) Reinstate the idea of a cycle route crossing the St Anthony’s Avenue arm of the
Seaside roundabout. [ See image] So that cyclists have a route along all of Lottbridge
Drove using a toucan crossing. This also connects to the safer Horsey Sewer cycle route

3) East Sussex County Council to give a higher priority to the proposed Seafront cycle
route as mitigation for the lack of a safe route on Seaside

A cycle route crossing should be reinstate on the roundabout.

The St Andrews Church crossing needs to be updated as the existing zebra crossing is not
maintained, |l.e. the white lines are never painted and lamps not bright enough,
creating poor visibility of the crossing for motorists when it’s dark.

Although an extra pedestrian crossing to the south of seaside roundabout would be
good.

For crossing points however | do however believe that more crossing points for cycling
should be implemented, especially around Seaside roundabout where National Cycle
Route 21 crosses the junction, but there is a gap in cycle infrastructure. A crossing
point for cyclists on the St Anthony's Avenue arm of Langney Roundabout should also be
provided to allow cyclists to safely access the westbound bus lane.

There should be reconsideration of a cycle route with a toucan/parallel crossing across
the St. Anthony's arm of the Seaside roundabout to continue along Lottbridge Drove and
to connect to the Horsey Sewer route.

205: Suggest providing allocated parking for residents
NONE RECEIVED

206: Suggest implementing parking controls / restricted parking

Don't really park anywhere on seaside

| support bus lanes as these make it easier for all. Not sure putting in more parking
helps though as people down seaside don't know how to park anyway. always double
parking up by the takeaways .

207: Suggest making changes to Tesco / Seaside roundabout

As | drive in a car and on public transport. | think if they sort out Tesco seaside
roundabout with yellow boxes or even peak time traffic lights and reopen the eastbound
slip road and move the lights just on Lottbridge drove. These lights was why the
eastbound slip road was closed too many bumps.

There is already a pedestrian crossing at Lidl at seaside roundabout, at co-op and a
zebra crossing right by the school, the buses are cancelled on a regular basis, this will
cause more traffic and potentially delay the buses just as much with drivers not wanting
to let them filter back into the road after the bus lane ends, most of the congestion
caused is by pedestrian lights being so close to a roundabout, not having keep clear
markings on roundabout so drivers don't block the roundabout, the stick out bus stops.

remove the blocked filter lane from Seaside turning left towards Tesco and both these
actions will improve traffic flow away from Seaside.

79

Page 93



Anyone who actually goes to this area or uses it will see that the issues is the seaside
roundabout. it's not big enough for the volume of traffic. however this could be greatly
alleviated with having the cars not stop on roundabout and block all lanes. this could be
done by some yellow hatch markings but mainly by allowing traffic going westbound
from this roundabout not getting stuck behind the bus that stops outside the alexander
pub. there is not enough room (there actually is but very little people like to drive on
wrong side of road when there’s traffic there unsurprisingly) to go round this bus as the
bus stop protrudes into the road (it's a very silly design). much better as a trial run, get
rid of couple parking spaces before this bus stop, let the bus stop where these spaces
were and therefore not come out into road so much, traffic goes round and everything
flows much better.

Crossing to other side of Northbourne road, this will allow traffic from Tesco roundabout
to turn right into Northbourne road. Remove crossing other side of Roundabout as this
will cause hold ups on the approach to the roundabout from the east

The existing crossing that is moving on the seaside roundabout is shown on the drawings
as a pedestrian crossing but the in the text as for both cycling and walking. This needs
to be a Toucan and is part of NCN 21.

My concerns are that you are removing the safety island in the middle of the zebra
crossing by Finmere Road! This is a very well used crossing that has already seen
multiple near misses and accidents. The 2 new pedestrian crossings at the seaside
roundabout must be staggered with shorter crossing times to avoid long delays for
traffic? The 2 existing bus stops westbound from Seaside roundabout cause terrible
congestion but these are not being reduced back to the pavement! Retaining parking
opposite the Alexandra Arms and with the bus stop jutting into the carriageway will
cause a pinch point for traffic. This will not reduced delays westbound.

| am in favour of traffic improvements in principle but these areas must still be
addressed.

The traffic needs to keep moving. Its often backs up to the Seaside roundabout and
stops traffic moving across the roundabout too - gets snarled up quickly

| suspect that any benefit to having an eastbound bus lane in Seaside will be totally
negated by moving the ‘Tesco’ pedestrian crossing nearer to the Seaside Roundabout as
well as having another pedestrian crossing immediately east of the Roundabout!
Currently, whenever | travel by eastbound bus along this road, the only time there is any
gridlock is when traffic is backing-up from Seaside Roundabout! A young lady at one of
your events said that the bus lane would by-pass such a grid lock!

However, approaching the roundabout, as the left hand lane is left turn into Lottbridge
Drove, Buses need to pull across into the right hand lane, and then negotiate the
roundabout, whether going straight on to St Anthony's Avenue or turning right to the
southern section of Lottbridge Drove.

With the new proposed pedestrian crossings layout, whenever these pedestrian crossing
are in use, there is nowhere for traffic to go whilst negotiating the roundabout, so
buses, once they have been able to move across into the right hand lane, will be caught
up in the ensuing gridlock, and the advantage of having a bus lane will be lost!"

Traffic turning right from Lottbridge Drove North, quite often has difficulty in filtering
onto the left lane of the roundabout. Traffic turning right from Seaside/St Anthony’s
Avenue is then blocked from turning right. The built out bus stop between Fort Road and
Myrtle Road adds to the problem of bus/traffic delays. By increasing the width of the 2
lanes on Seaside roundabout and removing the built out section of the bus stop would
help decrease congestion and smooth traffic flow on Seaside roundabout, reducing
traffic jams on both the approaches and exits to the roundabouts. This would surely
reduce bus journey times and do away with the need for a costly, disruptive and
unwanted bus lane.

80

Page 94



| feel it would better serve traffic flow to change Seaside roundabout at Lottbridge
Drive to traffic light controlled crossroads.

| think the bus lane is not going to solve the traffic problems in this area. A better
solution would be to change Seaside roundabout at the end of Lottbridge Drive to a
crossroads with traffic light control

I’ve never experienced very long delays ,the only bad design is the build out bus stop at
the Alexandra arms pub in seaside ,the road is not wide enough to pass a parked bus and
traffic builds up to seaside roundabout and up Lottbridge drove to sovereign centre
.Money would be better spent to either widen /remove parking here or doing away with
the bus stop altogether and moving it to a wider part of seaside .That way the traffic
will flow better and the buses will travel quicker too . It would also be an easier design
and save money to be better spent elsewhere

The main cause of all the flow of traffic in this area is the Seaside roundabout, near
Tesco, as this should be traffic light controlled as this would help to keep traffic moving
fairly.

208: Suggest traffic signals need to be added to proposal

The main priority in this plan would be to put traffic lights on Lottbridge drove coming
from Tesco towards sovereign centre and the other side from KFC towards Tesco. This is
a VERY BUSY crossing for children going and coming from schools. Only 3 people have
died in the last 7 years. How many more before that part of the road becomes a
priority?

The traffic especially weekday mornings is caused by Lottbridge roundabout buildup-
have some common sense and put traffic lines controlling this.

Residents, local businesses and those using St Anthony's Avenue and Seaside do not need
the added inconvenience of a bus lane. This complete waste of public money that
should be better used elsewhere. A proper cycle lane with a kerb (not a painted line)
would be a better use of the money. What this thoroughfare requires is the complete
removal of Birds Eye Roundabout (Seaside Roundabout) and replaced with traffic light
controlled cross roads. Placing traffic signal controlled pedestrian crossings
immediately after a roundabout is dangerous and a health & safety issue when traffic
backs up on the actual roundabout. Less bus stops (currently every 50 yards) would also
speed up traffic and bus times!

| feel it would better serve traffic flow to change Seaside roundabout at Lottbridge
Drive to traffic light controlled crossroads.

If you were to put a set of traffic light at Southbourne rd and put a crossing attached
and remove existing crossings between Southbourne and the Langley roundabout this
would speed up traffic

Seaside roundabout has passed its usefulness and needs to be replaced with traffic
lights. Roundabouts are very good if traffic flows equally in all directions, but in this
case the traffic coming from Lottbridge Drove blocks traffic heading west into town as
much less flows east which causes huge delays heading from Langney.

The main cause of all the flow of traffic in this area is the Seaside roundabout, near
Tesco, as this should be traffic light controlled as this would help to keep traffic moving
fairly.

The proposals objectives are weakened by the lack of priority signalling at Whitley Road
junction and absence of redesigned roundabouts at Langney and seaside roundabouts
that would benefit pedestrians, cyclists and buses

211: Bus improvement proposals should be in another area

81

Page 95



We need more cycle lanes - and St Anthony's Avenue is not congested - Seaside is

Kings drive coming in to town is a wider road where parking could be taken away as the
large houses there all have drives!

Would it not be better to start the eastbound bus lane a bit further down the road by
the Archery playground and youth club, and keep the right turn lane into Churchdale
Road, this much more sense.

My proposals would include the whole of the seaside up to Cavendish Place, which
would improve traffic flow and be for all who live, work trade, use the Seaside not just
a small minority who use buses,

Has princes road been looked at for an alternative route as the road is wide and has less
impact on residents and parking . Using princes Road would spread the load from
seaside . Just an idea . Thank you for the opportunity to have a view .

213: Suggest that crossing islands shouldn’t be removed

Concern about removing the safety island in the middle of the zebra crossing by Finmere
Road

82

Page 96



Appendix D:
Codes applied to email correspondence




Page 98

Oppose loss of parking spaces / not enough spaces / loss of space for loading 28
Do not support the proposals (nothing else said) 26
Concerned that lack of parking may impact on livelihood / local businesses 25
Proposals will lead to more traffic congestion / make it worse 23
Proposals will cost too much / be too expensive / waste of money 18
Proposals won’t make any difference / aren’t needed etc. 15
Suggest modifying bus stops to reduce queues (i.e. need layby bus stops / get rid of

'stand out' bus stops) 15
The road isnt wide enough / turning vehicles will cause delays (incl. with removal of

right turns) 12
Suggest that crossing islands shouldn’t be removed (Add to details sheet if location

given) 12
Concern that proposals will devalue property 12
Concerned about impact of scheme on emergency services (police, ambulance, fire

etc.) 11
Request for information / query 11
Question about predicted bus journey time savings 11
Criticism of consultation (events, timings, venues, lack of advertising etc.) 9
Support the proposals / good idea / no concerns 7
Proposals will be worse for the environment / worse air quality 7
Concerned that lack of parking may cause more parking on side streets 7
Question about design layout (parking bays) 7
Concerned about potential impact on elderly users / older people 6
Criticism of East Sussex County Council 6
Fault with questionnaire / website 6
Suggest more reliable buses (i.e. fewer cancelled services) 5
Concerned about potential impact on young people / children 5
Criticism of consultation materials (maps, website, questionnaire) 5
General correspondence 5

84



Question about projected impact on traffic / congestion
Money should be spent elsewhere (no details)

Concerned that lack of parking may cause inconsiderate parking (e.g. blocking
footways, drives etc.)

Question about environmental modelling

Support, plans will increase bus use / more people will use the bus

Suggest improvements to bus services (no details)

Concerned that lack of parking may make school pick-up/drop-off difficult
Consider consultation is pointless (will go ahead regardless / box ticking exercise)
Proposals are penalising car drivers / war on the motorist

Non-relevant comment

Question about design layout (bus lanes)

Question about design layout (crossings)

Support, will be better for the environment / better air quality

Support, plans will make bus journey times more reliable (i.e. run on time / fewer
delays)

Suggest improvements to road infrastructure (maintenance, repairs etc.)
Suggest that cyclists should be able to use bus lanes
Suggest investment in low emission buses

Concerned that the proposals may reduce safety (i.e. dangerous for people while
crossing etc.)

Concerned about potential impact on wheeled users (wheelchairs / buggies / mobility
scooters)

Concerned about impact on cyclists (e.g. lack of space / proximity of vehicles etc.)
Concerned about impact on access to medical facilities (hospital / GP / doctors)
Question about project finances

Support, plans will make bus journey times quicker

Support, parking proposals make sense / plenty of parking available

Support, proposals will enhance safety for pedestrians and road users

Proposals aren’t as good as before / previous proposals were better

Page 99

85



Active travel proposals (cycle routes) don’t link up / are disconnected / lack of access
points

Suggest improvements to cycle routes (maintenance, provision etc.)

Bus improvement proposals should be in another area (Add to details sheet if location
given)

Suggest shortening bus lane

Suggest making changes to Lottbridge roundabout

Suggest cheaper bus fares

Suggest buses that finish later

Concerned that construction will be disruptive (noise, dust etc.)

Concerned that proposed changes to road layout will lead to rat-running (i.e. diverting
to alternative routes)

Question about design layout (cycle lanes)

Page 100

86






This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

East Sussex
County Council

TRAFFIC MODELLING OUTPUTS

October 2024




INTRODUCTION

This technical note provides a brief overview of the Vissim microsimulation modelling
undertaken for the A259 Seaside Road corridor bus priority proposals.

The base model was satisfactorily validated and used to test the summer 2024 feasibility
design proposals plus additional option scenarios.

CONTEXT

WSP previously prepared the feasibility design for East Sussex County Council (ESCC)’s Bus
Service improvement Plan (BSIP) proposals for the A259 Seaside Road/St Anthony’s Avenue
corridor, extending from Langney Roundabout to Hanover Road, a distance of approximately
2.5km. The feasibility design drawings were shared for public consultation during summer
2023, with some residents and businesses indicating strong opposition to the proposals.

In response to the Lead Member for Transport and Environment’'s decision on the BSIP
consultation proposals in January 2024, ESCC requested that WSP develop a revised and
reduced bus priority scheme for Seaside Road/St Anthony’s Avenue. The objective was of
address the feedback received during the public consultation and ensuring the scheme still
remained affordable, deliverable and meet the aims of the East Sussex BSIP.

Following review of the revised design, ESCC requested that WSP produce a further revision
to the scheme to cover only the four sections of A259 Seaside Road and St Anthony’s Avenue
ranked as priority scheme areas that would bring the highest benefits to bus users. Further
updates to the feasibility designs resulted in a scheme with bus lanes being proposed only
where parking currently exists rather than converting running lanes, i.e. there would be no
reduction in lane capacity for general traffic.

The revised scheme was subject to public consultation between 15" July and 18™ August
2024. A Consultation Report was produced by WSP which indicated, from the 2,788
consultation responses received, the proportion of supportive responses was greater than
opposing responses (56% overall support vs 37% overall oppose). However, some
respondents cited concerns regarding the proposed removal of right turn pockets and
expressed the view that vehicles waiting to turn right would cause more congestion. Some
respondents also cited concerns regarding the proposed removal of pedestrian crossing
islands, often in relation to the existing staggered signal-controlled crossings. It was noted that
the proposed single stage pedestrian crossings would mean one set of traffic signals rather
than two, i.e. stopping traffic in both directions.

To verify respondents’ concerns regarding increased traffic congestion with the bus priority
proposals in place, in August 2024 ESCC requested WSP to proceed with detailed modelling
using the Vissim microsimulation software tool. Microsimulation modelling (as opposed to
localised junction modelling using Junctions 10 software) is best for simulating the effects of
exit blocking and driver behaviour but is a higher cost approach as model building and
validation takes time to complete. It was agreed that the model would exclude the corridor
section north of Seaside Roundabout, because on this section the carriageway is generally
wider and the residual lane width following the proposed removal of right turn pockets (i.e. at

Page 104

Page 2



Lidl and Leeds Avenue) would be approximately 5.0m, enabling vehicles to undertake waiting
right turners without needing to cross into the bus lane.

The modelled network is shown in Figure 1 below, covering Seaside Road from Roselands
Avenue eastwards to Seaside Roundabout together with the roundabout approaches.

&
%6 A
0,

96
4

Figure 1: Vissim model network

DATA COLLECTION

Classified vehicle turning counts, pedestrian/cycle crossing counts and bus stop dwell time
surveys were undertaken by ESCC on Wednesday 4" September 2024 covering the periods
0700 to 1000 and 1500 to 1800. Vehicle journey time data was supplied from the INRIX
database.

Vehicle turning counts covered the following junctions:

e A259/Romney Street/Windermere Crescent;
e A259/Channel View Road/Churchdale Road;
o A259/Churchdale Road/Wartling Road;

e A259/Sandwich Street;

o A259/Rye Street;

e A259/Southbourne Road/Winchelsea Road;
o A259/Finmere Road/Vine Square;

o A259/Allfrey Road;

o A259/Northbourne Road/Myrtle Road;

e A259/Fort Road; and

e A259/A2290 Lottbridge Drove roundabout (Seaside Roundabout).

Page 105

Page 3



The AM peak hour was identified as 07:45 to 08:45 and the PM peak hour as 17:00 to 18:00.
Pedestrian/cycle crossing counts were undertaken for the following locations:

e Staggered signalised crossing between the Romney Street and Channel View Road
junctions;

e Zebra crossing between the Southbourne Road and Finmere Road junctions; and

e Staggered signalised crossing between the Northbourne Road and Fort Road junctions.

The above data was used in the building of the base Vissim model. The model validated
satisfactorily and can therefore be considered a robust tool to test the impacts of the bus
priority proposals on general traffic.

MODELLED SCENARIOS

The following scenarios were modelled initially:
e Base — existing layout (using September 2024 traffic data); and
e Option 1 — the summer 2024 feasibility design proposals

Following the Option 1 test, three further refinements were considered to explore additional
potential enhancements to the road network:

e Option 2 —as Option 1 except that the zebra crossing between the Southbourne Road
and Finmere Road junctions is replaced by a signalised crossing;

e Option 3 — as Option 2 except that a right turn pocket to Southbourne Road is
reintroduced (1 car length); and

e Option 4 — as Option 3 except that a right turn pocket to Northbourne Road is
reintroduced (1 car length). This would necessitate a small reduction in the bus lane
length and on-street parking capacity (potentially up to three car lengths) on the
eastbound side compared with Options 1 to 3.

It is recognised that replacement of the zebra crossing with a signalised crossing between
the junctions of Southbourne Road and Finmere Road may increase pedestrian crossing
wait times but conversely may improve crossing safety by removing the “give way” element
to general traffic. A signalised crossing can also be configured to allow free flow buses
through the area.

Page 106

Page 4



SUMMARY OF RESULTS

General traffic journey times

AM Peak (0745 — 0845)

AM peak period modelled journey times on the A259 between Roselands Avenue and Queen’s
Crescent (South) for general traffic (EB = eastbound, WB = westbound) are illustrated in
Figure 2 and tabulated in Table 1 below.

Full Routes Summary for general traffic (AM)

m Base
m0pl
"0p2

0p3
u0pd

Route Name

Figure 2: AM peak modelled journey times for general traffic (seconds)

Route

Names Base | Opl Op2 Op3 Op4
Eastbound 155 150 134 133 135
Westbound 186 222 184 172 161

Table 1: AM peak modelled journey times for general traffic (seconds)

Page 107

Page 5



It can be seen from the above that Option 1 results in a small reduction in eastbound AM peak
journey times for general traffic. This is considered sensible because in the base scenario,
eastbound buses are stopping in road space used by general traffic and vehicles may have to
cross into the opposing lane to overtake them, whereas in Option 1 buses would be stopping
within the bus lane.

However, in the westbound direction there is a moderate increase (36 seconds) in AM peak
journey times with Option 1, with the introduction of single stage signalised crossings and
removal of right turn pockets likely to be contributory factors.

Options 2, 3 and 4 provide progressively greater journey time reductions in comparison with
the base scenario. In both eastbound and westbound directions, there is nil detriment and a
slight betterment in Options 2, 3 and 4 compared to the current situation in the eastbound
direction, and nil detriment and a slight betterment in the westbound direction in Options 3 and
4.

PM Peak (1700 — 1800)

PM peak period modelled journey times for general traffic are illustrated in Figure 3 and
tabulated in Table 2 below. These indicate that, as with the AM peak, Option 1 results in a
reduction in general traffic journey times in the eastbound direction. The replacement of the
zebra crossing with a signalised crossing between Southbourne Road and Finmere Road is
predicted to have a slight diwBenefit (as opposed to a benefit during the AM peak) because
there are fewer crossing movements in the PM peak.

In the westbound direction, there is a moderate increase in journey time (15-16 seconds)
under Options 1 and 2 in comparison with the base, but the introduction of a 1 car right turn
pocket to Southbourne Road is predicted to nullify this increase.

In summary, the predicted changes in journey time for general traffic in both the AM and PM
peak periods are small and likely within actual day to day journey time variability. The small
increases in westbound journey times predicted for Options 1 and 2 can be fully mitigated, as
demonstrated by the outputs for Options 3 and 4. It can therefore be concluded that with
minor amendments to the summer 2024 bus priority proposals that nil detriment to general
traffic movements is likely to be achieved.

Page 108

Page 6



250

200

50

Full Routes Summary for general traffic (PM)

Route Name

m Base
m0pl
" 0p2

Op3
u0pd

Figure 3: PM peak modelled journey times for general traffic (seconds)

Route

Names Base Opl Op2 Op3 Op4
Eastbound 153 135 140 140 139
Westbound 177 192 193 177 162

Table 2: PM peak modelled journey times for general traffic (seconds)

Page 109

Page 7




CONCLUSIONS AND NEXT STEPS

The results of the Vissim microsimulation modelling indicate that the summer 2024 bus priority
feasibility design proposals (Option 1) are predicted to deliver a small reduction in eastbound
journey times for general traffic in both the AM and PM peak periods, with a larger reduction
in eastbound journey times for buses. However, in the westbound direction Option 1 is
predicted to result in a small increase in journey time for both general traffic.

Further refinements to the bus priority proposals were therefore tested to explore the potential
to mitigate the negative journey time impacts and deliver enhancements where possible.
These refinements comprised:

¢ the replacement of the zebra crossing between the Southbourne Road and Finmere Road
junctions with a signalised crossing (Option 2);

e the zebra crossing replacement plus the provision of a 1 car length right turn lane at
Southbourne Road (Option 3); and

o the zebra crossing replacement, 1 car length right turn lane at Southbourne Road and 1
car length right turn lane at Northbourne Road (Option 4).

Option 2 mitigates the negative impacts of the proposals on westbound journey times during
the AM peak period but results in a slight diWwBenefit to journey times in both directions relative
to Option 1 during the PM peak period, when pedestrian crossing movements are fewer.

Options 3 is predicted to fully mitigate the negative impacts of the proposals on westbound
journey times for general traffic and buses in both the AM and PM peak periods.

Option 4 is predicted to not only mitigate the negative impacts on westbound journey times
during both peak periods but to reduce journey times relative to the base situation. However,
Option 4 would necessitate a reduction in on-street parking capacity (potentially up to three
car lengths).

To date the proposed scheme amendments in Options 2, 3 and 4 have not been subject to
full feasibility design but would be considered at the scheme’s detailed design stage.

In conclusion, Options 3 and 4 are predicted to have nil detriment to general traffic journey
times in both the AM and PM peak periods, whilst delivering significant benefits to bus
reliability and journey times.

Page 110

Page 8



Appendix 4

Appendix 4 — Seaside/St Anthonys Avenue bus priority: Petitions received by ESCC

East Sussex County Council received two e-Petitions during the consultation period on the
revised bus priority proposals for Seaside & St Anthony’s Avenue. These were presented at
Full Council on 8 October 2024. The wording of each petition alongside the responses is
outlined below.

Petitions

1. Support Seaside, Eastbourne Bus Lane — 494 signatures (presented by Councillor
Wright)

“We the undersigned petition the council to support Seaside, Eastbourne Bus Lane.

Join us in safeguarding Eastbourne's forward-thinking initiative to implement a bus
lane on Seaside Road. This proposal embodies our commitment to sustainable
transport, easing traffic congestion, reducing carbon emissions, and enhancing public
transport accessibility for all residents. By signing this petition, you're advocating for
a greener, more efficient future for our community. Let's ensure that Eastbourne
remains a leader in progressive urban planning and environmental stewardship.
Together, we can protect this vital project and pave the way for a brighter, more
connected tomorrow.”

This e-Petition ran from 01/06/2024 to 27/08/2024 and has now finished. 50 people
signed this e-Petition and a further 444 signing a paper version.

2. Stop The Seaside Bus Lane in Eastbourne - 2,531 signatures (presented by Councillor
Tutt)

“We the undersigned petition the council to stop with the unwanted designs and work
for the Bus Lanes in Seaside in which the public have already spoken and the record
show the outstanding percentage of people who strongly oppose the plans because
they are not wanted or needed. We want the plans to be scrapped and for the safety
of Seaside and its future to be confirmed as there are already plans for Seaside
roundabout that funding will be sought for from 2025.

The public have spoken and the results show over 80% of people did not want or see
the need for a bus lane on Seaside, this being said the funding means there is still
money to be spent and support for the buses is needed to help secure their future.
This is why there are revised plans that are open to consultation. We are opposing
these plans because they do not work, the congestion it will create to all road users
will be detrimental to the governments BSIP scheme and | quote the consultation
FAQ's:

We want to make it easier and more pleasant for people to use the bus in East
Sussex. We

are working to provide better quality bus services that offer:

* a frequent choice

* reduce congestion

* make a positive contribution to better air quality and decarbonisation.

This plan is going to deliver the opposite to what it designed for and the money
should be spent on better ways of supporting the bus service like surveying the bus
routes that was not been done in over 10 years due to costs.

The calculations also advertised are unbelievable and requires explanation, the
working out need publishing as 76 hours saved from the introduction of bus lanes
divided by the 14000 passengers it would benefit works out 20 seconds a week per
person, 3 seconds a day. Multiply that but the 80 people who can travel on a double
decker bus makes 4 minuets meaning, but this sum is for the total week not a single

Page 111



bus; considering there are on average 30 buses an hour that travel down Seaside
you can see that either the maths is flawed.

We as residents and workers of Eastbourne need to speak up and have our say, sign
the petition if like us you believe that we do not want or need a bus lane on Seaside
that it will not improve the bus service as most parts of the day traffic is free flowing
and ironically it is the current bus priority layouts that cause the congestion issues.
Parking being cut by also 50% because of the bus lanes will also affect schools,
businesses and residents as we will all be fighting to secure a space to park, this
could put businesses under strain, lower house prices and cause an unsafe
environment for school drop offs and pick ups.

Please sign this petition if you support us in stopping the Seaside bus lane”

This e-Petition ran from 19/07/2024 to 27/08/2024 and has now finished. 51 people
signed this e-Petition with a further 2480 people signing a paper version.

Page 112



Agenda Iltem 5

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 18 November 2024

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Petition: Implement a 40mph speed limit within the parish of
Arlington

Purpose: To consider a petition for a traffic safety survey and implementation

of a 40mph speed limit within the parish of Arlington

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to advise the petitioners that:

1) an assessment of the safety record of the roads detailed in the petition has been
undertaken by the Road Safety Team and there are no locations that meet the
Council’s threshold for inclusion in our annual road safety programme; and

2) theroads and lanes within the parishes of Arlington, Berwick and Long Man set out
at paragraph 1.1 below do not meet the Council’s policy for a 40mph speed limit,
and measures such as gateway features, Vehicle Activated Signs (VAS) and
improved signage may be appropriate. These measures could be considered via
the Community Match initiative. The Traffic and Safety team can provide Arlington
Parish Council with advice over what measures could be considered.

1 Background Information

1.1.  Atthe County Council Full Council meeting on 9 July 2024, a petition was presented to
the Chairman by Councillor Bennett on behalf of Arlington Parish Council. The Parish Council are
requesting a traffic safety survey and the implementation of a 40mph speed limit on the following
roads within the parishes of Arlington, Berwick and Long Man:

¢ Arlington Road West, Michelham Priory Road, Caneheath, Tye Hill Road, Tye Hill
Lane, Wilbees Road, The Street, Chilver Bridge Road, Common Lane (Berwick),
Bayleys Lane (Wilmington), Robin Post Lane (Wilmington), Hayreed Lane
(Wilmington), Thornwell Road (Wilmington)

1.2. Standing Orders provide that where the Chairman considers it appropriate, petitions are
considered by the relevant Committee or Lead Member and a spokesperson for the petitioners is
invited to address the Committee. The Chairman has referred this petition to the Lead Member for
Transport and Environment. A copy of the petition is available in the Members’ Room.

2 Supporting Information

2.1. The roads within the parishes of Arlington, Berwick and Long Man are subject to the
National Speed Limit and are predominantly rural single-track lanes with limited frontage
development. There are narrow sections and low bridges. A location plan can be found at
Appendix 1.

2.2. Each year the Council identifies sites that have the most crashes that result in personal
injury as part of the annual Road Safety Programme. The causes of the crashes are studied to
assess how we can reduce the number of casualties on the roads in East Sussex. We use our
crash data analysis system to identify where crashes are happening. Our system holds all

Page 113



personal injury crashes recorded by Sussex Police. A crash site is identified as a location where
there have been four or more crashes in a three-year period, within a 25-metre radius in urban
areas and a 50-metre radius in rural locations. Based on the crash analysis each year 24 sites
are prioritised and then fully investigated and assessed by experienced members of the Road
Safety team, with measures introduced to address the crash record.

2.3. Anassessment of the safety record of the roads detailed in the petition has been
undertaken by the Road Safety team and there are no locations that meet the Council’s threshold
for inclusion in our annual road safety programme. The crash data provided by Sussex Palice, for
the roads identified by the petitioners, indicates that there have been 2 serious and 6 slight
personal injury crashes for the latest three-year period up to 31 August 2024. A plan showing the
location of these crashes can be found at Appendix 2 The crashes do not form cluster sites as
detailed above. It has been noted that one crash has excessive speed as a contributory factor.

2.4.  The setting of appropriate and effective speed limits has been subject to a significant level
of research. It is important drivers are provided with a consistent message, so they know what is
expected of them as they enter different road environments. A predominant factor considered
when determining an effective speed limit is the number of properties that are visible to drivers.
Although it is acknowledged that there are some visible property frontages in these parishes,
including two pubs and the village hall within Arlington, the lanes are predominantly rural in
nature with continuous development over a relatively short length of road.

2.5. Due to limited frontage development and local characteristics, these roads and lanes do
not meet the Council’s policy requirements for a lower speed limit; therefore, the national speed
limit applies. Whilst they are subject to the national speed limit, the onus is on the individual driver
to drive in a safe and judicious manner, and to the conditions of the road and the surroundings
through which they pass. It is recognised nationally that most drivers will travel at the speed they
consider to be safe for the conditions of the road. The majority of responsible drivers using the
roads and lanes around Arlington will already be choosing to travel at a speed below the national
speed limit due to the nature of the rural lanes.

2.6.  Speed surveys have been carried out on Caneheath and The Street. There is a
permanent telemetry device located on Arlington Road West. The location of the three surveys
and data results are included in Appendix 3. The surveys in Caneheath and The Street indicated
that the average speed of drivers is below 35mph with 85" percentile speeds (the speed that 85
percent of the drivers are travelling below) of around 40mph. Data from the permanent telemetry
device in Arlington Road West indicated that the average speed of drivers is 41mph with 85"
percentile speeds of 49mph. Road Safety officers’ expectation is that the other roads detailed in
paragraph 1.1 will have broadly similar average speeds.

2.7. A 40mph speed limit would be higher than the recorded mean speeds for Caneheath and
The Street and is unlikely to achieve speed reductions or improve safety. Data for Arlington Road
West indicates that drivers are already driving at around 40mph without the need for a reduced

speed limit therefore a 40mph limit would be unlikely to have the desired speed reducing impact.

2.8.  Where the national speed limit applies, it is not necessary to provide repeater signs
indicating the limit unless there is street lighting present. If a lower speed limit was introduced on
Arlington Road West, The Street and Caneheath, it would be necessary to provide speed limit
repeater signs at regular intervals along the roads. There is a risk that some drivers would see
the signed 40mph speed limit as a target or assume that it is safe and appropriate to drive to the
limit throughout the area. This could result in increased speeds on The Street and Caneheath
whereas at present, the majority of drivers are choosing to drive at or below 40mph on these
roads.

2.9. The roads identified by the petitioners do not meet the criteria set out in the Council’s
Policy for a lower speed limit in terms of the road character or environment, therefore the national
speed limit is the correct restriction for these roads. A copy of policy No. PS05/02 Local Speed
Limits can be found at Appendix 4.

Page 114



2.10 Road Safety features such as vehicle activated signs (VAS), gateway features and
improved signage may be appropriate for the area. It is recognised that whilst a road safety
scheme in Arlington is not currently a priority for East Sussex County Council, it is still
important to the local community and certain measures could be considered under the
Community Match initiative. This initiative can provide part funding for local schemes and is
managed by East Sussex Highways. Further information regarding this can be found at What
is Community Match | Community Match | live.eastsussexhighways.com

The Community Match initiative can be used to consider schemes that would cost less than
£120,000 to design and construct, which would include VASgateway features and additional
signage.

2.11 In order to determine which measures could be suitable in this area, prior to a Community
Match application, it is suggested that Arlington Parish Council contacts the neighbouring Parish
Councils, to ascertain whether they would be interested in supporting a scheme to influence
traffic conditions in the area. Support from the Parish Council does not need to be financial — any
group interested in taking a scheme forward through Community Match can provide the funding.
The Traffic and Safety Manager is happy to meet with the Lead Petitioner and the Parish Council
to discuss possible scheme options.

2.12 The speed data from Caneheath, The Street and Arlington Road West that was recently
collected can be provided to the group, upon request, however, should further speed data be
required, more data can be collected by contacting our Transport Monitoring Team at
transport.monitoring@eastsussex.gov.uk. There is a charge for providing this service, the cost to
undertake one 7 day speed/volume survey is £422+VAT, however discounts are available when
multiple surveys are requested. Further speed data collection will not be funded by East Sussex
County Council.

3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1. Speed surveys have shown that average speeds on Caneheath, The Street and Arlington
Road West are already very close to or below 40mph, and it is expected that the other roads
detailed in paragraph 1.1 will have broadly similar average speeds.

3.2. Itis recommended that the Lead Member advises the petitioners that a lower speed limit
on the roads and lanes detailed in paragraph 1.1 does not meet the Council’s policy for a 40mph
speed limit for the reasons set out in paragraphs 2.4and 2.5 . It is also recommended that the
petitioners are advised that an assessment of the safety record of the roads specified in the
petition has been carried out and there are no locations that meet the Council’s threshold for
inclusion in our annual road safety programme.

3.3 Itisrecommended that the Lead Member for Transport and Environment advises
petitioners that whilst a lower speed limit does not meet the Council’s policy for a 40mph limit,
other road safety improvements could be considered should an alternative source of funding
become available, or if an application through Community Match was successful.

3.4 It is recommended that the Lead Member for Transport and Environment advises the lead
petitioner that the Traffic and Safety Manager is happy to meet to discuss possible options for
consideration through Community Match. The speed data for Caneheath, The Street and

Page 115


mailto:transport.monitoring@eastsussex.gov.uk

Arlington Road West that was recently collected can be provided to the group, upon request and
further speed data collections can be arranged, should external funding be available.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Clare Akehurst
Tel. No. 01323 463402
Email: clare.akehurst@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS

Councillor Nick Bennett

Councillor Stephen Shing

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 116


mailto:clare.akehurst@eastsussex.gov.uk

Key:

== Roads identified by
Arlington Parish Council

S
@
N PRI R 8—
Fé\f\x\'\ / >\/\ / o
[ERY
SCALE 1:36870
East SUSSE)} Appendix 1 - Arlington LMTE - Location plan
County Council DATE 31/10/2024
DRAWING NO.
-Crown-copyright-Al-rightsreserved: DRAWN BY

East Sussex County Council.

Licence No. AC0000808855. 2023

ORIGINAL SIZE



victoriab
Polygon Line

victoriab_1
Polygon Line

victoriab_2
Polygon Line

victoriab_3
Polygon Line

victoriab_4
Polygon Line

victoriab_5
Polygon Line

victoriab_6
Text Box
Key:

	Roads identified by Arlington Parish Council


victoriab_7
Line


This page is intentionally left blank



371S TYNISINO < £20Z '55880800000Y 'ON 80U
; ‘IouNo) Auno) xessng jseq
ABNMVEa 3 =E)=m : : -
]
"ON ONIMYYA N ¥202/80/T€
A
¥20¢2/60/50 21va aAEepleene 11ouno) Ayuno)
0009E -1 o 3LINT N peads ydwoy uolBulpy 9 uoision depsooy Xassns 3583

snoyes 4

wbis O

K8y

auEeT uowwo)

peoy abpug JeAIYD

" page 119

peoy uonels

ylesysue)n

peoy
Aioud weypyoin

1SS\ peoy uoBuljly

Z Xipuaddy

/



victoriab_8
Text Box
Key:

	Slight 


	Serious 


victoriab_9
Rectangle

victoriab_10
Polygon

victoriab_11
Text Box
3 year data to 31/08/2024



This page is intentionally left blank



AAANA ‘o1
BB ¥202/60/9¢ -8led

-Joyiny

000°GZ:} -°ledg

1PUNo) Ayuno)
Xassng jse3

dep

S

ot
b
-

“\ﬂx.ﬂiw,cw:h:oﬁmmm_
N il B

B

suoneoo| Aenins paadsg .

F

T

Appetat

Koy

A

Hzzy:

ype

yiesysuey yceov

1S9\ PEOY UOJBUILY 9LV

7202 m.m.mme@%....ooeg J1ounog AJuno xessng Jsed "paalesal spybul ||y Jybukdod umold @

7

/

=m_m_.._o _.—_..U“—.m_x ‘Yyyim JorId}UI 1O ‘0} puodsal 0} noAk ajgeus o} A]ajos elep Siy} ash o} papiwiad ale noA

\

§

/

ayauen

oy

uo)buijiy

7

....._._..\_.. ]
74
? \

3 H ﬂ

1981S 8yl G2ZEV w

©
uojsauwfbg

f/(\
198 SYOIM Q)
ﬁ.\\. /

R ’d \ /

N\
i

//v\l,fJ :
a J/ ;

‘woy Aue ul saiyed paiyy o} ejep siy} jo Aue [[9s 10 9INqL)SIP ‘@OUdDI-gNS

‘Ado9 0} pajjiwiad jou aie noA "ejep ay} yym nok papinouad jeyy uoljesiuebio ayy
66880800000V AdAIng ddueupiQ $Z0Z sIybl aseqejep pue jybuuAdos umoid @
'$20Z 119unod QHuno 9 xassng 3se3z @ '$zZ0z woobuiddewlas @ Aydeibojoyd jeliay
Z10Z dnouo uoljewsojujoas ayl @ Aydesbojoyd [erioe pajeanay salj)

202 paA1asaa spybi |y "p31 dnoug uonewlopu) yiewpue] jybl aseqeep @

oy

uojbuIAleyDAS.,

sAanins paads woly ejep pue uejd uoneoo) - ¢ xipuaddy



victoriab_12
Text Box
Key:

	Speed survey locations


victoriab_13
Oval


eastsussex.gov.uk East Sussex

County Council

o

o
oY

Transport Monitoring
Team

Speed Surveys for
Road Safety Team
Sept 2024

For further information regarding the commissioning of all
types of transport surveys please contact:

Transport Monitoring Team Manager

Transport Monitoring Team,

East Sussex County Council,

Communities, Economy & Transport Department, County Hall,
St. Anne’s Crescent, Lewes, East Sussex, BN7 1UE

Email: transport.monitoring@eastsussex.gov.uk



Area Surveyed:
Our ref: A6324 — Caneheath, north of Tye Hill Rd

Grid ref: 50.8478541, .2110738
A6325 — The Street, Arlington, north of Aweside Farm
Grid Ref: 50.8425226, .1888785

Monitoring Period: 24" Sept to 15t Oct 2024

Methodology: The survey was carried out using a Speed Detection Radar
(SDR), attached to a post at the location.

Results:
The volume and speed of traffic were recorded and the results are displayed as
summaries.

The average 85" percentile speed over twenty-four hours was recorded as:

A6324 Northbound 40 miles per hour
Southbound 40 miles per hour
A6325 Northbound 38 miles per hour
Southbound 38 miles per hour

The 85" percentile speed is the speed at, or below, which 85 percent of the traffic is travelling, or
viewed another way, the speed that only 15 percent of drivers exceed.

The average speed over twenty-four hours was recorded as:

A6324 Northbound 33 miles per hour
Southbound 34 miles per hour
A6325 Northbound 31 miles per hour
Southbound 31 miles per hour

The average speed is the speed at, or below, which 50 percent of the traffic is travelling, or viewed
another way, the speed that only 50 percent of drivers exceed.

Page 123



East Sussex County Council’'s Transport
transport surveys including:

e Classified Turning Counts
e Journey Time Surveys

e Bus Time Surveys

e Pedestrian Counts

e Passenger Counts

e Parking Surveys

Monitoring Team carries out a range of

e Automatic Volumetric Counts
e Radar Speed Surveys
o Cycle Surveys

e Video Surveys

Historical data is available from numerous sites across East Sussex.

Page 124




¥20¢ 1990100 01} U0 1 G| ‘18 pSiulid
s|eqo|o ||V 8pNjou| ® pepnjou| SiUeAT |00

4 € 9 ¥ ¥S 66 z8 S¥ 4} 9 ¥ Z ! 6 cF 1S eT4%

00:LL 00§t 00:91 00:L} 00:91 00:91 00:91 00:91 00:¥1 00:¥1 00:€L 00:1 00:1 00:02 00:€2 00:02 00:91 yead Nd

4 € 6 44 96 ozl z8 62 L ¥ z ! ! 6 0S 29¢

00:90  00:30 00:£0 00:£0 00:£0 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 0011 0011 00:L1 00:11 00:€0 00:00 00:80 ead NV

9l ze 9L §SC 955 L6 S9L L9¢ LEE 9¢ 44 (]! ¥ 8 (K7 67 [Ke]KS (r2-0)HvT

St 0¢ €L 0sZ 6vS 906 09Z 99¢ oLl g¢ r44 (]! ¥ 8 (K7 6¥ zcle (FZ-9)Hs8!

Gl 0¢ L LT S 968 €SL 29¢ 801 Ge 44 (]! ¥ 8 (K7 6¥ 160¢ (zz-9)H9l

4! ¥ 09 6Lz S0S €8 20L gee 56 ze Iz (]! ¥ 8 (K7 6V 6¥82 (61-L)Hz!1
leloL

0 0 0 ! ! 4 4 ! 0 0 0 0 0 8 cF 8 00:€2

0 ! ! 4 S L S € 4 0 0 0 0 8 rA 0S L2 00:22

0 ! Z 14 L 6 L 9 4 0 0 0 0 8 rA 4 0S (87 001

L z Z g 9 4! ok 8 g ! 0 0 0 6 (K7 1S €S 00:02 0

0 ! € 9 Zl 6l 44 €l 9 Z ! 0 0 8 or 8y ¥8 00:61 N

I 4 9 4! 0¢ 0S 17 ¥ ¥ ! ! ! 0 8 rA 6¥ 8Ll 00:81 A

Z € S ¥2 IS a8 vL 62 (] € ! ! 0 L rA 6V 882 00:L1 %J

0 € 9 44 ¥S 66 z8 S¥ LE € € 0 0 L (K7 8P e T4 00:91 ©

I € S St L8 L 69 o1 6 Z Z ! 0 8 (R4 87 0S2 0061 o

I ! € 4! 0¢ el LS e 4} 9 € Z ! 6 6¢ 8¥ oLz 0071

I 4 ¥ L 62 8S 95 8C L ¥ ¥ ! 0 8 of Ly 602 00:€L

0 ! ¥ zk ¥ 0S €5 8z L € z ! 0 8 of 8¥ 81 00:21

L I € 8 jord (4 8P 9z (]! ¥ Z ! ! 8 6¢ LY 8Ll 00:LL

I 4 14 6 [*14 ey (87 44 L € Z ! ! 8 or 8¥ 65l 00:01

I 4 S St ze IS or 8l 14 ! ! 0 ! 8 rA 4 0S 0L} 00:60

I € 9 ¥e vL ozl z8 62 L ! ! 0 0 L rA 6¥ 29¢ 00:30

! 4 6 44 96 Okt 95 9l 4 0 ! 0 0 9 44 1S L€€ 00:£0

4 € 9 4! 4! (174 6 4 ! 0 0 0 0 8 LY S5 69 00:90

0 I 4 4 ¥ € 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 LY S5 Sl 00:50

0 0 ! 4 I I I 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 8P 9 0040

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 (K7 ! 00:€0

0 0 0 0 0 ! ! 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 (K7 Z 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0S ! 0010

0 0 ! L ! 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0S € 00:00

G9<=  G9>-09 09>-SS S§S>-0S 0S>-SF S¥>0F Ov>SE G€>0¢ 0€>GZ G2>-02 02>-GL SGI>0L udnol> uonewmaq abereAy  S|IuUSdIdd  SWNIOA
gLug zrug  Lpuig  opug 6 uig gug Lug gug gug yug gug zug I uig piepuels ues|\ wss [e10)
sjpuuey) |Iv palddy siayji4 ON voday (sheq |Iv¥) Aewwng paadg
917100000 -90ualsjay alS ¥20¢2/01/20 o1 ¥20¢2/60/%7¢ wol4 91100000 -lequnp 8ls

WVHSTIVH 1S3M dvOd NOLONITHY 0120



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

LEAD MEMBER — COMMUNITIES AND SAFETY
POLICY SUMMARY

LOCAL SPEED LIMITS PS05/02

PURPOSE OF POLICY

To achieve a safe distribution of speeds consistent with the speed limit that reflects
the function of the road and the road environment

SPECIFIC POLICIES

1. On trunk roads, speed limits (in common with other orders regulating traffic)
are the responsibility of the Department for Transport (DfT), through its
executive agency, Highways England. The County Council has no jurisdiction
over this class of road.

2. On all other roads Orders are made by the County Council subject to the
statutory requirements for the advertisement of the proposals and
considerations of any objections.

3. The principle determinant of a proposed speed limit should be the appearance
and character of the road as described in Appendix A.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Adherence to the criteria ensures consistency in the introduction of Local Speed
Limits on a countywide basis and supports the work that has been undertaken with
neighbouring authorities. It is recognised that, where appropriate, a lower speed limit
can assist in the reduction of the number and severity of casualties and help to
improve environmental aspects and quality of life for local residents. Reference
should always be made to the latest national guidance available.

References — Further Information Date of
Approval

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

Department for Transport — Circular Roads 01/2006
Department for Transport — Circular Roads 02/2006
Department for Transport — Traffic Advisor Leaflet 1/04
Department for Transport — Traffic Advisory Leaflet 2/06
Department for Transport- Circular Roads 01/2013

H & T Committee — Agenda Item 10

H & T Committee — Agenda Item 18 17.03.1993

: ) 19.10.1994
Cabinet Committee — Agenda Item 5

: 15.11.2000

Lead Member for Transport and Environment — Agenda Item 11 25 06.2007

" 0
Lead Member for Communities & Safepygégerda Item ?- 16/03/2018




SPECIFIC POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.

b)

b)

c)

Subject to paragraphs 5 and 6 below, villages may be considered for the
introduction of a 30 mph speed limit in accordance with recommendations of
DfT guidance for setting local speed limits providing that there are 20 or more
properties served by private accesses which adjoin the main road (on one or
both sides of the road), located over a length of not less than 600 metres, and
clearly visible to drivers.

Speed limits should be set in accordance with the table below :-

Speed Average
Limit Speed
Below
20 24
30 33
40 42
50 52
60 62

Where the average speed is above the figures quoted in paragraph 5 for a
particular speed limit being investigated then, subject to available resources,
either :-

Where the history of injury crashes at the site justifies the necessary
expenditure, engineering measures appropriate to the function of the road
should be investigated to reduce vehicle speeds below the figures quoted in
paragraph 5 for a particular speed limit. If this can be achieved a Traffic
Regulation Order (TRO) for the proposed speed limit may then be made in
conjunction with the introduction of engineered measures.

Where engineering measures are not appropriate due to the function of the
road or cannot be justified by the history of crashes a TRO may be considered
for a higher limit than that originally proposed which reflects the speed quoted
in paragraph 5.

20mph Speed Limits and Zones

20mph speed limits or zones can positively contribute to quality of life and
encourage healthier modes of transport such as walking or cycling. They can
also help in creating a sense a place, better serving the local communities’
needs. However, to ensure that they are effective, they will only be pursued if
the following general criteria are met: -

It can be demonstrated that there are clear benefits to be gained in terms of
casualty reduction, particularly involving vulnerable road users;

The lower limit is an integral part of either an area wide traffic calming
scheme, a School/ Community Safety Zone or a Town Centre Management
Scheme; and

The lower limit is effectively self-enforcing

Page 128




Local Speed Limits — PS05/02

Proposed Speed Limit Criteria — Route Assessment
Below gives an indication of appropriate speed limits, reference should be made to the latest
Department for Transport guidance for more detailed information.

Appendix A

SPEED LIMIT/
CHARACTER OF
ENVIRONMENT

CHARACTER OF ROAD

TRAFFIC COMPOSITION

20 mph Speed Limit

Town centres, residential
areas, in the vicinity of
schools

Constrained in terms of
vehicle movement with
existing conditions or
engineered features
influencing vehicle speed
with available alternative
routes for through traffic

Mean vehicle speed below
24 mph

High proportion of vulnerable
road users in direct conflict
with traffic

30 mph Speed Limits

Built up areas, visible
properties with frontage
access, the road giving a
clear indication to drivers of
the need to reduce speed

Urban streets

Roads through villages and
identified rural settlements
with 20+ visible properties
within a 600m length

Mean vehicle speed below
33mph

Significant number of
vulnerable road users in
conflict with vehicular traffic

40 mph Speed Limits

Less built up areas, set back
properties with frontage
access indicating to drivers
the need to reduce speed

Urban

Suburban distributor roads
buildings set back from the
road

Rural

Roads through villages and
identified rural settlements
over a minimum length of
600m

Mean vehicle speed below
42mph

Urban
Vulnerable road users
segregated from road space

Rural
A noticeable presence of
vulnerable road users

50 mph Speed Limits

Limited frontage
development

Higher quality urban
distributors with few points of
access

Low standard classified
roads

Mean vehicle speed below
52mph

60 mph Speed Limits (Dual Carriageways)

Limited frontage
development

High standard rural classified
roads

Mean vehicle speed below
62mph

Note: Vulnerable road users include pedestrians (particularly children, the elderly and

disabled) and cyclists.

Page 129




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 18 November 2024

By: Director of Communities, Economy, and Transport

Title: Eastbourne Town Centre Movement and Access Package — Phase 2a

revised scope

Purpose: To approve the revised scope of Phase 2a of the Eastbourne Town
Centre Movement and Access Package subject to final approval of
the updated business case by the Lead Member for Strategic
Management and Economic Development

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Lead Member is recommended to approve the revised scope for Eastbourne Town
Centre Movement and Access Package Phase 2a and moving forward to construction in
2025/26 subject to final approval of the business case and project change request by the
Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic Development.

1 Background

1.1. In 2014 East Sussex County Council secured £6m of Local Growth Fund (LGF) monies
from the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) towards an Eastbourne Town Centre
Movement and Access Package (ETCMAP). An additional £2m of LGF monies was reallocated to
the package in 2017, bringing the total available to £8m.

1.2. £5m of the ETCMAP was allocated towards the delivery of the Eastbourne Town Centre
Improvement Scheme (Phase 1) which completed in January 2020. Following extensive
stakeholder led engagement on developing a pipeline of potential movement and access
improvements for Eastbourne town centre, the identified second phase of the Town Centre
Improvement package focussed on:

e Upgrading the existing Terminus Road pedestrianised area from ‘Bankers Corner’ (the junction
of Terminus Road with Cornfield Road) through to the junction with Langney Road;

e Introduce a new pedestrianisation section of Terminus Road. This will result in the removal of
the current one-way traffic movement from Bolton Road through a short section of Terminus
Road and into Langney Road, by introducing a two-way traffic configuration at the lower ends
of both Bolton Road and Langney Road; and

e Creating a new pedestrianised civic space outside Marks and Spencer that continues the
character, vibrancy and palette of materials used in the Phase 1 - Eastbourne Town Centre
Improvement Scheme.

1.3. The initial business case for Phase 2a of the ETCMAP (previously referred to as Phase 2)
was completed in January 2019 and secured the remaining £3m of SELEP LGF monies at the
SELEP Accountability Board on 23 February 2019, with construction scheduled to commence in
2019/20 and scheme completion scheduled for 2020/21.

1.4. The outcome of the public consultation on the Phase 2 proposals carried out between
November and December 2019 were presented to the Lead Member for Transport and
Environment’s decision-making meeting on 22 April 2020. The Lead Member resolved that the
ETCMAP should progress to detailed design and construction stages. The final detailed design
was subsequently approved on 19 July 2021 at the Lead Member for Transport and Environment’s
decision-making meeting, following an e-petition submitted by local businesses and a review of
accessibility and blue badge parking within the vicinity of the scheme.

Page 131



15 However, since the award of the LGF funding for the project in 2019, the construction
sector has faced a significant rise in material costs, supply chain disruptions, and labour shortages,
exacerbated by both the pandemic and the conflict in Ukraine. These factors have contributed to
significant unexpected budget increases for Phase 2a of the Eastbourne Town Centre
Improvement Scheme. This situation has also been experienced on similar Local Growth Funded
packages being delivered by the County Council which have been reviewed and re-scoped to fit
within their respective funding envelopes.

2 Supporting information
Funding Constraints

2.1 The County Council has made considerable efforts to reduce the funding gap for the
project. In 2022/23, £0.8m was allocated from the County Council’s capital programme for local
transport improvements towards the delivery of the Town Centre Phase 2a scheme. A further
£0.715m was allocated in the 2023/24 capital programme for local transport improvements towards
the scheme and an allocation of £0.3m was included in the capital programme approved by the
Lead Member in March 2024. In 2023/24 an additional £0.75m was secured via the Active Travel
England 4 fund.

Funding Source Total (Em)
Local Growth Fund 3.000
Capital Programme of Local Transport Improvements:

2022/23 0.909
2023/24 0.719
2024/25 0.300
Active Travel England 0.750
TOTAL 5.678

2.2 In addition, £0.377m from the capital programme of local transport improvements was used

on the development of the scheme prior to the business case being approved.

2.3 The total budget for the project is £6.055m of which £2.461m has been spent to date (as at
end September 2024) on the preliminary and detailed design, topographical and underground
surveys, engagement with statutory utility providers and the purchase and storage of granite
surface materials. There is a remaining budget of £3.594m to complete the scheme.

24 Long term maintenance of the scheme is expected to be incorporated into the East Sussex
Highways asset management programme.

Design Review

2.5 The County Council, working with Balfour Beatty Living Places, has undertaken a
comprehensive design review of the Phase 2a scheme. This identified that the cost for completing
the scheme was £4.6m, nearly £1m over the current funding envelope. Therefore, consideration
has been given as to whether there are options for descoping and/or value engineering the
scheme as well as exploring other available funding sources.

2.6 With significant pressures on existing County Council funding sources such as the capital
programme of local transport improvements, and no current identified external funding sources
available, an assessment has been undertaken to determine the extent of the previously designed
scheme that can be delivered with the remaining available funding. Following this review process,
and to remain within the available funding envelope, it is proposed that the design is de-scoped to
deliver the following improvements as shown at Appendix 1:

e Upgrading of the existing pedestrianised area with high quality materials, similar to Phase 1, as
well as new street furniture and additional planting along Terminus Road between its junction
with Cornfield Road (Bankers Corner) and its junction with Bolton Road, and converting it from
a pedestrian/cycle zone into a pedestrian zone;

Page 132



e Creating a new pedestrian zone along Terminus Road between Bolton Road and Langney
Road with the continuation of new surface materials from the existing pedestrianised area
through to Marks and Spencer/Millets, and removing the existing one-way through traffic
movement;

¢ Installing a turning head at the top end of Bolton Road and converting the lower end of Bolton
Road to two-way traffic;

¢ Installing a turning head at the bottom end of Langney Road and converting the upper end of
Langney Road to two-way traffic;

¢ Changes to existing parking provision along Bolton Road, Terminus Road and Langney Road
with an emphasis on blue badge, loading and taxi parking in the available bays; and

e Converting four short term parking bays on Tideswell Road and three doctor permit bays on
Lismore Road to provide additional blue badge parking provision, offsetting the majority of the
nine blue badge parking bays lost from Terminus Road and Langney Road.

2.7 As a consequence the following elements are proposed to be descoped from the original
design:

o New surface materials and changes to the road layout, including the creation of a public space
outside Marks and Spencer (M&S), on the section of Terminus Road between M&S/Millets to
Langney Road.

2.8 By focusing resources on the most critical elements of the project, the County Council can
still deliver the core improvements and outcomes set out in the original business case that will
benefit the local community and businesses, and still achieve its primary objectives of:

e Improving pedestrian safety and accessibility (ease of movement for disabled people and/or
older people, families with pushchairs etc.) by reallocating road space to pedestrians;

e Creating a continuous pedestrian ‘spine route’ through the primary retail area of Eastbourne
Town Centre along Terminus Road between Eastbourne Station and Langney Road;

e Support economic regeneration by making the town centre more attractive for businesses,
residents, and visitors.

2.9 The full extent of Phase 2a has been developed to a detailed design stage. Should further
funding become available in the future, the County Council would be in a strong position to seek
and potentially secure additional funding to deliver the unfunded public realm and road layout
proposals at the Langney Road end of the scheme.

Updated business case and new governance process

2.10 Following the Government’s decision to transfer LEP responsibilities to upper tier local
authorities from April 2024, Government have confirmed that any Project Change Requests from
this date will be managed through East Sussex County Council internal governance processes and
submitted directly to the Government’s Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government.
Currently an East Sussex Local Growth Assurance Framework is being drafted that will outline new
processes and procedures to manage the local responsibilities that are being transferred from
SELEP to the County Council and adhere to the Government’s Local Economic Development
Fund: Assurance Framework. Until this is finalised and approved, any project changes need to be
approved by the Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic Development. As with
previous East Sussex County Council led projects that have received SELEP funding and required
changes from the original business case, such as the Hastings and Bexhill Movement and Access
Package, the updated business case will first be presented to the Lead Member for Transport and
Environment for their endorsement of the alterations.

2.11 The business case for Eastbourne Town Centre Phase 2a has been updated to reflect the
revised scheme scope as set out in paragraph 2.6 above. This includes a value for money
assessment which appraises the benefits of active travel trips generated by the scheme in relation
to health, journey quality and mode shift using:

e The Government’s Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit (AMAT); and

Page 133



e Transport for London’s (TfL) Ambience Benefit Calculator which relates to improvements to the
overall travel ‘environment’ when undertaking journeys and is based on market research into
how much per trip a passenger is willing to pay for improvements.

2.12 The outputs of the economic appraisal of the updated business case, using the assessment
tools highlighted above, show that the scheme still represents very high value for money (VfM) with
a benefit cost ratio (BCR) of 4.03:1, significantly above the originally required level of 2:1. In
addition, the appraisal identified various non-monetised benefits including:

¢ Noise — slight benefits with the pedestrianisation and upgrading of Terminus Road potentially
encouraging vehicle users to switch to walking, leading to fewer car journeys and therefore
reduction in noise level.

e Air Quality — slight benefits to air quality with the transference of car to walking trips through the
delivery of the scheme.

o Greenhouse Gases — the reduction in car trips and greater number of walking trips will
generate slight benefits by reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

e Townscape — the significant townscape improvements will offer large benefits by creating more
pleasant journeys as well as property owner benefits from higher property prices and rateable
values.

o Accidents — moderate benefits will be generated with less car journeys in the town centre
through the pedestrianisation of the section of Terminus Road between Bolton Road and
Langney Road leading to fewer accidents.

¢ Physical activity — moderate benefits will be generated by increased physical activity levels
being encouraged by modal shift to walking for existing trips.

e Security- the additional and upgraded lighting will serve to reduce crime and anti-social
behaviour and improve perceptions of personal safety generating large benefits.

e Severance — the pedestrianisation of the section of Terminus Road between Bolton Road and
Langney Road expands the pedestrian spine through the town centre linking the rail station
and seafront. The scheme will generate moderate benefits by reducing the severance for
pedestrians who previously had to navigate across the current vehicle dominated environment
with the one-way route transversing through this section of Terminus Road.

2.13 An Equality Impact Assessment was undertaken as part of the original business case. This
will be updated during the construction phases of the remaining scheme.

Consultation and Engagement

2.14  County Council officers have continued to keep local Councillors, Borough Council officers,
the Eastbourne Business Improvement District (BID) Team and the Eastbourne Chamber of
Commerce informed on the progress of the scheme and the rescoping exercise. Officers will
continue to work closely with them and wider stakeholder groups including local businesses as the
package approaches construction stage which is currently programmed for 2025/26.

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations

3.1 Since the County Council secured £3m of LGF monies from the SELEP towards the
development and delivery of Phase 2a of the Eastbourne Town Centre Movement and Access
Package (ETCMAP) in 2018, significant progress has been made on the design proposals for
pedestrian improvements on Terminus Road between Bankers Corner (the junction with Cornfield
Road) and Langney Road, aimed at supporting economic growth in Eastbourne Town Centre.

3.2 Additional funding has previously been secured from Active Travel England and allocated
from the County Council’s capital programme of local transport improvements to increase the
overall available funding to develop and deliver the Phase 2a scheme. However, scheme
development and construction costs have increased significantly across the sector because of high
inflation, the war in Ukraine and delays due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

3.3 Following a comprehensive design and cost review of the original Phase 2a scheme’s
scope, the cost to deliver the remaining schemes exceeds the £3.6m remaining funding. With no
other funding sources available to address the scheme’s funding gap, a descoping exercise has

Page 134



been undertaken to identify which elements of the existing scheme could be delivered in the
current funding envelope.

3.4  The business case for the revised Phase 2a scope, as outlined in section 2.6 of the report,
has been updated subject to approval by the Lead Member. This demonstrates that the proposed
revised scheme represents very high value for money, with a benefit to cost ratio of 4.03, alongside
delivering other non-monetised benefits. Therefore, the re-scoped scheme would continue to meet
the original goals of creating a more pedestrian-friendly environment and supporting the town
centre’s overall attractiveness that drives footfall, boosts local commerce, and contributes to the
long-term vitality of Eastbourne’s economy.

3.5 The Lead Member is therefore recommended to approve the revised ETCMAP Phase 2a
scope, as set out in paragraph 2.6 of the report and approve the revised package moving forward
to construction in 2025/26; subject to the business case and project change request being
approved by the Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic Development.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Rebecca Newby, Team Manager Major Projects & Growth
Email: Rebecca.newby@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
Councillor Holt
Councillor Wright

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 135


mailto:Rebecca.newby@eastsussex.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



/€T abed

LEGEND

d |

Proposed 150mm wide granite kerb, fine picked in silver grey.

Proposed linear drainage channel with granite cover in silver
grey colour.

Proposed 200x100x100mm concrete setts in Silver Grey
(50%) and Yellow (50%). Laying pattern to be agreed.

Proposed 400x400x100mm granite paving in Yellow Rock
(buff, 30%) and Alpendurada (grey, 70%). Laying pattern to be
agreed.

Proposed resin bound gravel in buff colour.

Proposed 400x400mm concrete red blister tactile paving.

Proposed 25mm asphalt surface for footway construction.

Proposed 40mm inlay carriageway resurfacing.

Specialist surfacing material to define proposed vehicular
turning area. Surfacing material to be agreed.

@ DDDoz-a] «

Existing property entrances.

Proposed bench.

Proposed single seat.

Proposed general waste and recycling bin.

Proposed cycle stands, in black with visibility banding.

Proposed bollard.

Existing mature tree to remain. Permeable surface treatment
to be laid around base.

Proposed tree in new tree pit.

Existing mature tree to be felled.

Proposed planter.

Proposed 10m lighting column and luminaire.
Proposed 6m lighting column and luminaire.
Existing lighting column to be removed.

Proposed submersible (in-ground) power distribution unit -
Giffas Piazza 800.

Proposed submersible (in-ground) power supply unit - Gifas
Piccolino 200.

Proposed feeder pillar.

—_
_—
_—
——
_—
_—
_—

\
\ .
TE
NE -
KR - \
N\P\R [/ W S
| ——
)
\
\ %\“ \
\ VWA
\ \
\ _— \
N\ N T sananger [ R [ e T e N T m—————— L
\ \ \
\ \ \
\ \ \
\ \ \
\ \
\ \ \
\ - e \
\ GP\P‘DEN \ \\
\»\‘AQE ' \
\
\ \ \
\ \
\ \
\ b X
\\ e 2
\ \
\ \
\ \
‘ \ A
\
| o '
WO YA N
N \
b \
N
v -7 OA(,)
\ \ o)
\ ) \ NZ Y.
\ 4 \ A
) 5 \ Ay
\ (O \
\ 2 \
\\ < \\ )\
\ © \
\ \
\.~ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \ \
Q ' '
\ \
(@) =\
\
| \ \
2 » \
%, \ \ N\
Y
3 | \
/
© / \
/ _ ~ \/
-~
\
" \
) \
\ -~ \
A~ \
— - - \
— - - \
I \
© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100019601 P - T~ N - 1\
NOTES Project Sta;u: li:(\)/i;ion
, : : : East Sussex EASTBOURNE TOWN CENTRE PHASE 2A
1. All dimensions are in metres unless otherwise stated. S e Seale 1500 bate 06/05/2024
2. Do not scale. Balfour . Drawing title Drawn By | Tingley
3. This planis in colour. Beatty N9 DETAILED DESIGN Checked By -
PO3 ST 20/08/24  Landscape planting updated a 4. This drawing shows the proposed works along Bolton Road, Terminus Road, Approved By -
Langney Road and Tideswell Road only. Signing works are also proposed GENERAL SCHEME LAYOUT Project No. | Originator Original Si
P02 S1 15/07/24  Tree removal added. Note 4 amended. IT _ -~ : ) ) EAST SUSSEX HIGHWAYS IM-0001 BBLP riginal Size A1
for Cornfield Road, Trinity Trees and Devonshire Place including the RINGMER DEPOT. THE BROYLE
POT 81 May2024  Firstissue T installation of 3 new signs and the attachment of small patches to 3 existing RINGMER, EAST SUSSEX, BN8 5NP Drawing number  Volume | Design Alt. | Type | Role | Number
Rev | Status | Rev. Date | Purpose of revision Drawn |Chek'd [Apprv'd ADS signs. Tel. 0345 60 80 193 www.eastsussexhighways.com HGN-DR-CH-100-0002

IM-0001-BBLP-HGN-DR-CH-0002.dwg

T Xipuaddy



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 14 October 2024
	4 Consultation outcome for revised Seaside and St Anthony's Avenue bus priority proposals in Eastbourne
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	5 Petition: Implement a 40mph speed limit within the parish of Arlington
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	6 Eastbourne Town Centre Movement and Access Package - Phase 2a revised scope
	Appendix I - Scheme Drawing
	Sheets and Views
	Scheme Overview






